HOUSING, RESIDENTIAL RENT AND RELOCATION
BOARD FULL BOARD SPECIAL MEETING
September 10, 2020
5:00 P.M.
Meeting Will Be Conducted Via Video Conference

AGENDA

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION
The public may observe and/or participate in this meeting many ways.

OBSERVE:

» To observe, the public may view the televised video conference by viewing KTOP
channel 10 on Xfinity (Comcast) or ATT Channel 99 and locating City of Oakland
KTOP — Channel 10

» To observe the meeting by video conference, please click on this link: You are
invited to a Zoom webinar.

When: September 10, 2020 5:00PM Pacific Time (US and Canada)

Topic: Housing, Residential Rent & Relocation Board Special Full Board Regular Meeting

Please click the link below to join the webinar:

https://zoom.us/j/91076810030

To listen to the meeting by phone, please call the numbers below at the noticed
meeting time:

Or iPhone one-tap :

US: +16699006833,,91076810030# or +12532158782,91076810030#
Or Telephone:

International numbers available: https://zoom.us/u/abQVZdm8M7

Dial (for higher quality, dial a number based on your current location): US: +1 669 900
6833 (San Jose) or +1 253 215 8782 or +1 346 248 7799(Houston) or +1 312 626
6799(Chicago) or +1 929 205 6099(New York) or +1 301 715 8592 (Germantown)
Webinar ID: 941 7121 7084 at the noticed meeting time.

COMMENT:
There are two ways to submit public comments.

» To comment by Zoom video conference, click the “Raise Your Hand” button to
request to speak when Public Comment is being taken on an eligible agenda item
at the beginning of the meeting. You will be permitted to speak during your turn,
allowed to comment, and after the allotted time, re-muted. Instructions on how to
“Raise Your Hand” is available at:
https://support.zoom.us/hc/en-us/articles/205566129 - Raise-Hand-In-Webinar.

1

000001


https://zoom.us/j/91076810030
https://zoom.us/u/abQVZdm8M7

» To comment by phone, please call on one of the above listed phone numbers.
You will be prompted to “Raise Your Hand” by pressing “*9” to speak when Public
Comment is taken. You will be permitted to speak during your turn, allowed to
comment, and after the allotted time, re-muted.

Please unmute yourself by pressing *6.

If you have any questions, please email Bkong-brown@oaklandca.gov.

HOUSING, RESIDENTIAL RENT AND RELOCATION BOARD
1. CALL TO ORDER
2. ROLL CALL
3. CONSENT ITEMS
a) Approval of Board minutes from July 30, 2020
4. OPEN FORUM

5. APPEALS®
a) T18-0414 & T18-0472, Martin et al v. Zalabak

b) T18-0018, Sund v. Vernon Street Apartments, LP aka Flynn
Family Holdings, LLC

c) T19-0272, T19-0325, Jeffers v. BD Opportunity
6. ACTION ITEMS
a. Adhoc Committee

b. Proposed Amendments to the Just Cause and Rent
Regulations pursuant to Ordinance No. 13608

7. INFORMATION AND ANNOUNCEMENTS
a. Rent Adjustment Program Updates(C. Franklin-Minor)
b. Legislative Updates (Office of the City Attorney)
c. TPO Regulations Update (Office of the City Attorney)
d. Retirement of Board member Jessie Warner
e. Welcome to new Board member Saneta Devuono-
Powell

8. ADJOURNMENT

As a reminder, alternates in attendance (other than those replacing an absent
board member) will not be able to take any action, such as with regard to the
consent calendar.

000002


mailto:Bkong-brown@oaklandca.gov

Accessibility. To request disability-related accommodations or to request an
ASL, Cantonese, Mandarin or Spanish interpreter, please email
sshannon@oaklandca.gov or call (510) 238- 3715 or California relay service at
711 by 5:00 P.M. one day before the meeting.

*Staff appeal summaries will be available at the Rent Program website and the Clerk’s office at least 72
hours prior to the meeting pursuant to O.M.C. 2.20.080.C and 2.20.090

Si desea solicitar adaptaciones relacionadas con discapacidades, o para pedir
un intérprete de en espariol, Cantones, Mandarin o de lenguaje de sefias (ASL)
por favor envié un correo electrénico a sshannon@oaklandca.gov o llame al
(510) 238-3715 0 711 por lo menos cinco dias habiles antes de la reunion.

FEREEHBHRE, F5F BUTE,

BRI BENERE, BESENABEI/EXREE sshannon@oaklandca.gov
2 E (510) 238-3715 B 711 California relay service.

000003


mailto:sshannon@oaklandca.gov
mailto:sshannon@oaklandca.gov
mailto:sshannon@oaklandca.gov

HOUSING, RESIDENTIAL RENT AND RELOCATION BOARD
FULL BOARD SPECIAL MEETING

1. CALL TO ORDER

July 30, 2020
5:00 P.M.
VIA ZOOM VIDEO

CONFERENCE OAKLAND, CA

MINUTES

The Board meeting was administered by H. Grewal, Housing and
Community Development Department. He explained the procedure for
conducting the meeting. The HRRRB meeting was called to order at 5:10
p.m. by Chair, R. Stone.

2. ROLL CALL
MEMBER STATUS PRESENT | ABSENT | EXCUSED
T. HALL Tenant X
R. AUGUSTE Tenant X
H. FLANERY Tenant Alt. X
Vacant Tenant Alt.
R. STONE Homeowner X
A. GRAHAM Homeowner X
E. LAI Homeowner Alt. X
J. MA POWERS | Homeowner Alt. X
K. FRIEDMAN Landlord X
T. WILLIAMS Landlord X
B. SCOTT Landlord Alt. X*
K. SIMS Landlord Alt. X

*arrived at 6:00 p.m.
Staff Present

Kent Qian Deputy City Attorney

Oliver Luby Deputy City Attorney

Chanee Franklin Minor Program Manager, Rent Adjustment Program
Barbara Kong-Brown Senior Hearing Officer, Rent Adjustment °

3. CONSENT ITEMS

Program

a) Approval of Board Minutes from February 27, 2020,
Regular

b) Review of Board Minutes from March 5, 2020

1

000004



T. Hall moved to approve Rent Board minutes from
February 27, 2020. A. Graham seconded the
motion.

The Board voted as follows:

Aye: T. Hall, R. Auguste, R. Stone, A. Graham, J. Ma
Powers, K. Friedman, Kathleen Sims

Nay: None

Abstain: None

The motion was approved by consensus.

4. OPEN FORUM

Prior to Open Forum, the Chair stated that Jessie Warner’s term has
expired and the Board will thank Ms. Warner for her service at the next
Board meeting.

James Vann

e \Welcomed the Rent Board back from hiatus due to CO-
VID 19 pandemic

5. INFORMATION AND ANNOUNCEMENTS

a) Discussion of Rent Program activities (Chanee
Franklin Minor)

Participation in 6 town hall meetings with Mayor re
emergency moratorium; conducted separate
workshops with owners and tenants; survey of owners
and tenants on impact of CO-VID 19 pandemic with
over 500 responses to date; working with University of
Pennsylvania re survey results to be posted on RAP
website. Regulations regarding the moratorium have
been drafted with disclosure forms re tenants’ rights
and will be posted on the RAP website. Owners and
tenants are encouraged to mediate a resolution to
rent payments.

Housing Counseling-RAP has responded to 600 client
calls and emails, with approximately 100 calls per
month. Calls are returned within 24 hours. RAP also
partners with Central Legal and HERA to provide
external assistance.

2

000005



Passage of Tenant Protection Ordinance-partnership
with local legal providers for outreach to stakeholders.

Hearings-RAP began conducting remote hearings in
June 2020 after a hiatus since mid-March 2020; there
is a full docket until the end of December 2020.

Appeal cases-There are 35-40 cases pending appeal-
Board can decide how many meetings to be
scheduled per month to hear appeals.

Recruitment-RAP staff has increased from 11 to 23.
There is approval to hire an assistant program
manager, which is a new job classification.

6. LEGISLATIVE UPDATES
a). Emergency Moratorium (Kent Qian)

The City Council passed an Emergency Moratorium on
3/27/20, banning most evictions on residences, and for non
payment of rent. The moratorium has been extended until the
end of the local emergency moratorium. It also prohibits any
evictions under the Just Cause for Eviction Ordinance except
for Ellis Act actions or imminent threat to the health and safety
to the occupant.

The moratorium also bans late fees during the local
emergency and prohibit any rent increases above the CPI
adjustment.

An owner is allowed to temporarily reduce a tenant’s rent
during the moratorium without reducing the base rent to
calculate the next rent increase.

The Judicial Council has also banned evictions and the Court
will not issue any summons until 90 days after the State
emergency is lifted, and is awaiting ending legislation before
moving forward.

The moratorium provides a complete defense to an eviction
proceeding if the tenant can prove tht the rent non payment
was related to the CO-VID 19 pandemic.

The tenant is always liable for the rent payment. The owner is
required to go to court to get monetary damages. Eviction is

3

000006



not an option.

b) Tenant Protection Ordinance (Oliver Luby)
On July 21, 2020, the City Council adopted amendments to
the Tenant Protection, Just Cause and Rent Ordinance, to

(1) Limit The Maximum Rent Increase In Any One Year To
Conform To State Law;

(2) Make Failure To Pay Required Relocation Benefits An
Affirmative Defense To Eviction;

(3) Limit Late Fees to 3%;

(4) Prohibit Unilaterally Imposed Changes To Terms Of
Tenancy;,

(5) Add One-For-One Replacement Of Roommates To The
Definition Of Housing Services;

(6) Prohibit Eviction Based On Additional Occupants If
Landlord Unreasonably Refused Tenant’s Written Request To
Add Occupant(s) based on number of rooms; Owner can
charge a 5% rent increase;

(7) Strengthen Tenants’ Rights and Enforcement Of Tenants’
Rights under The Tenant Protection Ordinance.

¢) Ad hoc Committee (Chanee Franklin Minor)

7. ADJOURNMENT

The HRRRB meeting was adjourned at 10:00 p.m. by Chair, J. Warner.

000007



CONSOLIDATED CHRONOLOGICAL CASE REPORT

Case No.:

Case Name:
Property Address:

Partiesv':

TENANT APPEAL.:

Activity

Tenant Petitions filed

Owner Responses filed

T18-0414 & T18-0472

Martin et al v. Zalabak

5553 Kales Ave., Oakland, CA
Chester Martin ~ (Tenant)

Kristen Ponger  (Tenant)
Sherry Zalabak ~ (Owner)

‘Lisa Giampaoli  (Attorney for Tenant)

Alana Grice Conner (Attorney for Owner)

Date

August 3, 2018 (T18-0414)

November 9, 2018 (T18-0472)

December 5, 2018 (T18-0414)
February 15,2019 (T18-0472)

Property Owner filed Submission February 15, 2019

Of Tangible Evidence

Property Owner’s filed Supplemental April 11,2019
Statement '

Hearing Decision mailed June 7, 2019
Tenant Appeal filed in both cases June 27, 2019
Tenan‘; Attorney Brief filed January 14, 2020

000008




{ {
' ’EJL—- :,'.\ e .
CITY OF OAKLAND IR )
RENT ADJUSTMENT PROGRAM
P.O. Box 70243
i Oakland, CA 94612-0243 :
’ 510) 238-3721 '
crry of oaktanp 1O g TENANT PETITION
Fill Out This Fo Complete ou Can. Failure to provide needed information may
result in your pe’titipn being rejected or delayed.
Please print legibly
Your Name Rental Address (with zip code) Telephone:
CHESTER "CHASE" MARTIN | 5553 KALES AVENUE
KRISTEN PONGER OAKLAND, CA 94618 E-mail:
Yourv Representative’s Name Mailing Address (with zip code) Telephone:
| Email:
Property Ownet(s) name(s) Mailing Address (with zip code) . Telephone:
SHERRY.ZALABAK 402 VERMONT AVENUE Email:
BERKELEY, CA 94707
Property Manager or Management Co. Mailing Address (with zip code) Telephone:
(if applicable)
Email:
Number of units on the property: 2
Type of unit you.rent .. Q Apartment, Room, or
(check one) x House & Condominium . Live-Work
Are you current on ,
your rent? (check one) ” Yes 9 No

If you are not current on your rent, please explain. (If you are legally withholding rent state what, if any, habitability violations exist in

_ your unit.)

L. GROUNDS FOR PETITION: Check all that apply. You must check at least one box. For all of the

grounds for a petition see OMC 8.22.070 and OMC 8.22.090. I(We) contest one or more rent increases on
one or more of the following grounds:

(a) The CPI and/or banked rent increase notice I was given was calculated incorrectly.

X | (b) The increase(s) exceed(s) the CPI Adjustment and is (are) unjustified or is (are) greater than 10%.

(c) Ireceived a rent increase notice before the property owner received approval from the Rent Adjustment

¥ | Program for such an increase and the rent increase exceeds the CPI Adjustment and the available banked

rent increase.

Rev. 7/31/17 For more information phone (510) 238-3721. ' 1

000009




P

= o

(d) No written notice of Rent Program was given to me together with the notice of increase(s) I am
contesting, (Only for increases noticed after July 26, 2000.)

x (e) The property owner did not give me the required form “Notice of the Rent Adjustment Program” at least
6 months before the effective date of the rent increase(s). '

(f) The rent increase notice(s) was (were) not given to me in compliance with State law.

(2) The increase I am contesting is the second increase in my rent in a 12-month period.

(h) There is a current health, safety, fire, or building code violation in my unit, or there are serious problems
with the conditions in the unit because the owner failed to do requested repair and maintenance, (Complete
Section Il on following page) . : _

(1) The owner is providing me with fewer housing services than I received previously or is charging me for
services originally paid by the owner, (OMC 8.22.070(F): A decrease in housing services is considered an
increase in rent. A tenant may petition for a rent adjustment based on a decrease in housing services.)
(Complete Section I on following page)

(j) My rent was not reduced after a prior rent increase period for.a Capital Improvement had expired.

x (k) The proposed rent increase would exceed an overall increase of 30% in 5 years. (The S-year period
begins with rent increases noticed on or after August 1,2014).

X (1) I wish to contest an exemption from the Rent Adjustment Ordinance because the exemption was based on
fraud or mistake. (OMC 8.22, Article ) :

(m) The owner did not give me a summary of the justification(s) for the increase despite my written request.

(n) The rent was raised illegally after the unit was vacated as set forth under OMC 8.22.080.

IL RENTAL HISTORY: (You must complete this section)

Date you moved into the Unit: NOv. 7—"' I w‘ !‘! Initial Rent: $ 2,600 /month

When did the owner first provide you with the RAP NOTICE, a written NOTICE TO TENANTS of the
existence of the Rent Adjustment Program? Date: Never - If never provided, enter “Never.”

Is your rent subsidized or controlled by any government agency, including HUD (Section 8)? Yes '

List all rent increases that you want to challenge. Begin with the most recent and work backwards. If
You need additional space, please attach another sheet. If you never received the RAP Notice you can
contest all past increases. You must check “Yes” next to each increase that You are challenging,

Date you Date increase Monthly rent increase | Are you Contesting Did You Receive a'

received the goes into effect : this Increase in this Rent Program

notice (mo/day/year) Petition?* Notice With the
(mo/day/year)~ - From To Notice Of
. . Increase?

06/05/18 08/01/18 $2,652 $.4,500 $Yes o No {Yes MNo

12/1/16 1117 *2600  |So652 | UYe ¥No | “Ye Wi

$ $ UYes = No ZYes [No

$ $ _ UYes . No ZYes iNo

$ v ' $ " UYes L_No ZYes 1No

$ $ UYes _No ~Yes LUNo

Rev. 13117 For more information phone (510) 238-3721. 2

000010




PIAN

* You have 90 days from the date of notice of increase or from the first date you received written notice of the
existence of the Rent Adjustment program (whichever is later) to contest a rent Increase. (OM.C.822.090A2) If
you did not receive a RAP Notice with the rent increase you are contesting but have received it in the past, you
have 120 days to file a petition. (O.M.C. 822.090 A 3) v

Have you ever filed a petition for this rental unit?

Q Yes
® No

List case number(s) of all Petition(s) you have ever filed for this rental unit and all other relevant Petitions:

LI._DESCRIPTION OF DECREASED OR INADEQUATE HOUSING SERVICES:
Decreased or inadequate housing services are considered an increase in rent. If you claim an unlawful

rent increase for problems in your unit, or becanse the owner has taken away a housing service, you must
complete this section. »

Are you being charged for services originally paid by the owner? < (1Yes NNo
Have you lost services originally provided by the owner or have the conditions changed? OYes NNo
Are you claiming any serious problem(s) with the condition of your rental unit? OYes X No

If you answered “Yes” to any of the above, or if you checked box (h) or (i) on page 2, please attach a
separate sheet listing a description of the reduced service(s) and problem(s). Be sure to include the
following:

1) a list of the lost housing service(s) or problem(s); '

2) the date the loss(es) or problem(s) began or the date you began paying for the service(s)

3) when you notified the owner of the problem(s); and

4) how you calculate the dollar value of lost service(s) or problem(s).
Please attach documentary evidence if available.

You have the option to have a City inspector come to your unit and inspect for any code violation, To make an
appointment, call the City of Oakland, Code of Compliance Unit at (510) 238-3381.

IV. VERIFICATION: The tenant must sign:

I declare under penalty of perjury pursuant to the laws of the State of California that everything I said
in this petition is true and that all of the documents attached to the petition are true copies of the
originals. '

Tenant’s Signature Date

L | |

Rev. 731117 For more information phone (510) 238-3721. 3

000011




ot

f,x- - ' {, ~

V. MEDIATION AVAILABLE: Mediation is an entirely voluntary process to assist you in reaching an
agreement with the owner. If both parties agree, you have the option to mediate your complaints before a
hearing is held. If the parties do not reach an agreement in mediation, your case will g0 to a formal hearing
before a different Rent Adjustment Program Hearing Officer.

You may choose to have the mediation conducted by a Rent Adjustment Program Hearing Officer or select an
outside mediator. Rent Adjustment Program Hearing Officers conduct mediation sessions free of charge. If
you and the owner agree to an outside mediator, please call (510) 2383721 to make arrangements. Any fees
charged by an outside mediator for mediation of rent disputes will be the responsibility of the parties
requesting the use of their services. : -

Mediation will be scheduled only if both parties agree (aﬁér both your petition and the owner’s response have
been filed with the Rent Adjustment Program). The Rent Adjustment Pro ram will not schedule a
mediation session if the owner does not file a res onse to the petition. Rent Board Regulation 8.22.100.A.

If you want to schedulé our cﬁse for mediation sign below,

1 agre&o have my ch;diated by a Rent Adjustment Program Staff Hearing Officer (no charge). .

[

Tenant's Sighature Dat

. IMPORTANT INFORMATION:

Time to File

This form must be received at the offices of the Rent Adjustment Program (“RAP”) within the time limit for
filing a petition set out in the Rent Adjustment Ordinance (Oakland Municipal Code, Chapter 8.22). RAP staff
cannot grant an extension of time by phone to file your petition, Ways to Submit. Mail to: Oakland Rent
Adjustment Program, P.O, Box 70243, Oakland, CA 94612; In person: Date stamp and deposit in Rent
Adjustment Drop-Box, Housing Assistance Center, Dalziel Building, 250 Frank H. Ogawa Plaza, 6 Floor,
Oakland; RAP Online Petitioning System: http://rapwp. oaklandnet.com/petition-forms/. For more
information, please call: (5 10) 238-3721. _ '

File Review

Your property owner(s) will be required to file a response to this petition with the Rent Adjustment office
within 35 days of notification by the Rent Adjustment Program. When it is received, the RAP offics will send

owner will be available for review in the RAP office by appointment. To schedule a file review, please call the
Rent Adjustment Program office at (510) 238-3721. If you filed your petition at the RAP Online Petitioning
System, the owner may use the online system to submit the owner response and attachments, which would be -
accessible there for your review. :

ViI. HOW DID YOU LEARN ABOUT THE RENT ADJUSTMENT PROGRAM?

Printed form provided by the owner

Pamphlet distributed by the Rent Adjustment Program
Legal services or community organization

Sign on bus or bus shelter

Rent Adjustment Program web site

Other (describe):

e 7]

Rev. 73117 o For more information phone (510) 238-3721. 4

000012




Chester Martin & Kristen Ponger
5553 Kales Avenue '

Oakland, CA 94618

August 3,2018

Rent Adjustment Program (RAP
City of Oakland, CA - '
Re: Tenant Petition

To Whonm it May Concern:

Chester “Chase” Martin & Kristen Ponger, “Tenénts”
Sherry Zalabak, “Landlord” _
Rental Property Address: 5553 Kales Ave, Oakiand, CA 94618

On June 5th, 2018 Landlord dropped off “Sixty Day Notice of Change in Terms of Tenancy”
[Attachment A] raising tenants’ rent 70% from $2,652/month to $4,500/month as of August 5th,
2018. Landlord’s behavior has beé_n erratic and contradictory over the past 6 months, and no
justification for the rent increase has beén provided. Tenants Martin & Ponger are choosing to
proactively contest the increase via this petition on the following grounds.

1. Increase exceeds the CPI Adjustment and is greater than 10% without RAP approval

2. Tenants have never received riotice of RAP |

3. Wish to contest an exemption from the Rent Adjustment Ordinance because the -

exemption was based on fraud

Key Points: .
e 5553 Kales Avenue is publicly listed as a Single-Family Residence, but has been rented
.as a duplex with two separate units since before current tenants Kristen & Chase signed
a lease for front 1-BR unit in 2014 [Attachment B]
e Tenants entered lease for front unit in November 2014, no RAP notice provided
[Attachment C] ,
a. Previous tenants were Holly and Steve
® Since 2014, the back unit has had two different sets of tenants paying rent under own
respective leases .
.a. Mike and LeAnne Devol (maiden name Fowlkes); $1,100/month
b. Lindsay Byrd and Isabel Avellan [Attachment D]; $1,400/month
¢ Landlord raised both front & rear units’ respective rents by 2% in January 2017 with no’
RAP notice [Attachment E] ‘
® On March 28, 2018 Landlord states that tenants must vacate the property by July 1,
2018, so that she can make improvements to prepare for sale [Attachment F)
e On April 25, 2018, Landlord urged tenants repeatedly to sign agreement to terminate
lease [Attachment GJ, misrepresenting document as “extension of tenancy”
[Attachment H]

000013




e Tenants do ncﬂi)tv have access to back unit but it is currently vacant. Landiord has told
tenants as reéently as July 2018 that they are restricted from back unit and yard, as
those are a separate unit. _ -

e Tenants have always paid rent on time, cared for the property, maintained and performed
minor upgrades and repairs at their own financial expense. Landlord stated in February
2018 that Martin & Ponger were “the best tenants she's ever had”

Glossary of Attachments: : .
Tenants are providing the following attached documentation outlining our historical rental
agreement and series of events that led to this petition.

. Atta'ch'mentAA: Sixty-Day Notice of Change in Terms of Tenancy (Rent Increase)
Attachment B: E-mail to back unit tenants announcing vacancy in front unit
Attachment C: Martin & Ponger Lease Agreement
Attachment D: Byrd & Avellan Lease Agreement
Attachment E: Increase in rent for both units without RAP Notice, Jan. 2017
Attachment F: Lan'dlord states tenants must leave property to prepare for s
ale ' '

Attachment G: Landlord-Tenant Agreement to Terminate Lease

Attachment H: Urging tenants to vacate and sign lease termination, misrep'resenting
document as an “extension”

¢ Attachment J: Offer of sale-of-property with Landlord’s description of secondary unit

Background: : _

In February 2018, landlords of the 5553 Kales Avenue rental property, Sherry and John
Zalabak, invited the tenants, Chase Martin & Kristen Ponger, over to their home in the Berkeley
Hills to discuss the potential purchase of their Kales Ave rental property. The property at 5553
Kales includes two separate units: the 1-BR front house that Kristen & Chase have rented since
November 2014, and the rear standalone studio cottage which the landlord refers to as a
“Golden Duplex”. ' : . !

After tenants shared the news with the landlords that they were expecting their first child
in July, both parties left the February meeting in agreement that there was no rush to action
necessary and to reconvene in the Fall of 2018 to discuss further.

On Sunday, March 25th at 9am Landlord Sherry showed up to tenant's home
unannounced to with a realtor friend named Julie Durkee. Landlord proceeded to barge into the
house for an impromptu appraisal of the front unit, while accosting the tenants with questions on
whether they were interested in buying another house down the street to move-in before baby
arrives on July 9. _

On March 27th, Tenants (Kristen & Chase) received an email and physical note from
landlord (Sherry) apologizing for her unannounced visit the previous weekend. E-mail stated
that circumstances had changed in respect to her husband’s health, and tenants must vacate
the unit by July 1, 2018 [Attachment F] in order to prepare the property for sale. Alternatively,
landlord gave the tenants 30 days to make an offer to purchase the property. Landlord stated
that tenants must make an offer or move out by July 1st.

000014




ol

On March 28th, Tenants Kristen & Chase replied to Landlord's email confirming interest
in purchasing the property, buit could not nake an offer without the iandlord first providing an
asking price, Tenants alsg r!eque“s'té"v that landlord would reconsider the July 1st vacancy
timeline since their baby was due that week. | o

On March 29th, Landiord dropped off a-handwritten note [Attachment J] offering the
property “as is” for $1.3M through a private sale. At this point tenants took it upon themselves to
- contact a real estate agent to conduct a co’mpérable evaluation of the property who also referred

tenants to a lawyer, Jean Shrem. ' ' :

On April 25th, Landlord begins to repeatedly urge tenants to sign a “Landlord-Tenant
Agreement to Terminate Lease” document [Attachment G] without cause. Landiord
misrepresents this as an “extension” [Attachment H] of lease and her offer of sale.

. On May 25th, Tenants email Landlord with a purchase offer while giving notice of their
refusal to sign “Termination of Lease” document.

On June 5th, 2018 Landlord shows up unannounced to drop off “Sixty Day Notice of
Change in Terms of Tenancy” [Attachment A], raising tenants rent 70%, from $2,652 to $4,500
effective August 5, 2018. Tenant Chase Martin was present at the time and approached
Landlord Sherry to discuss the legality of the notice, but was rebuffed by the landlord. Tenant
verbally informed Landlord of intention to file with Rent Board if issue could not be resolved

amicably in private, but as of August 1st no reply received from Landlord.

000015




oy : ‘ . - ’(’5
™ (

CITY OF OAKLAND For date stamp. 3
RENT ADJUSTMENT PROGRAM o
P.O. Box 70243
Oakland, CA 94612-0243 WI0FC -5

_ A
kA g e

i b 2k

_ 510) 238-3721
CITY OF OAKLAND (510) PROPERTY OWNER
RESPONSE

Please Fill Qut This Form As Completely As You Can. Failure to provide needed information
may result in your response being rejected or delayed.

CASE NUMBER T 18-0414

Your Name Complete Address (with zip code) Telephone:
Sherry Zalabak 402 Vermont Avenue o
Berkeley, CA 94707 -
Email:
e -
Your Representative’s Name (if any) Complete Address (with zip code) Telephone:
Alana Grice Conner 1901 Harrison Street, 14th Floor .,
Fried & Williams LLP Oakland, CA 94612 Email:
Tenant(s) Name(s) Complete Address (with zip ¢ode) Telephone:
Chester "Chase" Martin 5553 Kales Avenue
Kristen Ponger Oakland, CA 94618
Email:
Property Address (If the property has more than one address, list all addresses) Total number of units on
5553 Kales Avenue, Oakland, CA 94618 property
Single Family Residence

Have you paid for your Oakland Business License? Yes &l No O Lic. Number: 00182031
The property owner must have a current Oakland Business License. Ifit is not current, an Owner Petition or
Response may not be considered in a Rent Adjustment proceeding. Please provide proof of payment.

* Have you paid the current year’s Rent Program Service Fee ($68 per unit)? Yes Kl No [1 APN48A-7043-40
The property owner must be current on payment of the RAP Service Fee. Ifthe fee is not current, an Owner Petition
or Response may not be considered in a Rent Adjustment proceeding. Please provide proof of payment,

Date on which you acquired the building: 10/07 /10 .

Is there more than one street address on the parcel? Yes [0 No K.

Type of unit (Circle One):[House} Condominium/ Apartment, room, or live-work

L JUSTIFICATION FOR RENT IN CREASE You must check the appropriate justification(s) -
box for each increase greater than the Annual CPI adjustment contested in the tenant(s) petition.
For the detailed text of these justifications, see Oakland Municipal Code Chapter 8.22 and the Rent

For more information phone (510)-238-3721.
Rey. 3/28/17

000016




5.
&

A . (n"v“
Board Regulations. You can get additional information and copies of the Ordinance and.. . .-
Regulations from the Rent Program office in person or by phoning (510) 238-3721. i}

HEHT AR

b
You must prove the contested rent increase is justified. For each justification 'b%‘?ked,ﬁﬂ,. {he
following table, you must attach organized documentary evidence demonstratin%ﬂ% ' -En'fiﬁexii’ﬁht{}: 2h
to the increase. This documentation may include cancelled checks, receipts, and invoices.
Undocumented expenses, except certain maintenance, repair, legal, accounting and management
expenses, will not usually be allowed.

Date of Banking Increased Capital Uninsured = Debt  Fair
Contested (deferred Housing Improvements  Repair Service Return
Increase annual Service Costs : Costs
increases )
O | O o O 0
o [ i O O |
0O A O O [ (|

If you are justifying additional contested increases, please attach a separate sheet.

II. RENT HISTORY If you contest the Rent History stated on the Tenant Petition, state the
correct information in this section. Xfyou leave this section blank, the rent history on the tenant’s
petition will be considered correct :

The tenant moved into the rental unit on. November 24, 2014

The tenant’s initial rent including all services provided was: $_2,600.00 / month.

Have you (or a previous Owner) given the City of Oakland’s form entitled “NOTICE TO TENANTS OF
RESIDENTIAL RENT ADJUSTMENT PROGRAM” (“RAP Notice”) to all of the petitioning tenants?
Yes _X No [don’tknow

If yes, on what date was the Notice first given? October 10, 2018 but unit is exempt

Is the tenant current on the rent? Yes X No

| Begin with the most recent rent and work backwards. If you need more space please attach another sheet.

Date Notice Date Increase Rent Increased Did you provide the “RAP
Given Effective | NOTICE” with the notice
mo./day/year) From To of rent increase?
10/10/18 12/15/18 $ 2,652.00 $ 4,500.00 Yes  ONo-
12/1/16 117 ¥ 260000 ¥ 565200 DYes  @No
$ $ OYes ONo
$ $ OYes ONo
$ $ OYes [ONo
2

For more information phone (510)-238-3721.
Rev. 3/28/17

000017




{:: kY ir‘w ‘
HIL EXEMPTION '

Ll

If you claim that your property is exemnpt fiom Rent Adjustment (ORAG Ninteipal Code

Chapter 8.22), pleass check one or more of the grounds: IBDEC-5 P ol

= The wnit is a single family residence or condominium exempted by the Costa Hawldns Rental
Howsing Act (California Civil Code 1954.50, et seq.). I claiming exemption under Costa-Fawldus,
please answer the following questions on a separate sheet:

Did the prier tenant leave after being given a notice to quit (Civil Code $ection 1946)? .
Did'the prior tenant leave after being given a notice of rent inorsase (Civil Code Seation §27)?
Was the prior tenant evisted for cause? '
. Arethere any outstending violations of building housing, fire or safety oodes in the unit or bullding?
Is the upit a single family dwelling or condominfum that can be sold separutely?
Did the petitioning tenant have roommates when he/she moved in? :
If the unit is 2 condominiuni, did you purchase 1t? Ifsa: 1) froim whom? 2) Did you purchase the entire
building? ' : _

S b AN

=~

OO0~ The rent for the unit is confrolled, regulated or subsidized by a governmental unit, agency or
authorliy other than the City of Oakland Rent Adjustment Ordinange,

! The unit was newly constructed and a certifioate of oceupancy was issued for it on or after
January 1, 1983, " ’ '

O On the day the petition was filed, the tetiant petitioner was n resident of 8 motel, hotel, oy
boarding house less than 30 days,

o The subjoot unit is in a building that was rehabilitated at a cost of 50% or more of the average
basic cost of new constraotion. '

a The unit is an accommodation in & hospital, convent, monastery, extended care facility,
convalescent home, non-profit home for aged, or dormitory owned and operated hy an educational
nstltution,

jul The unit is looated in a building with three or fewer units. The owner occupies one of the units
continuously as his or her principal residence and has done so for at least one year, :

IV. DECREASED HOUSING SERVICES

It the petition filed by your tenant olaims Decreased Housing Serviees, state your position regarding the
tenant’s claim(s) of decreased hovsing sarvices, If you need more space attach a ssparate sheet, Submit
any doguments, photographs or other tangible evidenee that supports your position,

V. VERIFICATION

I declare under penalty of perjury pursuant to the laws of the State of California that all
statements made in this Response are true and that all of the documents aftached hercto
are frue ' ‘

pies of the m;gi:ik./
ez Ve LF 20 |

O?ﬁer’s Signature Date

Proper’

_ For more information phote (510)-238-3721,
Rev. 3/28/17

000018




("“ N | o (@ma

i“”\[ ] T e
. HONT ARET S
Landlord Narrative TERRIR

The Tenants’ petition must be dismissed because the Rent Adj ustmeggf} &é?ig'[g‘{\aﬁq%oégﬁ’ﬁhé?\lc
jurisdiction. The rental unit is exempt from rent control because it is a single-family residence
exempted by the Costa-Hawkins Rental Housing Act (California Civil Code §1954.50 et seq.).
See Attachment A, Property Assessment Information. Furthermore, the Tenants’ petition is
incomplete because the Tenants failed to sign the verification under penalty of petjury which is
required. Nonetheless, if the hearing officer seeks to further review the petition, Landlord
responds as follows:

* To address the issues raised by Tenant in section I. Grounds for Petition, Landlord responds
as follows:

. (b) The rental unit is exempt from rent control because it is a single-family residence
exempted by the Costa-Hawkins Rental Housing Act (California Civil Code 1954.50). The CPI
Adjustment does not apply to the rental unit.

(c) The rental unit is exempt from rent control because it is a single-family residence
exempted by the Costa-Hawkins Rental Housing Act (California Civil Code 1954.5 0). The
property owner is not required to receive approval from the Rent Adjustment Program for the
contested rent increase. ' '

(d) The rental unit is exempt from rent control because it is a single-family residence
exempted by the Costa-Hawkins Rental Housing Act (California Civil Code 1954.50). The
property owner is not required to provide the Notice of the Rent Adjustment Program (RAP
Notice) form.

(e) The rental unit is exempt from rent control because it is a single-family residence
exempted by the Costa-Hawkins Rental Housing Act (California Civil Code 1954.5 0). The
property owner is not required to provide the Notice of the Rent Adjustment Program (RAP
Notice) form. ‘ -

(k) The rental unit is exempt from rent control because it is a single-family residence
exempted by the Costa-Hawkins Rental Housing Act (California Civil Code 1954.50). The limit
for rent increases over 30% over a 5-year petiod does not apply to the rental unit.

(1) This exemption is based on a State law and there is no fraud or mistake.

- 000019 !




f’q‘gjﬂ \ ‘{f\ N\

P e e
i

o Y O N
SEHT ARBITR AT 1) 1)

WIWDEC -5 py s oy,

L. Justification for Rent Increase

Date of Contested Rent Increase: 10/10/18 effective 12/15/18
Justification: Single Family Home exemption

I[II. Exemption Attachment

1. Did the prior tenant leave after beihg given a notice to quit (Civil Code Section 1946)?
No .

2. Did the prior tenant leave after being given a notice of rent increase (Civil Code Section

- 827)? ‘

No , ‘

3. Was the prior tenant evicted for cause?
No :

~ 4. Are there any outstanding violations of building housing, fire or safety codes in the unit

or building?
No

5. Is the unit a single family dwelling or condominium that can be sold separately?
Yes : ,

6. Did the petitioning tenant have roommates when he/she moved in?
No , ‘

7. If the unit is a condominium, did you purchase it? No
If'so: 1) from whom? N/A 2) Did you purchase the entire building? N/A

000020 °




C P £ ' }

# ¢
d;'/( H" ' £ ‘
CITY OF OAKLAND (i |Eof date Stamip. . -
RENT ADJUSTMENT PROGRAM [ o 1y o o
P.O. Box 70243 ' RS P

Oakland, CA 94612-0243
(510) 238-3721

CITY oF OAKLAND

TENANT PETITION

Please Fill Qut This Form As Completely As You Can. Failure to provide needed information may
_result in your petition being rejected or delayed.

Please print legibly : :
. Yqur Name ' . Rental Address (with zip code) Telephone:
| CHESTER "CHASE" MARTIN | 5553 KALES AVENUE . - : |
KRISTEN PONGER OAKLAND, CA 94618 B-mail *
Your Representative’s Narﬁe Mailing Address (with zip code) . Telephone;
Email;
Property Owner(s) namé(s) A Mailing Address (with zip code) » Telephone: o
SHERRY ZALABAK 402 VERMONT AVENUE Email:
B BERKELEY, CA 94707
. Property Manager or Management Co. Mailing Address (with zip code) Telephone:
(if applicable)
Email:

Number of units on the property:

Type of unit you rent .. O Apartment, Room, or
(check one) x House g Condominium Live-Work
Are you curtent on ;

our rent? (check one) x Yes 0 No

If you are not current on your rent, please explain. (If you are legally withholding rent state what, if any; habitability violations exist in
your uuit.) ’ s .

L. GROUNDS FOR PETITION: Check all that apply. You must check at least one box. For all of the
grounds for a petition see OMC 8.22.070 and OMC 8.22.090. I (We) contest one or more rent increases on
one or more of the following grounds: '

(2) The CPI and/or banked rent increase notice 1 was given was calculated incorrectly.

(b) The increase(s) exceed(s) the CPI Adjustment and is (are) unjustified or is (are) greater than 10%.

» 4 (c) Treceived a rent increase notice before the property owner received approval from the Rent Adjustment

.| Program for such an increase and the rent increase exceeds the CPI Adjustment and the available banked
rent increase.

Rev. 731117 For more information phone (510) 238-3721. ' 1

000021




LN

f.;-""'\ { -y

- (d) No written notice of Rent Program was given to me together with the notice of increase(s) I am
contesting. (Only for increases noticed afier July 26, 2000.)
X (¢) The property owner did not give me the required form “Notice of the Rent Adjustment Program” at least
6 months before the effective date of the rent increase(s). '
(f) The rent increase notice(s) was (were) not given to me in compliance with State law.

(g8) The increase I am contesting is the second increase in my rent in a 12-month period.

| (h) There is a current health, safety, fire, or building code violation in my unit, or there are serious problems
with the conditions in the unit because the owner failed to do requested repair and maintenance. (Complete
Section III on following page) ' '
(i) The owner is providing me.with fewer housing services than I received previously or is charging me for
services originally paid by the owner. (OMC 8.22.070(F): A decrease in housing services is considered an
increase in rent. A tenant may petition for a rent adjustment based on a decrease in housing services.)
(Complete Section III on following page) :

(i) My rent was not reduced after a prior rent increase period for a Capital Improvement had expired.

1 (k) The proposed rent increase would exceed an overall increase of 30% in 5 years. (The 5-year period
begins with rent increases noticed on or after August 1, 2014).

X (DI wish to contest an exemption from the Rent Adjustment Ordinance because the exemption was based on
fraud or mistake. (OMC 8.22, Article ]) : :

(m) The owner did not give me a summary of the justification(s) for the increase despite my written request.

(n) The rent was raised illegally after the unit was vacated as set forth under OMC 8.22.080.

1I. RENTAL HISTORY: (You must complete this section)

Date you moved into the Unit: NOVEMBER 24, 2014  Initial Rent: $ 2,600 /month

When did the owner first provide you with the RAP NOTICE, a written NOTICE TO TENANTS of the
existence of the Rent Adjustment Program? Date: November 4, 2018. Ifnever provided, enter “Never.”

Is your rent subsidized or controlled by any government agency, including HUD (Section 8)? Yes No

List all rent increases that you want to challenge. Begin with the most recent and work backwards. If
you need additional space, please attach another sheet. If you never received the RAP Notice you can
contest all past increases. You must check “Yes” next to each increase that you are challenging,

Date you Date increase Monthly rent increase .Are you Contesting Did You Receive a
received the goes info effect this Increase in this Rent Program
notice (mo/day/year) Petition?* Notice With the

(mo/day/year) From To ) o Notice Of

. ‘ Increase?
11/4/18 01/03/19 $2,652 $4,500 ~XYes ONo Xves 0ONo
06/05/18 08/01/18 $2 652 $4,500 OYes ¥No OYes X No
12/1116 01/01/17 $2,600 32,652 OYes  ¥No OYes XNo

' $ $ OYes 0ONo OYes 0ONo
$ $ OYes ONo OYes ONo
$ $ OYes 0ONo OYes ONo

Rev. 753117 ,  For more information phone (510) 238-3721. 2

000022




-~ | N

* You have 90 days from the date of notice of increase or from the first date you received written notice of the
existence of the Rent Adjustment program (whichever is later) to contest a rent increase. (OM.C.8.22.090 A 2) If
you did not receive a RAP Notice with the rent increase you are contesting but have received it in the past, you
have 120 days to file a petition. (O.M.C. 8.22.090 A 3) '

Have you ever filed a petition for this rental unit?
o Yes
@ No

List case number(s) of all Petition(s) you have ever filed for this rental unit and all other relevant Petitions:
T18-0414 Martin et al v. Zalabak

- 1IL. DESCRIPTION OF DECREASED OR INADEQUATE HOUSING SERVICES:
Decreased or inadequate housing services are considered an increase in rent. If you claim an unlawful
rent increase for problems in your unit, or because the owner has taken away a housing service, you must
complete this section. ' ’

Are you being charged for services originally paid by the owner? o Yes ¥No
Have you lost services originally provided by the owner or have the conditions changed? OYes XNo
- Are you claiming any serious problem(s) with the condition of your rental unit? OYes XNo

If you answered “Yes” to any of the above, or if you checked box (h) or (i) on page 2, please attach a
separate sheet listing a description of the reduced service(s) and problem(s). Be sure to include the
following: ’ ’ '

1) alist of the lost housing service(s) or problem(s);

2) the date the loss(es) or problem(s) began or the date you began paying for the service(s)

3) when you notified the owner of the problem(s); and :

4) how you calculate the dollar value of lost service(s) or problem(s).
Please attach documentary evidence if available.

You have the option to have a City inspector come to your unit and inspect for any code violation. To make an
appointment, call the City of Oakland, Code of Compliance Unit at (510) 238-3381. '

1V, VERIFICATION : The tenant must sign:

I declare under penalty of perjury pursuant to the laws of the State of California that everything I said
“in this petition is true and that all of the documents attached to the petition are true copies of the

originals.
i

oY W alie

Tenant’s Signathge ) : " Date

L. | ]

Rev. 3117 . For more information phone (510) 238-3721. 3

1000023




Y. MEDIATION AVAILABLE: Mediation is an entirely voluntary process to assist you in reaching an
agreement with the owner. If both parties agree, you have the option to mediate your complaints before a
hearing is held. If the parties do not reach an agreement in mediation, your case will go to a formal hearing
before a different Rent Adjustment Program Hearing Officer. '

You may choose to have the mediation conducted by a Rent Adjustment Program Hearing Officer or select an
“outside mediator, Rent Adjustment Program Hearing Officers conduct mediation sessions free of charge. If
you and the owner agree to an outside mediator, please call (510) 238-3721 to make arrangements. Any fees
charged by an outside mediator for mediation of rent disputes will be the responsibility of the parties
requesting the use of their services. A : ‘

Mediation will be scheduled only if both parties agree (after both your petition and the owner’s response have
been filed with the Rent Adjustment Program). The Rent Adjustment Program will not schedule a
mediation session if the owner does not file a response to the petition. Rent Board Regulation 8.22.100.A.

If you want to schedule your case for mediation, sign below.

I agree to have my case mediated by a Rent Adjustment Program Staff Hearing Officer (no charge).
mﬁ”\ vi/alig

L ~____ Tenant’s Signature ‘ . Date

VL._IMPORTANT INFORMATION:

Time to File '

This form must be received at the offices of the Rent Adjustment Program (“RAP”) within the time limit for
filing a petition set out in the Rent Adjustment Ordinance (Oakland Municipal Code, Chapter 8.22). RAP staff
cannot grant an extension of time by phone to file your petition. Ways to Submit. Mail to: Oakland Rent
‘Adjustment Program, P.O. Box 70243, Oakland, CA 94612; In person: Date stamp and deposit in Rent
Adjustment Drop-Box, Housing Assistance Center, Dalziel Building, 250 Frank H. Ogawa Plaza, 6% F loor,

Oakland; RAP Online Petitioning System: http://rapwp.oaklandnet.com/petition-forms/. For more

information, please call: (510) 238-3721.

File Review ' '

Your property owner(s) will be required to file a response to this petition with the Rent Adjustment office
within 35 days of notification by the Rent Adjustment Program. When it is received, the RAP office will send
you a copy of the Property Owner’s Response form. Any attachments or supporting documentation from the
owner will be available for review in the RAP office by appointment. To schedule a file review, please call the
Rent Adjustment Program office at (510) 238-3721. It you filed your petition at the RAP Online Petitioning
System, the owner may use the online system to submit the owner response and attachments, which would be
accessible there for your review.

VII. HOW DID YOU LEARN ABOUT THE RENT ADJUSTMENT PROGRAM?

Printed form provided by the owner

Pamphlet distributed by the Rent Adjustment Program
Legal services or community organization

Sign on bus or bus shelter

Rent Adjustment Program web site

Other (describe):

| b4

Rev. 73117 - For more information phone (510) 238-3721. 4

000024




Chester Martin & Kristen Ponger
5553 Kales Avenue '
Oakiand, CA 94618

November 7, 2018

Housing and Community Development Department
Rent Adjustment Program (RAP)
City of Oakland,; CA

Re: Addition to RAP Case no. T18-0414 Martin et al v. Zalabak

| Chester “"Chase” Martin & Kristen Pohger, “Tenants”

Sherry Zalabak, “Landlord” :
Rental Property Address: 5553 Kales Ave, Oakland, CA 94618

To Whom it May Concern:
Tenants are filing an additional petition to add to the existing case number T18-0414, filed

August 3rd. Tenants are filing current petition to contest Landlord’s second notification of a rent
increase of 70%, raising the rent from $2,652/mo. to $4,500/mo [Attachment AA).

‘Tenants Martin and Ponger are contesting the increase on the following grounds:

1. The increase exceeds the CP| Adjustment and is unjustified and greater than 10%.

2. lreceived a rent increase notice before the property owner received approval from the

Rent Adjustment Program for such an increase and the rent increase exceeds the CPI

Adjustment and the available banked rent increase. ' ‘

The proposed rent increase would exceed an overall increase of 30% in 5 years.

4. lwish to contest an exemption from the Rent Adjustment Ordinance because the
~ exemption was based on fraud or mistake.

w

Key Points: ,
® 35553 Kales Avenue has been rented as a multi-unit property, with two dwelling units with
separate leases since before current tenants Kristen and Chase signed a lease for Unit
Ain 2014
¢ Tenants entered into a lease agreement in 2014 based on the fact that the property was
a duplex and protected under rent control
¢ Upon signing the lease in 2014, Unit B of the duplex was already leased to Tenants
LeAnne (Fowlkes) and Mike Devol on a separate lease agreement (2011-2017)
o Since 2014, Unit B has had two different sets of tenants paying rent under their own
respective leases '
o 2011-2017: LeAnne (Fowlkes) and Mike Devol [Attachment FF]; $1,070/month
o 2017-2018: Lindsay Byrd and Isabel Avellan [Attachment D]; $1,400/month

000025




Martin/Ponger/Zalabak Petition
November 7, 2018
Page2of2 -

Since the original petition was filed on August 3rd, the following has occurred:

On Monday, August 6th, Tenants Chester Martin and Kristen Ponger notified Landlord Sherry
Zalabak of filed RAP petition [Attachment BB]. On August 8th, 2018 Tenants Chester Martin .
- and Kristen Ponger received an email from distressed landlord Sherry Zalabak about the filed
RAP petition, acknowledging the second unit on the property [Attachment CC]. Landlord
proceeded to show up at the tenant’s house unannounced the following day, emotionally
pleading that tenants withdraw the petition and handle this without legal involvement. Tenant

- Chester Martin agreed and filed to withdraw the petition in-person at office of the City of
Oakland Rent Program later that week [Attachment DD]. Unbeknownst to Martin the
withdrawal was never processed. In September, Tenants proceeded to proactively and
voluntarily pay the legal CPI rent increase of 3.4%, as they believed this was a fair resolution.

Despite Landlord’s request for Tenants not to take legal action, on November 4, 2018 Tenants
Chester Martin and Kristen Ponger received two letters from Alana Grice Conner of Fried &
Williams Attorneys at Law [Attachment AA, EE]. The first letter notified the tenants that the
landlord is rescinding the original Sixty-Day Notice Notice of Change to Terms of Tenancy
[Attachment EE] and Pre-Move Out Negotiations Disclosure Form, which the tenants refused
to accept. The second letter was a new Sixty-Day Notice of Change to Terms of Tenancy

[Attachment AA].

Glossary of Attachments:
Tenants are providing the following attached documentation outlining our historical rental
agreement and series of events that led to this petition.
® Attachment AA: Sixty-Day Notice of Change to Terms of Tenancy
Attachment BB: E-mail from Tenant notifying Landlord of filed RAP Petition
. Attachment CC: E-mail from Landlord acknowledging second unit on property
Attachment DD: E-mail from Tenant to Landlord stating the withdrawal of RAP petition
Attachment EE: Rescinding Sixty-Day Notice of Change to Terms of Tenancy from June
5, 2018
¢ Attachment FF: LeAnne Devol's Bank Statement with proof of rent payment to Sherry
Zalabak

*Please see original petition, case no. T18-0414, Martin et al v. Zalabak for complete
background story and additional information.

000026




w?

rm | ' u

CITY OF OAKLAND .
RENT ADJUSTMENT PROGRAME [#2tTRATION PROS
P.O. Box 70243

Oakland, CA 94612-0243 ~ 0I9FEB IS PH 3 92
- 510) 238-3721
CITY OoF OAKLAND (>10) PROPERTY OWNER
' RESPONSE

Please Fill Out This Form As Completely As You Can. Failure to provide needed information
may result in your response being rejected or delayed.

CASE NUMBER T 18-0472

Your Name Complete Address (with zip code) Telephone:
Sherry Zalabak : 402 Vermont Avenue AR
Berkeley, CA 94707 -
A Email:
Your Representative’s Name (if any) Complete Address (with zip code) Telephone:
Alana Grice Conner 1901 Harrison Street, 14th Floor
Fried & Williams LLP | Oakland, CA 94612 Email:
Tenant(s) Name(s) » Complete Address (with zip code) Telephone:
Chester "Chase" Martin 5553 Kales Avenue N
Kristen Ponger Oakland, CA 94618
Email:
Property Address (If the property has more than one address, list all addresses) Total number of units on
5553 Kales Avenue, Oakland, CA 94618 : property
. Single Family Residence

Have you paid for your Oakland Business License? Yes &l No [ Lic. Number:__ 00182031
The property owner must have a current Oakland Business License. If it is not current, an Owner Petition or
Response may not be considered in 2 Rent Adjustment proceeding, Please provide proof of payment.

Have you paid the current year’s Rent Program Service Fee ($68 per unit)? Yes B No [0 APN48A-7043-40
The property owner must be current on payment of the RAP Sérvice Fee. If the fee is not current, an Owner Petition
or Response may not be considered in a Rent Adjustment proceeding. Please provide proof of payment.

Date on which you acquired the buildingi 10/07 /10 .

Is there more than one street address on the parcel? Yes [1 No H.

Type of unit (Circle One):[House} Condominium/ Apartment, room, or live-work

L JUSTIFICATION FOR RENT INCREASE You must check the appropriate justification(s)
box for each increase greater than the Annual CPI adjustment contested in the tenant(s) petition.
For the detailed text of these justifications, see Oakland Municipal Code Chapter 8.22 and the Rent

1

For more information phone (510)-238-3721.
Rev. 3/28/17

000027




Board Regulations. You can get additional information and copies of the Ordinance and
Regulations from the Rent Program office in person or by phoning (510) 238-3721.

You must prove the contested rent increase is justified. For each justification checked on the
following table, you must attach organized documentary evidence demonstrating your entitlement
to the increase. This documentation may include cancelled checks, receipts, and invoices.
Undocumented expenses, except certain maintenance, repair, legal, accounting and management
- expenses, will not usually be allowed.

Date of Banking Increased Capital Uninsured Debt Fair
Contested (deferred - Housing Improvements  Repair Service Return
Increase annual Service Costs Costs
increases ) v
0o O O O O O
O a a O O O
O o O O o [

If you are justifying additional contested increases, please attach a separate sheet.

II. RENT HISTORY If you contest the Rent History stated on the Tenant Petition, state the
correct information in this section. If you leave this section blank, the rent history on the tenant’s
petition will be considered correct :

The tenant moved into the rental unit on November 24, 2014

The tenant’s initial rent including all services provided was: $_2,600.00 / month.

‘Have you (or a previous Owner) given the City of Oakland’s form entitled “NOTICE TO TENANTS OF
RESIDENTIAL RENT ADJUSTMENT PROGRAM” (“RAP Notice”) to all of the petitioning tenants?
Yes X No - Idon’t know :

If yes, on what date was the Notice first given? October 10, 2018 but unit is exempt

Is the tenant current on the rent? Yes _ X No

Begin with the most recent rent and work backwards. If you need more space please attach another sheet.

Date Notice Date Increase : Rent Increased Did you provide the “RAP
Given Effective © | NOTICE” with the notice
(mo./day/year) From To of rent increase?
10/10/18 | 1271518 $ 2,652.00 $ 4,500.00 ¥Yes ONo
06/05/18 08/01/18 $2,652.00 $4,500.00(Resoinded OYes MNo
12/1/16 L1/17 $ 2,600.00 $ 2,652.00 OYes ®No
$ : $ OYes [ONo
$ $ OYes 0ONo
2

For more information phone (510)-238-3721, -
Rev. 3/28/17

000028




o

In N

iy

L EXEMPTION

If you claim that your property is exempt from Rent Adjustment (Oakland Municipal Code
Chapter 8.22), please check one or more of the grounds:

The unit is a single family. residence or conciominium'exempted by the Costa Hawkins Rental
. Housing Act (California Civil Code 1954.50, et seq.). If claiming exemption under Costa-Hawkins,
please answer the following questions on a separate sheet:

Did the prior tenant leave after being given a notice to quit (Civil Code Section 1946)?

Did the prior tenant leave after being given a notice of rent increase (Civil Code Section 827)?

Was the prior tenant evicted for cause? . '

Are there any outstanding violations of building housing, fire or safety codes in the unit or building?

Is the unit 4 single family dwelling or condominium that can be sold separately?

Did the petitioning tenant have roommates when he/she moved in?

If the unit is a condominium, did you purchase it? 1f so: [) from whom? 2) Did- you purchase the entire
building?

NS Lo -

00 The rent for the unit is controlled, regulated or subsidized by a governmental unit, agency or
authority other than the City of Qakland Rent Adjustment Ordinance.

| The unit was newly constructed and a certificate of occupancy was issued for it on or after
January 1, 1983,

] On the day the petition was filed, the tenant petitioner was a resident of a motel, hotel, or
boarding house less than 30 days.

o The subject unit is in a building that was rehabilitated at a cost of 50% or more of the average
basic cost of new construction. :

m] The unit is an accommodation in a hospital, convent, monastery, extended care facility,
convalescent home, non-profit home for aged, or dormitory owned and operated by an educational
institution. ' :

0 The unit is located in a building with three or fewer units. The owner occupies one of the units
continuously as his or her principal residence and has done so for at least one year.

1V. DECREASED HOUSING SERVICES

If the petition filed by your tenant claims Decreased Housing Services, state your position tegarding the
- tenant’s claim(s) of decreased housing services. If you need more space atlach a separate sheet, Submit
any documents, photographs or other tangible evidence that supports your position,

V. VERIFICATION

I declare under penalty of perjury pursuant to the laws of th¢ State of California that all
statements made in this Response are true and that ali of the documents attached hereto
are true copies of the originals.

- [ L February 15,2019

Property Dwner’s Signature ' . Date

For more information phone (510)-238-3721.
Rev. 3/28/17 .

1000029




Landlord Narrative

The Tenants’ petition must be dismissed because the Rent Adjustment Program doesn’t have
jurisdiction. The rental unit is exempt from rent control because it is a single-family residence
exempted by the Costa-Hawkins Rental Housing Act (California Civil Code §1954.50 et seq.).
See Attachment A, Property Assessment Information. Futthermore, the Tenants’ petition is
incomplete because the Tenants failed to sign the verification under penalty of perjury which is
- required. Nonetheless, if the hearing officer seeks to further review the petition, Landlord
responds as follows: ' ' | '

To address the issues raised by Tenant in section I. Grounds for Petition, Landlord responds
as follows:

(b) The rental unit is exempt from rent control because it is a single-family residence
exempted by the Costa-Hawkins Rental Housing Act (California Civil Code 1954.50). The CPI
Adjustment does not apply to the rental unit. ' '

(c) The rental unit is exempt from rent control because it is a single-family residence
exempted by the Costa-Hawkins Rental Housing Act (California Civil Code 1954.50). The
property owner is not required to receive approval from the Rent Adjustment Program for the
contested rent increase. ' '

(¢) The rental unit is exempt from rent control because it is a single-family residence
exempted by the Costa-Hawkins Rental Housing Act (California Civil Code 1954.50). The
property owner is not required to provide the Notice of the Rent Adjustment Program (RAP
Notice) form. g

(k) The rental unit is exempt from rent control because it is a single-family residence
exempted by the Costa-Hawkins Rental Housing Act (California Civil Code 1954.50). The limit -
for rent increases over 30% over a 5-year period does not apply to the rental unit.

(1) This exemption is based on a State law and there is no fraud or mistake.

000030




1. Justification for Rent Increase

Date of Contested Rent Increase: 10/10/18 effective 12/ 15/18
Justification: Single Family Home exemption

II1. Exemption Attachment

1. Did the prior tenant leave after being given a notice to quit (Civil Code Section 1946)?
" No ' | :
2. Did the prior tenant leave after being given a notice of rent increase (Civil Code Section
827)? : '
No
3. Was the prior tenant evicted for cause?
- No
4. Are there any outstanding violations of building housing, fire or safety codes in the unit
or building? '
No
5. Is the unit a single family dwelling or condominium that can be sold separately?
Yes .
6. Did the petitioning tenant have roommates when he/she moved in?
No : ' '
7. If the unit is a condominium, did you purchase it? No
If so: 1) from whom? N/A 2) Did you purchase the entire building? N/A

000031




Rl - Y. T T O

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28

i«-’“‘-\ {aﬂ\
.-f-«:,"v.:ljft‘{] y
ST U GRS S
?lal(liagr\)i\??lconn%’ SBN 182676 REHT ATEITA U '
rie illiams LLP 1T DM A
1901 Harrison Street \ WI9FER 15 PH 3192

Oakland, CA 94612

Phone: (510) 625-0100

Fax:  (510) 550-3621
aconner@friedwilliams.com

Attorneys for Respondent and Owner
Sherry Zalabak

DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING & COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT AGENCY
RENT ADJUSTMENT PROGRAM

CITY OF OAKLAND
CHESTER “CHASE” MARTIN; CASE NO.: T18-0472
KRISTEN PONGER; :
‘ : ' : PROPERTY OWNER’S SUBMISSION OF
Petitioner/Tenants, TANGIBLE EVIDENCE
V. HEARING DATE: MARCH 5, 2019
TIME: 10:00 A.M.
SHERRY ZALABAK, ' PLACE: 250 FRANK H, OGAWA PLAZA, STE.
5313, OAKLAND, CA 94612
Respondent/Owner.

I. INTRODUCTION

‘Respondent Sherry Zalabak (“Respondent™) is the owner of the real property commonly known as
5553 Kales Avenue, Oakland, CA 94618 (the “Premises™), having acquired it in October 2010
following her brother, Stephen Lage’s death. A true and correct copy of the Declaration Re Death of
Life Tenant is attached hereto as Exhibit A. Prior to Mr. Lage’s death, he converted the detached garage |
for use as an office and residentiél studio. In 2010, Stephen was living in the house and Respondent was
providing full time care and usirig the studio. After Stephen passed, Respondent rented the house and
moved back home with her husband and rented the studio.

- On or around November 24, 2014 Respondent rented the Premises to Chester “Chase” Martin and
Kristen Ponger (“Petitioners™). A true and correct copy of the lease is attached hereto as Exhibit B. The

“studio” was occupied at the time the Petitioners moved in. Respondent discovered the unit was an

: 1
PROPERTY OWNER’S SUBMISSION OF TANGIBLE EVIDENt

- 000032




O X 9 R W o

10
11
12
13
14

15 -

16

17

18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27

- 28

unpermitted unit in early 2018. Upon discovering the studio was only permitted for use as an office
space, Respondent pulled a pérmit and restored the garage to use as an office.

Respondent served a rent increase notice with the Notice to Tenants of the Residential Rent
Adjustment Program attached in 3 languages (English, Spanish, Chinese) on October 10, 2018. A true
and correct copy of the Notice of Change to Terms of Tenancy is attached hereto as Exhibit C.

On November 9, 201.8, Petitidners filed this petition contesting a rent increase on the basis 1) The
increase exceeds the CPI Adjustment and is unjustified or is greater than 10%; 2) The Petitioner
received a rent increase notice before the property owner received approval from the Rent Adjustment
Program for such an increase and the rent increase exceeds the CPI Adjustment and the available
banked rent increase; 3) The Respondent did not give the Petitioners the required form “Notice of Rent
Adjustment Program: at least 6 months before the effective date of the rent increase; 4) the proposed
rent increase would exceed an overall increase of 30% in 5 years and; 5) Petitioners wish to contest an
exemption from the Rént Adjustment Ordinance because the exemption was based on fraud or mistake.

. LEGAL ARGUMENT

1. The increase exceeds the CPI Adjustment and | is unjustified or js greater than 10%

The CPI Adjustment does not apply to the rental unit. The rental unit is exempt from rent contfol
because it is a single-family residence exempted by the Cosfa-Hawkins Rental Housing Act (California
Civil Code 1654.50). A true and correct copy of the Alameda County Property Assessment Information
previously submitted to the City of Qakland Rent Adjustment Program is attached hereto as Exhibit D.
True and correct copies of photographs exhibiting the property is a single-family residence is attached
hereto as Exhibit E. True and correct copies of the Assessor’s Map 48A exhibiting the property as a
éingle-family residence is attached hereto as Exhibit F.

2. The Petitioner received a rent increase notice before the property owner received approval

from the Rent Adjustment Program for such an increase and the rent increase exceeds the CP1

Adjustment and the available banked rent increase

No approval was required, and no banking was requested. The rental unit is exempt from rent
control because it is a single-family residence exempted by the Costa-Hawkins Rental Housing Act

(California Civil Code 1654.50 A true and correct copy of the Alameda County Property Assessment

PROPERTY OWNER’S SUBMISSION OF TANGIBLE EVIDEM

- 000033




\OOO\IO\U:-D-U.)N

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24

25 |

26
27
28

Information previously submitted to the City of Oakland Rent Adjustment Program is attached hereto as
Exhibit D. True and correct copies of photographs exhibiting the property is a single-family residence is
attached hereto as Exhibit E. True and correct copies of the Assessor’s Map 48 A exhibiting the property
asa smgle ~family residence is attached hereto as Exhibit F. |

3. The Respondent did not give the Petitioners the required form “Notice of Rent Adjustment

Program at least 6 months before the effective date of the rent increase,

Respondent is not required to provide the Notice of the Rent Adjustment Program (RAP Notice)
form. The rental unit is exempt from rent control because it is a single-family residence exempted by the
Costa-Hawkins Rental Housing Act (California Civil Code 1654.5 (). A true and correct copy of the
Alameda County Property Assessment Information previously submitted to the City of Oakland Rent -
Adjustment Program is attached hereto as Exhibit D. True and correct copies of photographs exhibiting
the property is a single-family residence is attached hereto as Exhibit E. Ttue and correct copies of the

Assessor’s Map 48A exhibiting the property as a single-family residence is attached hereto as Exhibit F.

4. The proposed rent increase would exceed an overall increase of 30% in S years

The limit for rent increases over 30% over a 5-year period ldoes tlot apply to the rental unit. The
rental unit is exempt from rent control because it is a single-family residence exempted by the Costa- ,
Hawkins Rental Housing Act (California Civil Code 1654.50). A true and correct copy of the Alameda_
County Property Assessment Infotmation previously submitted to the City of Oakland Rent Adjustment
Program is attached hereto as Exhibit D. True and correct copies of photographs exhibiting the property
is a single-family residence is attached hereto as Exhibit E. True and correct copies of the Assessor’s
Map 48A exhibiting the propert)t as a single-family residence is attached hereto as Exhibit F.

S. Exemption based on fraud or mistake

The Petitioners allege Respondent;s claim for exemption from rent control is based on fraud or
mistake and wish to contest an exemption. Respondent denies the Petitioner’s claim. This exemption is
based on a State law and there is tlo fraud or mistake,

V Respondent became aware of the unpermitted studio being used for residential purposes and stopped
using it, restoring the Premise to a single-family residence by pulling a permit over the counter and

removing the stove in the unpermitted studio. True and correct copies of the Permit Application

3
PROPERTY OWNER’S SUBMISSION OF TANGIBLE EVIDE

1000034




f-"'“‘\. . '/ {ﬂ\‘ s

Worksheet and Record Details éxhibiting the removal of the stove and conversion of the studio to an
office is attached hereto as Exhibit G.
II. CONCLUSION

Respondent has provided enough eyideﬁce_ to prove the Premises is a single-family residence and
thus any challenge to the rent increase moot. The Rent Adjustment Program does not have jurisdiction
over single-family homes exemptéd by the Costa-Hawkins Renal Housing Act, therefor Petitioner’s
petition should be dismissed.

Dated: February 15, 2019

By: Alana Grice Conner
Attorneys for Respondent and Owner
Sherry Zalabak

4 .
PROPERTY OWNER’S SUBMISSION OF TANGIBLE EVIDENC®

'~ 000035




A { ™

.5’1

T Acknqwledgement of Notary Public

State of California _ }
County of Contra Costa -}

before me, F. Michael Hanson, a Notary Public, personally appeared SHERRY
ABAK, who proved to me on the basis of satisfactory evidence to be the person whose name
tibed to the within instrument and acknowledged to me that she executed the same in her authorized
city, and that by her signature on the instrument the person, or the entity upon behalf of which the
rson acted, executed the instrument, C

my hand and official seal.

' , #1731898
) itk S §
Q> My Comm, Exphtos Apdi 11, 2011

ify’under PENALTY OF PERJURY under the laws of the State of California that the foregoing

Legal Description

Beginning at a point on the Southern Line of Kales Avenue distant thereon Westerly 166.66 feet from the
intersection thereof with the Western line of Broadway as said avemue and broadway are shown on the Map
hereinafter referred to; running thence Westerly along said line of Kales Avenue, 40 feet; thence at right
angles Southerly 65 feet; thence at right angles Easterly 40 feet; and thence at right angles Northerly 65

feet to the point of beginning.

Being a portion of Lots 168 and 169, "Map of Woodlawn Park", filed June 28, 1905, Map Book 20, Page
48, Alameda County Records. ' )

SUBJECT TO all covenants, conditions, restrictions, easements, rights of way, exceptions, reservations,
servitudes, limitations, uses, licenses, rights, agreerents, and other matters of record.

Declaration Re Death of Life Tenant - APN: 048A-~7043-040 - Page 2

000036




fold

2ALABAK.SA

ph,
i .
¢ {

Recorded at the request of:

W08 10/07/2010 02:56 P

F. MICHAEL HANSON, Esq. PATRICK 0 ‘CONNELL

WIRRAR

21.00

When recorded return to:

3 PGS

RN

o

Sherry Diane Zalabak
402 Vermont Avenue
Berkeley, California 94707

OFFICIAL RECORDS OF ALAMEDR COUNTY '

DECLARATION RE DEATH OF LIFE TENANT

I, Sherry Diane Zalabak, declare as follows:

I am of legal age (18 years or older). The decedent described in the attached certified copy of
Certificate of Death as Stephen Allen Lage is the same person as Stephen Allen Lage who is named as a
party in that Gift Grant Deed dated July 21, 2010 executed by Stephen Allen Lage, an unmarried man, to
Sherry D. Zalabak, a married woman as her separate property, which Gift Grant Deed also reserved a life
estate to Stephen Allen Lage, and which Gift Grant Deed was recorded as Document Number 2010201664
on July 21, 2010, in the official records of Alameda County, California, and concerns the real property
situated in the City of Oakland, County of Alameda, State of California, more particularly described as
follows: ' ,

See the Legal Description section cominencing on the following page, the contents of
which are incorporated herein by this reference, )
(commoply known as 5553 Kales Avenue, Oakland, Cal'ifomia)

APN: 048A-7043-040

I declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California that the foregoing is true
and correct,

Dated: Qctober 4, 2010

-

. DIANE ZAL
Mail Tax Statements To:

Sherry D. Zalabak
402 Vermont Avenue
Berkeley, California 94707

Declaration Re Death of Life Tenant - APN: 048A-7043-040 - Page 1

000037




= T B = W V) B R J* S Y

10
11

12

13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22

- 23

24
25
26
27
28

Fiiod & Wil 15 122676 WSEPR 11 Pl 2: 01
1901 Harrison Street

Oakland, CA 94612

Phone: 510) 625-0100

Fax: (510) 550-3621

aconner@friedwilliams.com

Attorneys for Respondent and Owner
Sherry Zalabak

DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING & COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT AGENCY
RENT ADJUSTMENT PROGRAM -

CITY OF OAKLAND
CHESTER “CHASE” MARTIN; CASENO.: T18-0114 & T18-0472
KRISTEN PONGER;
. PROPERTY OWNER’S SUPPLEMENTAL
Petitioner/Tenants, STATEMENT
V. HEARING DATE: APRIL 22, 2019
: TIME: 10:00 A.M.
SHERRY ZALABAK; PLACE: 250 FRANK H. OGAWA PLAZA, STE.
1 5313, OAKLLAND, CA 94612
Respondent/Owner.

Sherry Zalabak (“Respondent™) is the owner of the real property commonly known as 5553 Kales
Avenue, Oakland, CA 94618 (the “Premises”). Owner responds to the hearing officer’s request
regarding the back unit/office and evidence of new construction. The back unit/office is not new
construction. That phrase is defined by O.M.C. 8.22.030 Exemptions, “Dwelling units whiph were
newly constructed and received a certificate of occupancy on or after January 1, 1983..." While work
on the office was done in or around 2009, no certificate of occupancy was ever issued. Therefore, the
office is not “new construction”. '

Dated: April 11,2019 FRIED & WILLIAMS LLP

@Jzumﬁgfjt(kgkglm,

By: Alana Grice Conner
Attorneys for Respondent and Owner
Sherry Zalabak

1
PROPERTY OWNER’S SUPPLEMENTAL STATEMENT

000038

AR




gind ; .-".i."‘ll. he
PROOF_ OF SERVICE BY FIRST-CLASS MﬁlI\!ff».PR (] Pis 2:01

I declare that I am a resident of or employed in the County of Alameda, State of
‘California. I am over the age of eighteen years and am not a party this action. My
residence or business address is 1901 Harrison Street, 14th Floor, Oakland, CA 94612.

On April 11, 2019, I served the attached, concerning the action known as Martin, et al. v.
Zalabak, City of Oakland Rent Adjustment Program case no. T18-0114 & T18-0472:

PROPERTY OWNER’S SUPPLEMENTAL STATEMENT

on the parties herein in said action, by placing the envelope for collection and mailing
following our ordinary business practices. I am readily familiar with this business'
practice for collecting and processing correspondence for mailing with the United States
Postal Service. On the same day that correspondence is placed for collection and mailing,
it is deposited in the ordinary course of business with the United States Postal Service in a
sealed envelope with postage fully prepaid.

* The envelope was addressed, sealed and placed for collection and mailing, following thlS
business' ordinary business practices, from Oakland, California, as follows:

Chester Martin a.k.a. Chase Martin | Kristen Ponger
5553 Kales Avenue 5553 Kales Avenue

Oakland, CA 94618 ~ Oakland, CA 94618

I declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California that the
foregoing is true and correct, and this declaration was executed on April 11, 2019, at
Oakland, California.

//M%ﬁ

" Marena Peréz

."’
L

000039




* You have 90 days from the date of notice of increase or from the first date you received written notice of the .
existence of the Rent Adjustment program (whichever is later) to contest a rent increase. (OM.C.822.090 A2) It
you did not receive a RAP Notice with the rent increase you are contesting but have received it in the past, you

have 120 days to file a petition. (O.M.C.8.22.090 A 3) ‘

Have you ever filed a petition for this rental unit? L - R E c E Iv E D

QO Yes

A - C maae
List case number(s) of all Petition(s) you have ever filed for this rental unit and all oﬂﬁ!ﬁ%ﬁmﬁoem

11, DESCRIPTION OF DECREASED OR INADEQUATE HOUSING SERVICES:
Decreased or inadequate housing services are considered an increase in rent. If you claim an unlawful

rent increase for problems in your unit, or because the owner has taken away a housing service, you must
complete this section, '

Are you being charged for services originally paid by the owner? - OYes NNo
Have you lost services originally provided by the owner or have the conditions changed? OYes NNo
Are you claiming any serious problem(s) with the condition of your rental unit? OYes ® No

If you answered “Yes” to any of the above, or if you checked box (h) or (i) on page 2, please attach a

separate sheet listing a description of the reduced service(s) and problem(s). Be sure to include the
following: :

1) alist of the lost housing service(s) or probleru(s); '
2) the date the loss(es) or problem(s) began or the date you began paying for the service(s)
3) when you notified the owner of the problem(s); and ‘
4) how you calculate the dollar value of lost service(s) or problem(s).

Please attach documentary evidence if available. :

You have the option to have a City inspector come to your unit and inspect for any code violation. To make an
appointment, call the City of Oakland, Code of Compliance Unit at (510) 238-3381.

IV. VERIFICATION: The tenant must sign:

- Idedlare under penalty of perjury pursuant to the laws of the State of California that everything I said
in this petition is true and that all of the documents attached to the petition are true copies of the
originals. - ' '

(Wen | i \4/@\/\1{&/ : ’2—\‘\9\\6

~ Tenant’s Signature’ Date !

C

Rev. 731117 For more information phone (510) 238-3721. - ' 3

000040




L =B SIS - YL T N OO Y

10
11
12
13
14
15

16

17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28

~ o

RE f‘r_n\/{'r}
feur Cit rU: U‘\r\l MY
b f\ STRA FI0N PRas S
?laréa gr\;‘?eﬁConne[alrLIS)}BN 182676 _ i
rie illiams ;
1901 Harrison Street 2IIFES |5 Pt 3: 52
Oakland, CA 94612
Phone: 510) 625-0100
Fax:  (510) 550-3621
aconner@friedwilliams.com

Attorneys for Respondent and Owner
Sherry Zalabak

DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING & COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT AGENCY
RENT ADJUSTMENT PROGRAM

CITY OF OAKLAND
CHESTER “CHASE” MARTIN; CASE NO.: T18-0414
KRISTEN PONGER; :
PROPERTY OWNER’S SUBMISSION OF
Petitioner/Tenants, TANGIBLE EVIDENCE .
V. HEARING DATE: MARCH 5, 2019
: TIME: 10:00 A.M.
SHERRY ZALABAK; PLACE: 250 FRANK H. OGAWA PLAZA, STE.
5313, OAKLAND, CA 94612
Respondent/Owner.

I. INTRODUCTION

Respondent Sherry Zalabak (“Respondent”) is the owner of the real property commonly known as
5553 Kales Avenue, Oakland, CA 94618 (the “Premises”), >having acquired it in October 2010
following her brother, Stephen Lage’s death. A true and correct copy of the Declaration Re Death of
Life Tenant is attached hereto as Exhibit A. Prior to Mr. Lage’s death, he converted the detached garage
for use as an office and residential studio. In 2010, Stephen was living in the house and Respondent was
providing full time care and using the studio. After Stephen i)assed, Respondent rented the house and
moved back home with her husband and rented the studio. On or around November 24,2014
Respondent rented the Premises to Chester “Chase” Martin and Kristen Ponger (“Petitioners”). A true
and correct copy of the lease is attached héreto as Exhibit B. The “studio” was occupied at the time the -

Petitioners moved in. Respondent discovered the unit was an unpermitted unit in early 2018. Upon

1
PROPERTY OWNER’S SUBMISSION OF TANGIBLE EVINWN«

000041




\OOO\]O'\UI-PU.)[\.)

10
11
12
13
14
15

16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28

discovering the studio was only permitted for use as an office space, Respondent stopped renting the
unit for residential use movmg forward.

‘On or about June 5, 2018, Respondent served a rent increase notice on the Petitioners; under the
impression the Premises is a single—family residence. A true and correct copy of the 60 Day Notice of
Change in Terms of Tenancy is attached hereto as Exhibit C.

On August 3, 2018 Petitioners filed this petition contesting a rent inbreaée on the basis 1) The

increase exceeds the CPI Adjustment and is unjustified or is greater than 10%; 2) The Petitioner

received a rent increase notice before the property owner received approval from the Rent Adjustment

Program for such an increase and the rent increase exceeds the CPI Adjustment and the available
banked rent increase; 3) No written notice of Rent Program was given to the Petitioners with the notice
of increase contested; 4) The Respondent did not give the Petitioners the required form “Notice of Rent |-
Adjustment Program: at least 6 months before the effective date of the rent increase; 5) the proposed
rent increase would exceed an overall increase of 30% in 5 years and; 6) Petitioners wish to contest an
exemptlon from the Rent Adjustment Ordinance because the exemption was based on fraud or mistake.

II. PETITIONER’S PETITION SHOULD BE DENIED

On October 10, 2018, Respondent rescinded the Notice of Change to Terms of Tenancy served on

Petitioners and refunded Petitioners for overpayment by giving a rent credit in the amount of $360.00. A
true and correct copy of the rescission letter and i image of the check are attached hereto as Exhibit D.

III. CONCLUSION

Respondent has rescinded the rent increase making any challenge to the rent increase moot. Thus,

Petitioner's petition should be dismissed.

Dated:  February 15, 2019

By: Alana Grice Conndf ~
Attorneys for Respondent and Owner
Sherry Zalabac

.
PROPERTY OWNER’S SUBMISSION OF TANGIBLE EVIDE™ "

000042




CITY oF OAKLAND

DALZIEL BUILDING * 250 FRANK H. OGAWA PLAZA SUITE 5313 OAKLAND, CALIFORNIA 94612-2034 °

Housing and Commumty Development Department‘ . . TEL (510) 238-3721
Rent Adjustment Program , - . _ ‘ FAX (510)238-6181.
, ' R : CA Relay Service 711
HEARING DECISION
CASE NUMBERS: : 'T18-0414, Martin et. al. v. Zalabak
' ' T18-0472, Martin et al. v. Zalabak
PR‘OPERTY ADDRESS:, - 5553 Kales Avenue, Oékla,nd,- CA
DATES OF HEARING: March 5, 2019
S ' April 22, 2019‘ :
DATE OF DECISION: . April 30,2019
APPEARANCES: Chester Martin, Tenant

Kristen Ponger, Tenant -
Sherry Zalabak, Owner
Alana Grice Conner, Attorney for Owner

SUMMARY OF DECISION

The Tenant’s petitions are dlsmlssed

INTRODUCTION

The tenant filed the initial petition on August 3, 2018, T18-0414, which contests a
rent increase effective August 1, 2108, raising thelr rent from $2, 652.00 to
$4,500.00, on the following grounds:

Rent Increase Exceeds CPI or more than 10%;

No Pre-Approval of Increase;

No Concurrent RAP Notice; .
No RAP Notice 6 Months prior to the effective date of the increase;
Rent Increase exceeds an overall increase of 30% in 5 years.

000043




e | &

The tenant filed a second petition on November' 9, 2018, T18-0472, which contests
arent increase effective December 15, 2108, raising their rent from $2,652.00 to

$4,500.00, on the following grounds:

‘o Rent Increase Exceeds CPI or more than 10%; -

* No Pre-Approval of Increase; |

* No RAP Notice 6 Months prior to the effective date of the increase;
- ¢ Rent Increase exceeds an overall increase 0f30% in 5 years.

The owner filed a timely response in T18-0414 and an untimely response in"T18-
0472. The owner attended the hearing and was represented. The matter proceeded
to hearing on March 5,2019. Subsequently, the undersigned re-opened the matter
for further hearing on the construction of the back unit, including but not limited to
whether the second unit is new construction under the ordinance.

* ISSUE(S) PRESENTED

1. Is the subject unit exempt from the Rent Adjustmént Ordinance?

EVIDENCE

March 5, 2019

Rental History

The tenants moved into the unit November 24, 2014, for $2600.00 per month.
At the inception of their tenancy, it was a multi-unit property. The front unit and
the back unit were rented out to separate tenants, with separate leases. ! '

In January 2017, their rent was increased by the CPI, 2%, to $2652.00. They.
believe the back unit was raised by the same amount. They received a notice of
rent increase indicating the rent would be $4,500.00, effective January 3, 2019.
They have paid the uncontested portion of their rent, 2652.00 per month, pending -
the outcome of their petition. .

The tenants were first given a RAP Notice on November ‘4, 2018. They live in a
house; they dispute the designation as a single-family residence. When they moved

! The owner property response acknowledgés that the owner had an unpermitted use of the second unit,

000044




A,

N
‘"

in, there was a unit in the back. Subsequently, they removed the stove from the

other unit and applied for a permit to use it as a non-residential space. The stove is
currently being stored in the basement. The tenant claims the owner will put it back
in the unit when she lists the property for sale. | :

In 2018, the tenants in the rear unit moved. The back unit is unoccupied, but they -
do not have access to it. : : ‘

The owner testified that she received the property as an inheritance in 2010, Her
property is assessed as a single-family residence.> At the time she inherited the
property, the back unit was occupied. In June 2018, she served a rent increase _
notice. The petitioners filed a petition with the Rent Adjustment Program. The
owner retained counsel to respond to the petition. Subsequently, she became
aware that the studio unit was impermissible, which was confirmed with the permit
department. ' ' : ' '

After finding out that the space was permitted for an office, she returned the space
to non-residential use and removed the stove.’ ‘

The owner testified that she does have the original permit for creating the office
space but did not bring it to the hearing, -

~ The tenants argued that fhey rented what was by all intents and purposes a rent-
controlled unit and that the owner’s unilateral change to comply with the law was
motivated by bad faith. ' : : ' '

The property owner argued that by the removal of the illegal unit restored the .
single-family residence to its proper use and therefore restored its status as an
exempt unit. ‘ S

April 22, 2019

The undersigned re-opened the hearing to determine if the second unit qualified as
new construction under the ordinance. At the hearing, the tenant provided
documentation from the City of Oakland, which established that there was a
second structure on the property, which was a garage in'the 1930s.*

- Exhibit A, March Hearing. This Exhibit, and all other Exhibits to which reference is made in this Decision, were
admitted into evidence, '
3 Exhibit 11, March Hearing,
* Exhibit A, April Hearing.

000045




i | f“

The tenant testified that there was no permit to convert the garage structure to an
office. The records indicated that in 1993, the new amp circuits went out to the
garage.’ :

' FINDINGS OF FACT AND CONCLUSIONS OF LAW

Exemption

Costa-Hawkins: The Costa-Hawkins Rental Housing Act? provides that a dwelling
or unit which is separately alienable from any other dwelling or unit is exempt

from local rent control, except under certain circumstances. The Oakland Rent
Adjustment Ordinance specifically states that if a unit is covered under Costa-

~ Hawkins, it is exempt from the Ordinance.’

Exceptions to the Appli'cation of Costa-Hawkins:

A single-family residence is exempt from local rent control laws unless one or
- more of the following situations apphes :

(1) The tenancy began before J anuary 1, 1996

(3) The pr1or tenant was evicted for no cause

(4) The prior tenant vacated after being given a notice of rent increase
(5) There were serious health, safety, fire or building code violations for
which the owner was cited, and which were not corrected for six months
before the start of the current tenancy:

The tenants’ testimony that she initially rented a multi-unit property and that the
tenant in the back unit moved out and that the owner has not allowed subsequent

~ illegal residential use is credited. Accordingly, the subject unit has been restored to
~ asingle-family residence. Therefore, the house is exempt from the application of
the Oakland Rent Adjustment Ordinance. Because the subject unit is exempt from
the Ordinance, no other issues raised in the tenant petition can be addressed. -

/!
/1

3 Exhibit B, April Hearing,
6 Civil Code Section 1954.52(2)(3)
7 0.M.C. Section 8.22.030(A)(7)

000046




| ORDER
1. Petitions T18-0414 and T18-0472 are denied.

2. The subject unit is exefnptfrom the Rent Adjustment Ordinance pursuant to
Civil Code §1954.52(a)(3).

3. The unit is not exempt from paymént of the Rent Adjustment Service fee.

4. A Certificate of Exemption for the subject unit will be issued when this
Decision becomes final. '

Right to Appeal: This decision is the final decision of the Rent Adjustment
Program Staff. Either party may appeal this decision by filing a properly
completed appeal using the form provided by the Rent Adjustment Program. The
appeal must be received within twenty (20) calendar days after service of the
decision. The date of service is shown on the attached Proof of Service. If the
Rent Adjustment Office is closed on the last day to file, the appeal may be filed on
the next business day. ’ _

Dated: May 31,2019 | Elar{ Consuella Lathbejt
_ ' . Hearing Qfficer
' : Rent Adjust ogram

000047




{e“‘\._

f“"x .

PROOF OF SERVICE

Case Number T18-0414

1 am a resident of the State of California at least eighteen years of age. I am not a party to the Residential
. Rent Adjustment Program case listed above. I am employed in Alameda County, California. My business
address is 250 Frank H. Ogawa Plaza, Suite 5313, 5th Floor, Oakland, California 94612.

Today, I served the attached documents listed below by placing a true copy in a City of Oakland mail
collection receptacle for mailing on the below date at 250 Frank H. Ogawa Plaza, Suite 5313, 5th

Floor, Oakland, California, addressed to:

Documents Included
Hearing Decision

Owner

Sherry Zalabak

402 Vermont Avenue
Berkeley, CA 94707

Owner Representative

Alaria Grice Conner, Fried & Williams LL.
1901 Harrison Street 14th Floor '
Oakland, CA 94612

" Tenant o

~ Chester Martin
5553 Kales Avenue
Oakland, CA 94618

Tenant

Kristen Ponger
5553 Kales Avenue
- Oakland, CA 94618

- I'am readily familiar with the City of Oakland’s practice of collection and processing correspondence for
mailing. Under that practice an envelope placed in the mail collection receptacle described above would be
deposited in the United States mail with the U.S. Postal Service on that same day with first class postage

thereon fully prepaid in the ordinary course of business.

+ Ideclare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California that the above is true and correct.

Executed on June 07, 2019 in Oakland, CA.

AL

Brittni Lothlen

Oakland Rent Adjustment Program _

000048




s v | =

PROOF OF SERVICE
'Case Number T18-0472_

I am a resident of the State of California at least eighteen years of age. I am not a party to the Residential
Rent Adjustment Program case listed above. I am employed in Alameda County, California. My business
* address is 250 Frank H. Ogawa Plaza, Suite 5313, 5th Floor, Oakland, California 94612. :

- Today, I'served the attached documents listed below by placing a true copy in a City of Oakland mail
collection receptacle for mailing on the below date at 250 Frank H. Ogawa Plaza, Suite 5313, 5th
Floor, Oakland, California, addressed to: ' ' '

Documents Included
'Hearing Decision

Owner

Sherry Zalabak
402 Vermont Avenue
Berkeley, CA 94707

Owner Representative

Alana Grice Conner,

Fried & Williams, LLP

1901 Harrison Street 14th Floor
Oakland, CA 94612

Tenant

Chester Martin
5553 Kales Avenue
Oakland, CA 94618

Tenant

Kristen Ponger
5553 Kales Avenue
Oakland, CA 94618

I'am readily familiar with the City of Oakland’s practice of collection and processing correspondence for
mailing. Under that practice an envelope placed in the mail collection receptacle described aboye would be
deposited in the United States mail with the U.S. Postal Service on that same day with first class postage
thereon fully prepaid in the ordinary course of business. '

I declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California that the above is true and correct. -
Executed on June 07,2019 in Oakland, CA. :

ZZE

Brittni Lothlen

Oakland Rent Adjustment Program

000049




. KC/EC

r i

| | ITY BF BAKLANG
RENT ARBITRAT M Pt ot b

CITY OF OAKLAND ' BISJURET P 2: 06

RENT ADJUSTMENT PROGRAM :

250 Frank Ogawa Plaza, Suite 5313

Oakland, CA 94612

510) 238-3721
~cmvoroakiaND OO APPEAL
Appellant’s Name - : 7

[T Owner W‘Tenan’t‘ :

Chesrr Mackn + Leisbon Ponger
- Property Address (Include Unit Number) \

KL Laleg v baAumACA G4blB

Appellant’s Mailing Address (For receipt of notices) Case Number

S5s3 Leles pve ‘  Me-oiyy Tis-o41-2.
Date of Decision appealed

Oalland, CA qUple> 4,20.2.0]9

Name of Representative (if any) ' Representative’s Mailing Address (For notices)

Please select your ground(s) for appeal from the list below. As part of the appeal, an explanation must
be provided responding to each ground for which you are appealing. Each ground for appeal listed -
. below includes directions as to what should be included in the explanation. ‘

1) There are math/clerical errors that require the Hearihg Decision to be updated. (Pléase clearly
explain the math/clerical errors.) E

2) Appealing the decision for one of thie grounds below (required):

a) , ﬁZ{ The decision is inconsistent with OMC Chapter 8.22, Rent Board Regulations or prior decisions
of the Board. (In your explanation, you must identify the Ordinance section, regulation or prior Board
decision(s) and describe how the description is inconsistent.).

b) [ The decision is inconsistent with decisions issued by other Hearing Officers. (In your explanation,
You must identify the prior inconsistent decision and explain how the decision is inconsistent,)

c) E{The decision raises a new policy issue that has not been decided by the Board. (In your explanation,
you must provide a detailed statement of the issue and why the issue should be decided in your favor.).

d) [ The decision violates federal, state or local law. (71 your explanation, you must provide a detailed
Statement as to what law is violated,)

€) N/ The decision is not supported by substantial evidence. (In your explanation, you must explain why
the decision is not supported by substantial evidence Jound in the case record,)

For more information phone (510) 238-3721.
Rev. 6/18/2018

000050




{f"’“x, ' - fg‘-"‘”Q

. D [J I was denied a sufficient opportunity to present my claim or respond to the petitioner’

s claim. (In

Yyour explanation, you must describe how you were denied the chance to defend your claims and what
evidence you would have presented. Note that a hearing is not required in every case. Staff may issue a

decision without a hearing if sufficient facts to make the decision are not in dispute.)

g) -~ [ The decision denies the Owner a fair return on my investment. (You may appeal on this ground only
when your underlying petition was based on a fair return claim. You must specifically state why you have been:

denied a fair return and attach the calculations supporting your claim,)

h) (1 Other. (In your explanation, you must attach a detailed explanation of your grounds for appeal,)

Submissions to the Board must not exceed 25 pages from each party, and théy must be received by the Rent
Adjustment Program with a proof of service on opposing party within 15 days of filing the appeal, Only the first
25 pages of submissions from each party will be considered by the Board, subject to Regulations 8.22.010(A)(5).

Please number attached pages consecutively. Number of pages attached:

* You must serve a copy‘of your appeal on the opposing parties or your appeal may be dismissed, ®

I declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California that on \Yune 7.4

,20 19,

I placed a copy of this form, and all attached pages, in the United States mail or deposited it with a commercial
carrier, using a service at least as expeditious as first class mail, with all postage or charges fully prepaid,

addressed to each opposing party as follows:

Address Hoo Lervnand Ave

Citv.StateZip Backelo, O AT

Name AoreCoiie Csnnes |

1901 Harrisen Sheak, 4N Qieor

it State Zip Oallaral | O 44(, 12

For more information phone (510) 238-3721.

Rev. 6/18/2018

SIGNATURE of APPEL, ANT or DESIGNATED REPRESENTATIVE, DATE

000051




{y\mf-\ B . ffnn. .

Chester Martin & Kristen Ponger
5553 Kales Avenue

Oakland, CA 94618

June 27, 2019

Rent Adjustment Program (RAP)
City of Oakland, CA
Re: Appeal

Case Number(s):
T18-0414
- T18-0472

Tenant(s): -
Chester "Chase” Martin
Kristen Ponger

Landlord:
Sherry Zalabak

Rental Property Address: 5553 Kales Avenue, Qakland, CA 94618
Tenants Cause for Appeal: .
We are appealing the decision on the following grounds:

1. (a) The-decision is inconsistent with OMC Chapter 8.22.060
' A. Notice at the Commencement of Tenancy
C. Failing to Give Notice : _
2. (c) The decision raises a new policy issue that has not been decided by the Board
3. (e) The decision is not supported by substantial evidence

Key Points:

1. (a) The decision is inconsistent with OMC Chapter 8.22.060:

- As stated in Case T18-0414, Tenants never received notice of RAP at the
commencement of our tenancy or 6 months prior to rent increase notice (OMC
8.22.060). The property'was then being rented asa multi-unit property (confirmed by
landlord). The first RAP notice was provided on November 4, 2018.

000052




e ) -

2. (c) The decision raises a new policy issue that has not been decided by the Board
- Ifan owner can remove an illegal unit from the rental market in order to restore their
property’s status to exempt for the purposes of evading OMC Chapter 8.22, so that the
- owner can then raise the remaining tenant's rent 70%, how does that foster the fair
housing purpose of the program?

3. (e) The decision is not supported by substantial evidence:
- Hearing Decision Summary from March 5th hearing includes assessments contradlctory
to factual evidence filed.in tenant petition ' '
- There is no evudence that the back unit was occupied when the owner inherited
the property. No proof of occupancy was submitted foir. time prior to 2012
- There is no evidence that the owner was unaware of the legal status of the back
unit. The evidence shows the opposite. Owner claims that she had no knowledge
of the legality of the unit until tenants filed a petition. As you can see in Exhibit H
[attached] from T18-0414 petition, which is dated May 25th, 2018 discussion of
the legality of the unit had been raised at this point. This had been discussed
between landiord and tenant on many occasions.
- There is no original permit for the “office”, therefore the owner's application for a
permit to “restore io office use” is invalid and the unit is still deemed a residential
- structure. Hearing officer accepted a verbal confirmation from the landlord who
. Claimed to have permit at home. She accepted this as eVIdence despite the hard
evidence provided by tenants provmg there is no evidence or record of such
permit. Records obtained from the City of Oakland.

In Summary | '

The landlord has strategically used certain tactics suoh as removal of the stove to evade rent .
control (The stove remains in the laundry room with the intention of reinstalling it to the back
unit). This rerhains a bad faith rent increase and an attempt to force tenants out of the home. A
single-family dwelling is not exempt and is considered a two-unit building if there is another
residential structure on the same lot, regardiess of the legality of the unit. Owners dpplication for
permit to “restore to of_fice'use” is invalid as there is no orig‘inal permit. Therefore, the property

remains as a two-unit property.

000053




£
712912018 ' ¥ wll-Peim Kules Ave. Fwd: Lense HExplration and Offer m( wse

i‘%w-i Ofuf \a i‘ ' ' Chase Martin ST

. N - LY. B T U VO smme b N et My e et n A e

Priﬁt Kales Ave. Fwd: Lease Expiration and Offer to Purchase
2 messapes '

et e e e e e

Kristen Ponger ) Mon, Jul 23, 2018 at 11:53 AM
To: Chase Martin

Frem: Chase Martin

Date: Fri, May 25, 2018 at 2:08 PM

Subject: Re: Leage Expiration and Offar to Purchase
To: Sherry Zalabak o

Cc; kristen Ponger =~ T oteees

Hi Sherry,

We have been thinking about you guys and really hope that John is hanging in there. | am sure you all are dolng everything

you can to make the best out of a difficult situation. We are hoping for the bast. .

- We appreciate you getling that stained leaf glass back to us, it was a gift with sentimenta) value to us. You can leave it in
our mailbox anytime. The wead whacker you saw was the Black & Decker ons that our neighbor leaned us, but the one we
are missing is a nice (also orange) STIHL whacker that Ron gifted to me when we move into Kales, and it's still missing.
Can you please follow up with Maco about this? Thank you! ' :

* As far as planning for the future, | know you are eager to know where we stand on the house. Kristen and } absolutely love.
the Kales house and have cared for it as if it was our owrn the, past 3.5 years. We are very interested in our collective dream
of a mutually-beneficial purchasing agreement between the four of us. With that sald, we had our realtor evafuate the houss
and give us comps on updated/renovated 18r/1Baths in our neighborhood, which we would be happy to share with you. Our
realtar's professional review of 17 comps in the area shows a cutrent fair market value of 750K,

Based on this, knowing the ins and outs of the houss, recognizing that this would be a direct sale for you without realtor and
other feas, we would like to purchasa the house "as is," without inspection at 750K. This is taking the current condition of
the house inte consideration, knowing that it needs major repairs, as well as the fact that the unit In the back is not legal and
from a realtor's point-of-view is considered a liability, rather than an asset. We canhot go higher than this and don't have
room for negatiation. But, we are very flexible to alternative financing arrangements that we've spoken about befors such as
a down-payment then renting to buy. -

Our baby Is due to arrive on July Sth, and as you can Imagine we are entirely focused on preparations for the birth. Of
coursé, settling on an agresment for the Kales house Is also a major priority. Qur apologies for not getting back to you '
sooner regarding the termination of lease agraement you dropped off. We wanted to let you know that we don't plan on
signing this, but will do our best to work with you through the details of buying Kales,

We look forward to hearing your thoughts on this. Wa'd be happy to meet in person to talk more specifically about the
details. : ‘

All the best,

Chase & Kristen

On Thu, May 10, 2018 at 8:13 AM, Shaerry Zalabak <sherZ@comcast.nat> wrote:
Hi Chase, .

I assumed that the stained glass leaf was left by the tenant. Yes. t have it here and will retirn it. Re. the two garden
toals you described-——I did see them during our work days thera and Maco did use your red rake but we Jid not take
them. Did you look in the basement crawt space? When | want back to water the ptants a week after Maco and |
firished | saw the weed-wacker. It was sitting to the left of the crawhspace door in the laundry room. } remember this as

[TIH :'muil.gungiu‘mm/mailfu:'(l"’\|i=2&ik=‘)uh7‘)02(m(}&js\u!r'=Mn16\\(1A|N( buoendchi=gmail fe 180724 H_p—l&wu.-\\=p(&c:u=z}(ulus‘,‘t20]’!»110 Iy : O

Y. |
-

ot
C

J




o—

D=2 N B LY T IR

N (9] W N bt [l \O [} ~ [} w S 9% N — <o

Lisa Giampaoli, SBN 291234
Giampaoli Law >
100 Pine Street, Suite 1250

San Francisco, CA 94111 -
Telephone: (415) 890-6529

Attorneys for Tenants/Appellants
Chester Martin & Kristen Ponger

OAKLAND RENT ADJUSTMENT BOARD
CITY OF OAKLAND

RE: 5553 Kales Avé. : Censolidated petitions: T18-0414, T18-0472

CHESTER MARTIN & KRISTEN PONGER MEMORANDUM IN SUPPORT OF

| APPEAL OF TENANT-APPELLANTS
Tenant-Appellants, CHESTER “CHASE” MARTIN AND
. 4 A KRISTEN PONGER
V.

SHERRY Z | |
ALABAK, Hearing Date: TBD

Landlord-Respondent.

INTRODUCTION

Tehants appeal the dismissal of their petition for unlawfﬁl rent incréase and the decision
that the Subject Pfoperty was exempt from the RAP as a single family.residence at the time the
rent increase was noticed. Tenants éontend that their unit did not qualify as a SFR because at the
time they entered into.the rental agreement for their unit, and throughout their tenéncy, the
Landlord was collecting rents for two separate dwelling units at the property pursuant to two

separate rental agreements; Landlord never removed the rear cottages from use as living space;

[\*}
~3

N
-]

Landlord never provided Tenants with access to, or use of, the entirety of the property as SFR; and

Landlord failed to provide any credible evidence that would lead a reasonable person to conclude

000055




\OOO\]O\UIAU)[\)H

Nl\)l\)l\)[\)l\)[\)n—ap—ly—dh—)—d»—Ap—A)—l»—A)—u
O\M-BwNHO\DOO\]C\M-BWN'—‘O

Landlord had permanently removed the rear cottages from use as a dwelling space. Tenants further
contend Landlord’s claim of exemption is nothing more than an attempt to evade the RAP and Just

Cau'se for Eviction protections by raising the rent so high it would force Tenants to vacate,

 allowing the Landlord to sell the property ‘vécant, as she had repeatedly told them she wanted to

do. The 1ssue at stake here is whether Landlord, based on nothmg more than her own unrellable

testimony, can unllaterally claim a SFR exemption from the RAP for a property that Landlord

admits she has rented out as multiple units for years. 'The answer should be a resounding “no.”

STATEMENT OF FACTS

5553 Kales Ave. (“Subject Property”) is located in the Rockridge neighborhood. The

property contains three structures: a Craftsman style cottage with one bedroom, living room,

‘kitchen and bathroom; a rear studio cottage with a living area, bathroom, and kitchen; and a

second ~100 sq. ft. rear cottage with hardwood floors, windows, a Ioft, baseboard heater and an

|| interior locking deadbolt. (See: 3/5/19 Heaﬁng Exh.1: Photos of interiors of rear cottages at

{| 3553 Kales Ave.) In 2014 Tenant-Appellants (“Tenants”) entered into a two year written rental

agreement with Lz_indlord-Respondent (“Landlord”) for the one bedroom Craftsman cottage
(hereinafter “subject premises”) for a monthly rent of $2600. (See: 3/5/19 Hearing Exh. 3:
Rental Agreement‘between Sherry Zalabak and Chestér Martin & Kristen Ponger.) At the
time that Tenants entered‘into the agreement for the Subject Premises, the two rear cottages (“rear
cottages”), weré being rented as a single dwelling unit by Landlérd to Leanne Fowlkes and Mike
Devol, leading Tenants to understand and believe that the Subject Premises was part of multi-unit
property protected by rent control. (3/5/19 RAP Hearing, Part 1: 23:30-23:47; 56:15- 56:23.) A

2% rent increase imposed on both units by Landlord in 2017 was in line with the allowable CPI

‘and substantiated Tenants’ belief that their unit was covered by the RAP. (3/5/19 RAP Hearing,

N
~3

Part 1: 23:47-23:55.) Additionally, Tenants did not have use or access to the rear cottages and

NS
o0

were not permitted to use the rear yard. (3/5/19 RAP Hearing, Part 1: 56: 56:34-56:40.) When

-0

000056




SR T - UV T O PO

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18

19

20
21
22
23
24
25
26

“the rear cnttages to another couple, Lindsay Byrd and Isabel Avellan. (See: 3/5/19 Hearing Exh.

10414 for unlawful rent increase. After they filed the petition, Landlord came to Tenants’ home

Ms. Fowlkes and Mr. Devol vacated the rear units in June 2017, Landlord immediately re-rented

4: July, 2017 lease agreement between Sherry & John Zalabak an.d Lindsay Byrd & Isabel
Avellan.) On November 14, 2017, Landlord asked' Tenants if they would be interested in
pnfchasing the Subject Prdperty, stating Tenants could rent out the “rear gottages” for income.
(See: 3/5/19 Hearing Exh. 9: November 14, 2017 email from Sherry Zalabak to Kristen
Ponger.) On or around February 28, 2018, Lindsay Byrd & Isabél Avellan vacated the rear
cottages. (3/5/19 RAP Hearing, Part 1: 55:08—55:23.) On Marcn 28,2018, Landlqrd gave’
Tenants a letter stating hc;r intent to .sell the Subj.eg:t Propenty and demanded Tenants vacafe by
July 1, 2018. (See: 3/5/19 Hearing Exh. 10: March 28, 2018 letten from Sherry Zalabak to
Kristen Ponger and Chase Martin.) On April 25,. 2018, Landlord sent a dncument to Tenants
which Landlord represented as a “lease extension,” bnt which was entitled “Landlord-Ténant |
Agreement to Terminate Lease.” (3/5/19 RAP Hearing, Part 1: 46:()5.-46:12.)1 Ténants‘would
not sign it. On June 5, 2018, Landlord serVedv Tenants a 60 day notice of a rent increasé to $4500.

(See: Tenant Petition T18-0414, Exh. A.)? On August 3, 2018 Tenants filed Tenant petition T18-

pleading for them to rescind petition T18-0414, offering to make a new agreement and causing
Tenants to feel bad for landlord and agr'ee'to rescind the petition. (3/5/19 RAP Hearing, Part 1:
52:28-52:44). However, for reasons unknown, the RAP failed to dismiss petition T18-0414.

(3/5/19 RAP Hearing, Part 1: 2:28-2:40.) At the end of September 2018 Tenants discovered the

! Tenants offered the document as evidence in suppont of their petition at the March 5, 2019'hearing, but though
there was no objection from Landlord, hearing officer Lambert did not enter the document into the record and

provided no reason for failing to do so.

N
=]

2 Tenants provided-a-copy uf—’che»60»dz:ty“nt)ti-cevirrtheirpetition/n’:sponse;but-hearingofﬁ'cer'I:ambert'didnot—enteri1:"~ [

into the record as an exhibit.

-3-




o 0 N L R WN) e

[\ ] ") [ \»] [\*) N [\®) N ot — f— fa— o — — — — —

stove from the rear cottage had been placed in the basement laundry room of the Sub_]ect Property
(3/5/19 RAP Hearmg recordmg, Part 1: 27:56- 28 00) (See also: 3/5/19 Hearing Exh. 1, p. 3,
photo of stove in laundry room.) Shortly thereafter tenants received from Landlord a new 60
Day Notice of change in terms of tenancy increasing the rent from $2652 to $4500. The nerv
notice was dated Oetober 10., 2018, less than two weeks after the stove had been removed from the
rear cottage. Tenatnts filed petition T18f0472 for unlawful rent increase. Landlord then filed a
response _contending that the Subject Premises was a single family residence exempt from the
RAP under the state Costa Hawkins Act.

PROCEDURAL HISTORY

The first RAP hearing on Tenants’ petitions was held March 5, 2019 with hearing officer
Elan Consuela Lambert (“Lambert”).' Tenants, Land_lord anct Landlord’s counsel were present.
Mike Devol, former tenant of the rear cottages initially attended with the intent to testify as a
witness for Tenants, but ‘had to leave before having the opportunity to do so.? Tenants did not have }
legal representation. Tenant Petitions T18-0414 and T18-0472 were based on two separate rent
increase notiees but only ;the second rent increase notice was still in effect at the time of the
hearing.* | |
| Lambert confirmed that Tenants were not served a RAP notice upon commencement of
their tenancy. (3/5/19 Hearing, Part 1: 17:19-7 29) Tenants testiﬁed that Landlord rented the
rear cottages separately from the subject premises throughout Tenants’ possession of the subject
premises, offerlng as ev1dence photos of the interiors of the rear cottages,’ a copy of a 2017 lease

agreement for the rear cottages between Landlord and tenants Lindsey Byrd & Isabel Avellan,’

3 The March 5, 2019 Hearing Sign In Sheet is in the RAP record.

N
~

- Botir Tenant Petitions and Landlord responses included copies of the Rent Increase Notices, but for
reasons unknown, they were not entered into the hearing record.

3 See March 5, 2019 Hearing Exhibit 1.

v}
-]

® See March 5, 2019 Hearing Exhibit 2.

000058



10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21

22
23
24
25
26

b =~ - TN B« Y, T U PV O}

and communications from Landlord stating Tenants could rent out the rear cottages for income if
they bought .the subject proi)erty._7 (3/5/19 Hearing, Part 1: 24:46-34:15.)

Tenants furfher testiﬁéd that on Febfuary 28, 2018 the rear cottages became vacant and on
March 28,2018 Landlord sent them a letter stating they would have to move out because ,she
wanted to sell the subject property. (3/5/19 Hearihg,‘ Part 1: 39:27-40:11; 55:08.) When Tenants
testified that they believed Landlord sought a 70% rent increase to force them out anﬂ sell the
property vacant _for maximum profit, Lambert asked Tenant if there was anything in the law that
prelventvs\ that. (3/5/19 Hearing, Part 1: 40:12.)> Tenants testified that Landlofd had repeatedly
made it clear she wanted them out so she cduld sell the Property vacant, and that landlord had only
removed the stqvé‘from the rear cottage in order to claim it Was no longer a dwelling unit and
therefore exempt from the RAP. Tenants further testified that the stove was still in the laundry
room at the subject property and they believed she planned to simply put in back in the rear unit
when it Benefited her. (3/5/19 RAP Hearling,vPart 1: 56:‘0‘5- §7:15.) Tenants contended that
Lanoilord’s decision to stop fénting out the ‘rear cottageS was an action over which they had no
control and which should not qhange their status under the RAP.

- Landlord freely admitted that she rented out the rear cottages for residential use from the
time she inherited the Subject Proberty in 2010 ufiﬁl February 2018. (3/5/19 RAP Hearing
recording, Part 2: 4:05-4:19.) Landlord, a long-time Bay Area property owner and landlord,
alleged that she did not know that the rear cottages were not legal until after Tenants filed their
first RAP petition (T18-O4‘14). (3/5/19 Hearing, Part 2: 6:55- .7 :09 and 13:17-13:32.) Landlord
testified that upon learning that the rear cottages were illegal, she sought to remove them from use

as dwelling ﬁnits, offering as evidence a permit application worksheet she had filled out herself

and allegedly submitted to the City of Qakland Planning and Building Department. (3/5/19

N
=2

7 See: Mareh-5;-2019-Hearing Exhibit-9;-also- see-March-5;-2019-Hearing Exhibit-5tocated-inthe RAP-file—
folder. '

—000059—



O [~} ~3 (=)} (%) = W N i

l\)l\)l\)l\)l\)'l\)»—ln—d»—an—t»—lr—nr—t)—)—-r—a
LR WD = S 0 ® 3 RB 0= D

|| Hearing, Part 2: 19:_28-19:48.) The application worksheet identified the subject property as 2
existing residential units that Landlord was proposing to reduce to 1 unit, and states the purpose is
to “retum from habitable space to office snace.”, (See: 3/5/19 Hearing Exh. 11: Zalabak Permit

, Application Worksheet.) Landlord testified that tne rear cottage was permitted for use as an
office and she had reverted it back to that use. (3/5/19 Hearing, Part 2: 19:37-19:49.) When
Tenant asked Landlord if she had the original permit stating that rear unit vt/as an office space,
Landlord saiti she did, and then referred back to the Permit Application Worksheet she had filled
out herself. (3/5/19 Hearing, Part 2: 19:58-20:03.) L.ambert then referenced the repeated use of
the term “returned” in Landlord’s Permit Application Worksheet as evidence that the rear unit had
been permitted for use as an office.? (3/5/19 Hearing, Part 2: 20:20-21:49.) When Tenant noted
that the application had been filled out by' the Landlord who was only surrnising the unit had been
permitted for use as an ofﬁce, Lambert stated “No, [Landlord] testified that there was a permit for
it to be an office originally.” (3/5/19 Hearing, Part 2: 21:44-21:56.) When Tenant again asked if
the Landlord actually had the permit, Landlord’s counsel statect Landlord was not responsible for
pulling the permit, telling Tenant that if he wanted a copy of the permit, he could get it from the

|l city. (3/5/19 Hearing, Part 2: 21:57-22:07.) Landlord then stated she did have the permlt but that

she did not brmg it to the hearing. (3/5/19 Hearing, Part 2: 22:07-22:10. )

Lambert later reiterated that “[the permit application worksheet] goes to show that [the rear
cottage] is no longer a residential unit. It’s an office space...it’s ofﬁcialiy with the city an office
space.” (3/5/19 Hearing, Part 2: 30:19-30:32.) At no time dtd Lambert issue an order or
otherwise require Landlord to provide a copy of the alleged office space permit.

Tenants argued that removmg the stove from the rear cottage and placing it in the laundry

room was not evidence that Landlord had removed the cottage from use as a dwelling unit, but

NN
~J N

simply a temporary step to evade rent control. (3/5/19 Hearmg, Part 1: 57:00-57:09.)

N
> -]

§ «Returned” as in reverted.

Uululol




N - R T U UC S

[\ [\ |\ N [\ NN p— — f— [ [u— — — —_ —

Landlord claimed that upon restormg .the rear cottages to non-habitable space, they were no
longer rentable units, and that allowing the continued rental of illegal units was agamst public
policy because it would put tenants at risk. (3/5/19 Hearmg, Part 2: 39:39- 40:10.) Landlord
admitted she had rented out the illegal cottages in Vlolatlon of the law but argued that by ceasing’
her illegal conduct, 'the property reverted back to a single family home. (3/5/19 Hearing, Part 2: '
41:12-41:27.) Landlord went on to claim that the property was now being used as a single family
home by Te.nants,9 but did not provide any evidence that Tenants had dccess or use of the entire
property. (3/5/15 Hearing, Part 2: 41:51-42: 19;)

When Tenants argued that. Landlord had temporarily stopped renting the rear unit solely to
circumvent rent control and the Just Cause ordinance, Lambert told Tenants that Landlcrd’s
motivation for complying with the law was not at issue, saying violation of Just Cause was not
subject for the hearing. (3/5/19 Hearing, ’Part 2: 45:00-45:37.) Tenants reiterated that Landlord
was well aware that the rear cottagec were illegal for at least ten months and did not take any
action to cornply with the law until after Tenants filed their ﬁrst petition at theJRAP. 3/5/19
Hearing, Part 2: 46:50-47:16.) |

At no time did Lambert require ‘Landlord to provide any evidence ofher than Land!ord’s

“own testimony that Landlofd had actually removed the rear cottages from residential use or that
the rear cottages were permitted for use as an office.

On April 22, 2019, a “good cause™ hearing took place at the order of Lambert to ascertain
whether the subj ect property might be subject to a new construction exemption. (4/22/19 Hearing,
1:30-1:47.) Tenants submitted as evidence a 1940’s parcel map they obtafned from the Oakiand

Building Department which showed two structures existed on the Subject Property. (4/22/19

[\
~

lLe. suggesting that Tenants had been given use of the entire Subject Property, which was not the case.

NI
o0

o g o0 o0 oo &

UUUVb]




10

- 11

12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24

25
26

Hearing, 3:15-3:38.) (See: 4/22/19 Hearing Exh. A- 1940’s Parcel Map of the 5500 bl_ock of

‘\DOO\]O\UI-ADJN

formally addressing Tenants’ request for notice of Landlord’s lack of credibility. (4/22/19

Kales Ave.) Tenants testified that they learned from the building records that the larger rear |
cottage had existed as a garage since the 1940’s.v (4/22/19 Hearing, 5:37—5:39.) Tenants further
testified that they obtained from the Building Department the entire permit history for the Subject
Property going back to the 1940°s, and that there was no record of a perrnit to use the garage as an
office space. ( 4/22/19 Hearing, 9:25-10:00.) Tenants submitted copies of all the building records
as evidence. (See; 4/22/19 Hearing Exh. B- Building Records for 5553 Kales Ave. from 1940°s
to 2019. )Tenants pointed out that Landlord had testified under oath that she had a permit for use
of the rear cottage as an office, but since no such permit ex1sted Landlord’s credibility was at
issue. (4/22/19 Hearing, 10:00-10:32.) Lambert and Landlord did not dispute the discrepancy, but
Lambert said she did not know that the Landlord’s [lying under oath] had any impact. (4/22/19
Hearing, 11:42-11:46.) When Tenant made another layman’s attempt to put Landlord’ '

credibility at issue, Lambert obfuscated on the topic, turning it into a personal joke without

Hearing, 12:10-12:24.)

Landlord’s counsel later stated severai times the previous owner of the subject property' :
was Landlord’s brother and that it was the “brother” that created and initially rented out the rear
cottages; Landlord’s counsel offered to have Landlord testify in support of her claims. (4/22/19
Hearing, 17:56-18:32.) Lambert said the Landlord’s testimony was not necessary. (4/22/19
Hearing, 19:00-19:10.) When Tenants then sought to have the Landlord state under oath that she
was claiming the former owner of the property was Landlord’s brother, Lambert would not allow
Tenan to ask the Landlord the question. (4/22/19 Hearing, 21:45-21:59.) Tenants informed

Lambert that the former owner was not the Landlord’s brother, and when Lambert asked how

' Tenants knew that, Tenants provided a copy of the obituary of the former owner, Stephen Lage,

N
-]

which mentioned the names of family members, including sister Deborah Lage, but made no

-8- PPN
R vluvo4




R S T~ N O S N eSS SN

— ik ot — — — — —_— —
oK ~3 (=) (%] L w N - <O

BN NN N NN
(=T 7 o R

—
. \D

mention of Sherry Zalabak. (4/22/19 Hearing, 22:06-22:20). Lambert acknowledged the obituary,
but then asked Tenants why it mattered.! (4/22/19 Hearing, 22:22—22:24). Tenants responded
that it rnattered because it showed Landlord had repeatedly lied and laclced all credibility. (4/22/19
Hearing, 2:24-22:46.) Lambert said she understood the argurnent Tenants were “attempting to
make,” but that there was nothing about Landlord’s testimony that would contradict the “operative
facts” of the case. (4/22/19 Hearing, 22:47-24: 24) Lambert went on to state that the removal of
the stove from the rear cottages was also not an operative fact but a detail used to show Landlord
had removed the rear cottages from illegal use, not “the thing which allows [Landlord] to raise
[Tenants’] rent.” (4/22/19 Hearing, 31:10- 31:43.) Lambert concluded the hearing with an
explanation that the presence of a stove is not an operative fact for determination of a dwelling
unit, but rather the residential use of a structure that mattered.!? (4/22/19 Hearing; 31:53-32:30.)_

Lambert then proceeded to issue a decision based on Landlord’s testimony that she had
removed the rear cottages from residential use, despite the absolute lack of evidence from
Landlord that she had done so, and despite the substantial evidence that Landlord had no

compunction about providing false testimony under oath.
L THE RAP HAS JURISDICTION TO HEAR THE APPEAL

 The final decision in the underlying petitions was served by mail on June 7, 2019.
Appellants timely filed their appeal on June 27, 2019 pursuant to O.M.C. 8.22.120.
| The RAP can and must consider this appeal because “[i]n general, a party must exhaust
administrative remedies before resorting to the courts.” (Coachella Valley Mosquito and Vector
Control Dist. v. California Public Employment Relations Bd. (2005) 35 Cal.4th 1072, 1080.)

n administrative remedy is exhausted only upon ‘termination of all availa e, nonduplicative
“[A]n ad trat dy is exhausted only upon ‘t t f all labl duplicat

NN
(=TS |

1 Though she acknowledged the information in the obituary, Lambert did not enter the obituary into the
record.

12 Thereby implying that Landlord’s removal of the stove was not sufficient to remove the unit from
residential use.

Ululobo




administrative review procedures.’” Id. (civting to Cdlifornia Correctional Peace Officers Assn. v.
State Personnel Bd. (1995) 10 Cal.4th 1133, 1151.)

| Here the RAP has issued a decision for which Tenants have ample grounds to appeal.
Tenants must exhaust all administrative remedies before resorting to thev courts. Tenants must
therefore be afforded Athe opportunity to exhaust all administrative remedies before filing a writ.

A. Landlord’s Arguments th'at the RAP Does Not Have Authority to Hear the
Appeal are Moot. '

Landlord argues that the Rent Adjustment Board doeé not have jurisdiction to hear this
appeal because: 1) the Subject Property is a single family residence exempt from the RAP; -and 2)
Te}nants;have vacated the Subject Property. Both of these arguménts faﬂ.

Landlord’s claifn that the Rent Board lacks jurisdiction to hear an appeal of an exemption
because the unit isi exempt is ridiculously circular. More to the point, RAP regulatiqn
8.22.030(C)(1)(c) specifically entitles Tenants to appeal a decision granting an exemption. While a
SFR exemption pursuant to Costa'Hawkins'might ﬁlake 'sense where the landlord pepresented, and
the tenants believed, that the réntaf agfeement was for a single family‘ﬁome, this is not that
situation. Here the landlord, by her own'admissioﬁ, has profited for years from renting niultiple
units at the subject property. iA property’s legal designation as a single family residence does not

create an unappealable blanket exemption where the landlord knowingly rented out the property as

a multi-unit dwelling any more than a commercial space knowingly rented out by the landlord for

residential use is automatically exempt and unappealable. (See Wofsy v. Tenant 1.12-0051; Also
see Rose v. Polanski, T05-0233.)
As for moving out-Tenants could and would have maintained possessiori of the unit if they

had not been faced with the risk of owing many months of a huge rent differential while waiting

for the RAP hearings and decision. They filed their petition November 2018, and the decision was

issued at the end of May 2019. Though they filed their appeal in June, they knéw it would be

-10 -

nnnnc4
UUUuv




[Ty

NNNNNNNh—‘)—i)—iD—th—l)——lb—lr——lr——l
O\M-P&N'—‘O\DOO\IO\M-PWN)—IO

bSO R )

months before their appeal was heard, and they simply could not afford risking the possibility of
owing .a year or more of rent differential if they lost the appeal.

Tenants filed a tirnély appeal citing valid grounds while still in possession of the subj‘ect
premises. Tenants should not be forced to choose between exercising their legal rights or risking a
major financial burden as a result of scheduling matters outside their control. Tenants have done
their due diiigence and ask that the Rent Board do the saﬁe by hearing their appeal.

IL. GROUNDS FOR APPEAL |

Tenants submit their appeal pursuant to RAP Regulation 8.22.120(B)(3-5), and OM.C.

8.22.030(B)(1)(B) (exemption based on fraud or mistake.) |

A. O.M.C. 8.22.120(B)(3) The Decision Raises a New Policy Issue That Has Not

'Previously‘Been Decided by the Bogrd

The RAP acknowledged that this is a new issue not previously decided by the Board
when it rescheduled the appeal hearing in this matter to have it heard by the full board. This issue
is of significant importance o Oakland Tenants, as tﬁere are likely thousands of tenants living in
properties recorded as single family homes but wﬁich actually haye one or more illegal units.

The rental of illegal units is commonplace in the Bay Area, including Oakland. And the| -
RAP, the Just Cause for Eviction ordinance, and the Tenant Protection Ordinance all recognize

and provide protection for tenants living in illegal units, as evidenced by the definition of “covered

\

units” under O.M.C. 8-.22f020:

“Covered Unit" means any dwelling unit, including joint living and work quarters,
and all housing services located in Oakland and used or occupied in consideration
of payment of rent with the exception of those units designated in Section 8.22.030
A. as exempt.”

Oakland Planning Code §17.09.040 defines “dwelling unit” as:

-..a room or suite of rooms including only one kitchen, except as otherwise

NN
[>T |

provided i Section 17.102.270; and designed or occupied as separate [iving
quarters for one person or family; [reference to boarding house omitted.]

-11-




O R0 9N AW =

N NN N = e e e e e e e e
W N = O D R NN AW N =

|| Tenants vacated.

A review of the exemptions under 8.22.030 makes no mention of illegal or unpermitted
units. Yet when illegal units are located in a property recorded as a Single Family Property, such
is the case here, all tenants in the property are at risk eaph time one unit becomes vacant, as the
landlord can simply claim exemption under Costa Hawkins and impose a huge rent increase for
the remaining tenants, which often results in pushing out the existing tenants, allowing th/e
landlord to re-rent the units at new, market rents, or sell thé property vacant. The failure to uphold
the RAP in these situations gives lahdlords- a loophole to circumvent both the RAP and Just Cause.

Recognizing this problem, San Francisco amended its planning code in’ 2016 to fequire a
landlord to legalize an illegal dwélling unit whenever feasible.!® The éffect of the amendment has
been to hold landlords accountable and protect tenants from losing their housing. Sﬁn Francisco
also amended its Tenant Harassment Ordinance in 2018 to include rent increases imposed in bad
faith on tenants in units exempt from rent control but covered by the Just Cause Ordinance.!*

That said, whﬂe these additional protections have not yet been enacted in Oakland, fhe
present case need not rely on them because landlord has not provided substantial, or any, evidence
that she has rerﬁoved the rear cottages or ceased renting them out. In faét, when Tenants vacated
the property, the rear studios appeafed to be exactly the same as they had throughout Tenants’ 5

year tenancy and there is no reason to believe Landlord did not simply re-rent the units once

B. O.M.C. 8.22.120(B)(4) The Decision Violates Federal, State, or Local Law

The Oakland Rent Adjustment Ordinance states: “[a]mong the purposeé of this Chapter

are providing relief to residential tenants in Oakland by limiting rent increases for existing

tenants;” O.M.C. 8.22.010(C). Tenants rented a cottage in a multi-unit prépei‘ty. When Landlord

decided not to re-rent the rear cottages, whatever her motive, it did not change Tenants status as

[P PN

13 See San Francisco Planning Code §317.
14 See San Francisco Administrative Code §37.10A(.)

-12 -




[

- N7 T O

D nNo no N [\ N [\ —_ — —_— [a—y — — [a— f—d —
N wn E=N W [\ — < o [>5] ~3 (@) wn = W [\®] i o

allowing a Landlord to unilaterally change the status of aﬁ 'existing tenahcy in order to claim an
exemption where one did not previously exist. In fact, an attempt by a landlord to do just thét was
shot down by the California Court of Appeals in Burien v. Wiley (2014) 230 Cal. App. 4“_1 1039. In
Burien a rent controlled apartment building was converted to condominiums and the owner then
claimed that the propefty waé exempt from rent control under Costa Hawkins, first as
condominiﬁm, and when the’tt.failed, as new construction. In analyzing the legislative history of the
Costa Hawkins Act, the Court noted the Act had been amended in 2002 specifically to close a
loophole abused by landlords who had been applying for condo COn§ersion permit simply to claim

an exemption from rent control, and then never going through with the conversion. Id. at 1046-

Jl 1047. The Court also found that the landlord’s claim for new construction exemption based on the

issuance of a new certificate of occupancy for a pre-existing unit did nothing to further the purpose

for which the new construction exemption was created, i.e. to encourage the creation of new .

housing, and therefore landlord’s request for exemption should be denied. Id. at 1049.

While the situation in the present case is distinguishable, the principle is the same- in
order to claim an exémption, the purpose of the exemption should be met. Here .it is not. The
.exemption -fo.r single fémily homes ‘under béth the Oakland RAP and Costa Hawkins was meant to
preserve “mom and pop” investments, not to protect a landlord that rents out illegal units, and then
when caught, uses the exemption to her advantage to vimpose a giant rent.increase on the Ténants
whol caUght her. .

Similarly, in DaVinci Group v. SF Rent Board (1992) 5 Cal. App. 4" 24, landlord
sought a new construction exemption for a building that had been tenant occupied prior to the

issuance of a certificate of occupancy. The court affirmed a decision of the Rent Board denying

CIENY
> - B N |

the landlord’s petition to exempt his property from the Rent Ordinance, stating that the

|| Ordinance’s “explicit mandate is to protect tenarits, especially from éxcessive fent increases” |

-13 -

000067




N

A SR RS BN = LY, T O 0

10

11

12
13
14
15

16.

17

18

19

20

21
22
23
24
25

26

(citing Fox v. ‘San Francisco Rent etc. Bd, (1985) 169 Cal. App.3d at p. 656)‘ to such an extent that
a policy which removes such protectibn from tenants already in occupancy is contraindicated. Id. |
at 31. While this case is also distinguisﬂable in that it deals with a new construction ekemption
rather than an exemption for 2 single family residenpe, the ba.sic tenet applies- tenénts already in
place and protected by rent control ordinances should not be divested of such protections by a
landlor_d’s unilateral decision to claim a new status for the property. 1n citing to the rent board
decision they upheld, the Court reiterated: “To permit landlords to rent 6ut illegal units but to
avoid the obligations imposed By the Ordinance is contréry to the purpose and intent of the
Ordinance." Id. at 31. This could not be more true than in the present case where Landlérd has
rented out an illegal unit for 8 or more years, and now when confronted with her wrongdoing,
seeks to have protections for tenants refnoved s\o that she can profit further; an exemption under
these circumstances “is contrary to the purpose and intent of the Ordinance.”

C. O.M.C. 8.22.120(B)(5) The Decision is Not Supported by Substahtial Evidence

Hearing decisions must be supported By substantial ¢videncé. (RAP Hearing Officer
Policies and Procedures Manual, p. 7.) “Substantial eQidenée means that the evidence must be of
ponderable legal significance...It must be reasonable in nature, credible, and of solid value; it must
actually be substantial proof of the essentials that the law fequire_s in a particular case.” Id.
paraphrasing In Re Alcala, 222 Cal. App. 3d 345.

Landlord provided no evidence of pénderable legal significance to support her
contention that she has ceased renting the rear cottages for residential use. The only
documentation Landlord offered as evidence was a permit appliéation she had filled out herself, in

which she claimed she planned to revert the rear cottage to its “legal use” as an office.!* Having

27
28

filled it out herself, the application was qplf‘.qpﬂ/ing and of no solid valye or legal significance.
N B &

13 The application also only claiims to revert a single structure, though Landlord has been renting oiit both |
rear cottages for residential use. :

-14 -




Landlord’s only other evidence was her testimony, which, as Tenants demonstrated with records

1
2 || from the building department, was not in the least bit credible.!® Tenants also provided tangible
3 || evidence to show that Landlord lied about her relationship to the former owner, evidence which
4 th‘e hearing officer then failed to enter into the record.!” While Landlord’s relationship with the
> former owner may not have substantlve relevance to the matter at hand the fact that Landlord lied
6
about the relatlonshlp is relevant to show she lacks credibility.
7 _
g * And finally, hearing officer herself stated that the absence of a stove was not
g [| determinative of residential use of a unit,"*therefore the mere fact that Landlord placed the stove
10. || from the rear cottage in the laundry room of the Subject Property is no more persuasi\}e. of
11 || Landlord’s 1ntent to cease residential use of the rear cottages than it is of her intent to simply place:
12 1l it back in the cottages as Tenants have argued
13 Landlord’s lack of documentary evidence of legal significance or solid value coupled
14 ' ' : " _
with her false testimony would lead a reasonable person to conclude that Landlord lacked
15 : _ : ' o
16 credibility, making it unreasonable for the hearing officer to accept as true Landlord’s testimony -
17 that she had retnoved the rear cottages from residential use.
18 With nothing but unreliable testimony to support her position, Landlord has failed to
19 || provide any substantial evidence that would lead a reasonable person to believe she had
20 permanently ceased renting out the rear cottages for residential use.
21 D. O.M.C. 8.22.120(B)(6) The Hearing Officer Made a Procedural Error That
27 Denied Tenants Sufficient Opportunity to Adequately Respond to the
23 Opposing Party. _ _
Y The hearing officer failed to give Tenants the opportunity to impeach Landlord with
her false testimony despite Tenants® repeated protestations about Landlord’s false statements made
25 ' :
o
1° See: 4/22/19 Hearing, Exh. B- Building Records for 5553 Kales Ave. from 1940°s to 2019; and
27 4/22/19 Hearing; 9:25-10:00.
- 17 4/22/19 Hearing, 22:06-22:20

18 4/22/19 Hearing, 31:53-32:30

-15-

000069




R = - R - T V. T - UC R NG S

[\ [\ ) |\ [\JA[\.) f— ot fe—y — [a— — f— oy [Ty —
g\)ul-hwl\)h—o\OOO\IO\Ul-lkwN’—‘O

)

under oath. Hearing officer then made a decision that relied almost entirely on Landlord’s
unreliable testimbny. |

Hearing officer also permitted _Landlc\)rd to submit as evidence a permit application
Landlord had filled out herself, ‘kthough Tenants 'attembted to object to the submission by pointing
out the application proved nothing other than Landlord had filled out a form.

When Teﬁants sought to show that Landlord did not possess the permit she alleged she

|| had, hearing officer stated Landlord’s testimony was sufficient to prove she had the permit and did

not require Landlord to produce it.!” When Tenanfs later showed no permit existed, hearing ofﬁcér
said existence of the permit was not fnaterial to the case, though hearing officer had repeatedly
referred fo the permit application as evidence that Landlord had removed the rear cottages from
residential use.2 When Tenants providéd the obituary of former property owner Stephen Lage to

impeaéh'Landlord on her claim that Mr. Lage was her brother, hearing officer acknowledged on

the record that she was reviewing something from Tenant, but never stated what she was

reviewing and never entered the obituary into the record.?! ‘

No matter what the Landlord said, hearing officer justified it. When Tenants tried to
impeach Landlord and demonstrate she lacked credibility, their attempts were ignored, disfnissed
or denied.

Thé RAP is meant to make to make the system more accessible to Oakland residents
that do not have the means to obtain legal counsel. Tenants, who have no legal experience and
were not represented by counsel, did their best to have théir laymen’s 'objections acknowledged
and demonstrate Landlord lacked éredibility. But instead of acknowledging and allowing Tenants’

objections and impeachment examination, hearing officer instead lectured them on legal

NN
[=- TR |

19 3/5/19 Hearing, Part 2: 21:57-22:10.
203/5/19 Hearing, Part 2: 20:20-21:49
21 4/22/19 Bearing, 22:06-22:24

-16 -




terminology while ignoring the substance of Tenants’ arguments. In doing so, hearing officer

1
5 || denied Tenants sufﬁcient opportunity to respond to opposing party
,3 | _ | _
E. 0.M.C. 8.22.030(B)(1)(b) (exemption based on fraud or mistake.)
_ : Tenants submit that the Landlord’s claim for exemption was based on fraud. Landlord
6. claimed that the rear cottages were not Iegal or habitable, and therefore she had removed them
7 Il from residential use. However, after Tenants moved odt, Landlord advertised the Subject -
8 || Property for rent. In the ads (listed 'on numerous'websites), she referred to the rear cottages as
9 1 “outside bedrooms” and a “gnest retreat.” While this may constitute “new evidence,” the fact
,10 that Landlord claimed she had removed the units from use as dwelhng space, and then
1 subsequently advertised the cottages as dwelhng space is ev1dence that the Landlord lied in the
Z hearing when she said she had removed the rear cottages from residential use.
14 Tenants have the right to contest the enemption based on Fraud or Mistake after the fact.
| 15 || (Sherman v. Michelsen T16-0258.) Here itis only logical that post facto evidence he provided,
16 as Landlord was clearly not going to rent out the rear cottages before the RAP demsmn was
17 issued, as doing so would Jeopardize her case. |
18 CONCLUSION
;z Pursuant to the foregoing, there is no basis for a finding the subject property was exempt
21 from the RAP while Tenants were still in possession. For the reasons above, Tenants respectfully '
99 || request that Landlord’s request for exemption from the Rent Adjustment Program be denied and
23 || Tenant Petitioners’ petitions for unlawful rent increases be granted or remanded for further
24 consideration.
25 Dated: January 13, 2026
26 — :
55 LISA GIAMPAOLI

Attorney for Tenants/Petitioners

-17 -

4
[

annn
UUUVU




ST Re/E

AECEIVED
LITYDF BA:
RENT ARBI[RAT: "

CITY OF OAKLAND ) B1940NDT PH 2: 06

RENT ADJUSTMENT PROGRAM
250 Frank Ogawa Plaza, Suite 5313

1" .
Oakland, CA 94612

- (510) 238-3721
CITY OF OAKLAND

APPEAL |
Appellant’s Name : ' 4

O Owner [PFenant

' 2 ] - -
Chesver Mackn isfen Poager
Property Address (Include Unit N umber) o Q.
S8R Kaleg Ale coltlond A quypis
Appellant’s Mailing Address (For receipt of notices) Case Number

SR Lales pve. - MNe-ciilyTis-oq 2.
‘ { Date of Decision appealed

Oallland, CH QUi | 4,360,209

Name of Representative (if any) Representative’s Mailing Address (For notices)

Please select your ground(s) for appeal from the list below. As part of the appeal, an explanation must
be provided responding to each ground for which you are appealing. Each ground for appeal listed
. below includes directions as to what should be included in the explanation. ~

1) There are math/clerical errors that require the Hearing Decision to be updated. (Please clearly
explain the math/clerical ervors. ) E

2) Appealing the decision for one of the grounds below (required):

S a) &( The decision is inconsistent with OMC Chapter 8.22, Rent Board Regulations or prior decisions
of the Board. (In your explanation, you must identify the Ordinance section, regulation or prior Board
decision(s) and describe how the description is inconsistent. ). '

b) [ The decision is inconsistent with decisions issued by other Hearing Officers. (In your explanation,
you must identify the prior inconsistent decision and explain how the decision is inconsistent,)

¢) d The decision raises a new policy issue that has not been decided by the Board. (In your expldnaz‘z'on,
you must provide a detailed statement of the issue and why the issue should be decided in your favor.).

d) [ The decision violates federal, state or local law. (In your explanation, Yyou must provide a detailed
Statement as to what law is violated, )

B O S BWZTheﬂecision"i's‘nOt supported by substantial evidence. (7 your explanation, you must explain why
the decision is not supported by substantial evidence Jound in the case record,)

For more information phone (510) 238-3721.

Rev. 6/18/2018

000072




£

1) Ul I'was denied a sufficient opportunity to present my claim or respond to the petitioner’s claim. {n
your explanation, you must describe how you were denied the chance to defend your claims and what
evidence you would have presented. Note that a hearing is not required in every case. Staff may issue a
decision without a hearing if sufficient facts. to make the decision are not in dispute.)

g) [ The decisioh denies the Owner a fair return on my investment. (You may appeal on this ground only
when your underlying petition was based on q fair veturn claim. You must specifically state why you have been
denied a fair return and attach the calculations Supporting your claim.) ‘

h) [ Other. (& your explanation, you must attach a detailed explanation of your grounds for appeal.)

Submissions to the Board must zot exceed 25 pages from each party, and they must be received by the Rent
Adjustment Program with a proof of service on opposing party within 15 days of filing the appeal. Only the first
25 pages of submissions from each party will be considered by the Board, subject to Regulations 8.22.010(A)(5).
Please number attached pages consecutively. Number of pages attached: .

¢ You must sérve a copy of your appeal on the opposing parties or your appeal may be dismissed. e

I declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California that on Jung 724 20 9.

I placed a copy of this form, and all attached pages, in the United States mail or deposited it with a commercial

carrier, using a service at least as expeditious as first class mail, with all postage or charges fully prepaid,
~ addressed to each opposing party as follows: :

T Sy Zadabak

Address o), U M’%‘—‘M
Q‘igy, §tgte. Zip , PE,Q..(LQ—L"A'\{ CjAr ‘:i*—{%”:}"

‘_N;am_e , Aors G Conines”
Address 40! Hardison Shecek, (UM Dieor

City, Stéte Zip C';‘&\..ﬂ M{ ¢ ﬁ, L’Ug I’Z.,. .

e g — |6.9% 2019

SIGNATURE of APPELLANT or DESIGNATED REPRESENTATIVE DATE

For more information phone (510) 238-3721.

Rev. 6/18/2018

000073




e
r

- Chester Martin & Kristen Ponger
5553 Kales Avenue

. Oakland, CA 94618
“June 27, 2019

Rent Adjustment Program (RAP)
- City of Oakland, CA
Re: Appeal

Case Number(s):
T18-0414
T18-0472 -

Tenant(s):
Chester “Chase” Martin
Kristen Ponger

~Landlord:
Sherry Zalabak

Rental Property Address: 5553 Kales Avenue, Oakland, CA 94618
Tenants Cause for Appeal:
We are appealing the decisio'n'on the following grounds:

1. (a) The decision is inconsistent with OMC Chapter 8.22.060

A. Notice at the Commencement of Tenancy

C. Failing to Give Notice v _
2. (c) The decision raises a new policy issue that has not been decided by the Board
3. (e) The decision is not supported by substantial-evidence

Key Points:

1. (a) The decision is inconsiétent with OMC Chapter 8.22.060:
- As stated in Case T18-0414, Tenants never received notice of RAP at the
E cbmmencement of our tenancy or 6 months pfior to rent increase notice (OMC
8.22.060). The property'was then being rented as a muiti-unit property (confirmed by

landiord). The first RAP notice was provided on November 4, 2018.

000074




2, (c) The decision raises a new policy issue that has not been decided by the BOard
- If an owner can remove an illegal unit from the rental market in order to restore their
property’s status to exempt for the purposes of evading OMC Chapter 8.22, so that the
owner can then raise the remaining tenant's rent 70%, how does that foster the fair

housing purpose of the program?

3. (e) The decision is not supported by substantial evidence:
- Hearing Decrsmn Summary from March 5th hearing rncludes assessments contradrctory
to factual evidence filed in tenant petition _
- Thereisno ewdence tha_t the back unit was occupied when the owner inherited
the property. No proof of occuoancy was submitted for time prior to 2012
- There is no evidence that the owner was unaware of the legal status of the back
unit. The evidence shows the opposite. Owner claims that she had no knowledge
of the legality of the umt until tenants filed a petition. As you can see in Exhibit H
[attached] from T18-0414 petition, which is dated May 25th, 2018 discussion of
the Iegality of the unit had been raised at this point. This had been discussed
. between landlord and tenant on many occasions
- There is no original permit for the ‘office”, therefore the owner's application for a
permit to “restore to office use” is invalid and the unit is still deemed a resrdentlal
+ structure. Hearing officer accepted a verbal confirmation from the landlord who
. claimed to have permit at home. She accepted this as evrdence despite the hard
evidence provided by tenants provrng there is no evidence or record of such
permit. Records obtained from the City of Oakland.

In Summary

The landlord has strategically used certain tactics such as. removal of the stove to evade rent
control (The stove remains in the laundry room with the intention of reinstalling it to the back
unit). This remains a bad faith rent increase and an attempt to force tenants out of the home. A
single-family dwelling is not exempt and is considered a two-unit building if there is another
residential structure on the same lot, regardless of the Iegality of the unit. Owners application for
permit to “restore to office use” is invalid as there is no orlglnal perm|t Therefore, the property

remains as a two-unit property.

000075



. . ; U /
71292018 ’ 7 ! il - Primt Kales Ave. Fwd: Lense Expiration and Offer tof 1ase

W i O{"["i };5 ‘ o _ Chase Martin <chasemartins@gmall.com>
Print Kales Ave. Fwd: Lease Expiration and Offer to Purchase
2 messages

b i g ma o e s n e e —

Kristen Ponger < . o - - ‘ Mon, Jul 23; 2018 at 11:53 AM
To: Chase Martin - ' .

------- Forwarded meeaans o
From: Chase Martin_ - »
" Date: Fri, May 25, 2018 at 2:08 PM
Subject: Re: Lease Expiration and Offer to Purchase
_To: Sherry Zalabak « > :
Cc: kristen Ponger —

Hi Sherry,

We have been thinking about you guys and really hope that John is hanging in there. | am surs you all are doing everything
you can to make the best out of a difficult situation. We are hoping for the best.

We appreciate you getling that stained leaf glass back to us, it was a gift with sentimental value to us. You can leave it in
our maiibox anytime. The weed whacker you saw was the Black & Decker one that our neighbor loaned us, but the one we
are missing is a nice (also orange) STIHL whacker that Ron gifted to me when we move inta Kales, and it's stil missing.
Can you pleass follow up with Maco about this? Thank youl :

~ As far as planning for the future, | know you are eager to know where we stand on the house. Kristen and I absolufely Jove.
the Kales house and have cared for it as if it was our own the. past 3.5 years. We are very interestad in our ¢ollective dream
of a mutually-beneficial purchasing agresment between the four of us. With that said, we had our reaitor evaluate the houss
and give us comps on updated/renovated 1Br/1Baths in our neighborhood, which we would be happy to share with you. Our
realtor's professional review of 17 comps In the area shows a cutrent fair market value of 750K -

- Based on this, knowing the ins and outs of the house, recognizing that this would be a direct sale for you without realior and
other fees, we would like to purchase the house “as is,” without inspection at 750K. This is taking the current condition of
the house into consideration, knowing that it needs major repairs, as well as the fact that the unit in the back is not legal and
from a realtor's point-of-view is considered a liability, rather than an asset. We caniot go higher than this and don't have
room for negotiation. But, we are very flexible to alternative financing arrangements that we'va spoken about befora such as
a down-payment then renting to buy. :

Our baby is due to arrive on July Sth, and as you can imagine we are entirely focused on preparations for the birth, Of
course, settling on an agreement for the Kales house Is also a major priority. Our apologies for not getting back to you
sooner regarding the termination of lease agreement you dropped off. We wanted to let you know that we don't plan on
signing this, but will do our best to work with you through the details of buying Kales.

We look forward to hiearing your thoughts on this. We'd be happy to meet in person to talk more specifically about the
details. :

All the best,

Chase & Kristen

On Thu, May 10, 2018 at 8:13 AM, Sherry Zalabak <sherZ@comcast.nat> wrote:

‘Hi Chase,

[ assumed that the stained giass leaf was left by the tenant. Yes. | have it here and will return it, Re. the two garden
tools you described——I did see them during our work days there and Maco did use your red rake but we Jid not take
them. Did you look in the basement craw! space? When t want back to water the plants a week after Maco and |
firished | saw the weed-wacker. It was sitting to the left of the crawl-space door in the laundry room. | remember this as

bt -l google.com/mailiu0ui=2&ik=¢h 7902060 jos e sMmbw DAINC_o uit deebl=gimail | fe_18072.4 L4 _p&vien =p(&c:u:KaIL's‘I€.Iﬂl’hnrbtﬁnzw-. s




St

o

CITY OF OAKLAND

CITY OF OAKLAND

RENT ADJUSTMENT PROGRAM
P.O. Box 70243 |
Oakland, CA 94612-0243
(510) 238-3721

“| For date stamp.

WIB0EL -5 Pi L2y
PROPERTY OWNER
RESPONSE

Please Fill Out This Form As Completely As You Can. Failure to provide needed information

may result in your response being rejected or delayed.

CASE NUMBER T 18-0414

Complete Address (with zip code)

Your Name Telephone:
Sherry Zalabak 402 Vermont Avenue ‘
Berkeley, CA 94707 —
Email:

Your Representative’s Name (if any) Complete Address (with zip code) Telephone:
Alana Grice Conner 1901 Harrison Street, 14th Floor (510) 625-0100
Fried & Williams LLP Oakland, CA 94612 Email:

» aconner@friedwilliams.com

Tenant(s) Name(s) Complete Address (with zip code) Telephone:
Chester "Chase" Martin 5553 Kales Avenue
Kristen Ponger Oakland, CA 94618 .

' Email:

Property Address (If the property has more than one address, list all addresses)
5553 Kales Avenue, Oakland, CA 94618

Total number of units on
property
Single Famﬂy Residence

Have you paid for your Oaklahd Business License? Yes Kl No I Lic. Number:

00182031

The property owner must have a current Oakland Business License. if it is not current, an Owner Petition or
Response may not be considered in a Rent Adjustment proceeding. Please provide proof of payment. -

Have you paid the.current year’s Rent Program Service Fee ($68 per unit)? Yes B No [ APN:48A-7043-40
The property owner must be current on payment of the RAP Service Fee. 'If the fee is not current, an Owner Petition _
or Response may not be considered in a Rent Adjustment proceeding. Please provide proof of payment.

Date on which you acquired the building; _10/07 /10 .

Is there more than one street address on the parcel? Yes [1 No X .

Type of unit (Circle One):[House} Condominium/ Apartment, room, or live-work

L JUSTIFICATION FOR RENT INCREASE You must check the appfopriate justification(s) -

box for each increase greater than the Annual CPI adjustment contested in the tenant(s) petition.
For the detailed text of these justifications, see Oakland Municipal Code Chapter 8.22 and the Rent

Rev. 3/28/17

For more information phone (510)-238-3721,

1

000077




Board Regulations. You can get additional information and copies of the Ordinance and
Regulations from the Rent Program office in person or by phoning (510) 238—372_1_: el T

You must prove the contested rent increase is justified. For each justificati n, ilbgglﬂ{edmonmt‘he
following table, you must attach organized documentary evidence dem’onstratin?gﬂﬁ'g)

to the increase.. This documentation may include cancelled checks, receipts, and invoices.
Undocumented expenses, except certain maintenance, repair, legal, accounting and management
expenses, will not usually be allowed. :

Date of _ Banking - Increased Capital Uninsured Debt - Fair

Contested (deferred Housing Improvements Repair Service Return
Increase annual | Service Costs Costs
increases ) , .
o O O Ol O o
O O o 0o O O
O O O O O m}

If you are justifying additional contested increases, please attach a separate sheet.

IL RENT HISTORY If you contest the Rent History stated on the Tenant Petition, state the
correct information in this section. . If you leave this section blank, the rent history on the tenant’s
petition will be considered correct ‘ :

The tenant moved into the rental unit on Nox}ember 242014
The tenant’s initial rent including all services provided was: § 2,600.00 / month.

Have you (or a previous Owner) given the City of Oakland’s form entitled “NOTICE TO TENANTS OF
RESIDENTIAL RENT ADJUSTMENT PROGRAM” (“RAP Notice”) to all of the petitioning tenants?
Yes _X No I don’t know

If yes, on what date was the Notice first given? Qctober 10, 2018 but unit is exempt

Is the tenant current on the rent? Yes X . No

Begin with the most recent rent and work backwards. If you need more space please attach another sheet.

Date Notice Date Increase Rent Increased =~ Did you provide the “RAP
Given Effective : .| NOTICE” with the notice
(mo./day/year) From To of rent increase?
10/10/18 12/15/18 $ 2,652.00 $ 4,500.00 | Yes - ONo
12/1/16 11117 ¥ 2,600.00 5 2,652.00 OYes @No
$ $ OYes [ONo
% $ H¥es BNo
$ $ OYes 0ONo
2

For more information phone (510)-238-3721.
Rev. 3/28/17

000078

b entitlerhients: 24




I EXEMPTION

Tf you claim that your property is exempt from Rent Adjustment (Oakfand’ Munieipal Code
') o y 5% ( K 3 = . ) £y 3 ey g - )

Chapter 8.22), please check one or more of the grounds: WIEDEC-5 Pi 1 oL,

i The unit is a single family residence or condominium exempted by the Costa Hawlkins Rental

Houging Act (California Civil Code 195450, et seq.). X claiming exemption under Costa-Elawkins,
please answer the following questions on a separate shect: :

Did the pnm tenant leave after being given a notice to quit (Cwﬂ Code Bection 1946)?

Didthe prlor tenant leave after being given a notice of rent jncrease (Civil Code Seation §27)?

Was the prior tenant evisted for cause?:

-Are there any outstanding violations of building: hc-usmg, fire or safety vodes in the unit or build! mg‘7

Ts the unit a single family dwelling or condominium that can be sold separately?

Did the pemmnmg tenant have roommates when he/she moved in?

If the unit is a condommlum did you purchase it? If so: 1) froim whom? 2) Did you purchase the entire

building?

S L

O The rent for the unit i& controlled, regulated or subsidized by a governmental unit, agency or
au’chomy other than the City of Oakland Rent Adjustment Qrdinance,

: I‘:I The unit was newly constructed and a certificate of occupancy was issued for 1t on or after
January 1, 1083,

O On the day the petition was filed, the tenant petitioner was a resident of a8 motel, hotel, or
hoarding house less than 30 days, : ’

| The subject unit is in a building that was rehabilitated at a cost of 50% or more of the average
basic cost of new constroction.

mi ‘The unit is an aceommodation in & hospital, convent, monastery, extended care facility,
conyalescent home, non-profit home for aged, or dormitory owned and operated by an educational

mstxtutlon.

I The unit 15 located in a building with three or fower units. The owner oceupies one of the units
continuonsly a3 his o her prineipal residence and has done so for at least one year, :

IV. DECREASED HQUSING SERVICES

If thie petition filed by your tenant claims Decreased Housing Services, state your position regarding the
tenant’s clalm(s) of decreased housing sorvices, If you need more space attach a séparate sheet, Submit
- any documents, photographs or other tangible cwdfmw that SUPPQI’tS your position,

V. VERII“ICATION

I declare under penalty of perjury pursuant to the laws of the State of California that all
statements made in this Response are true and that all of the documenty attached hereto

m‘c tm pies of the originals. '
e ek 7S
?ﬂﬂukwﬁ Cerm \ /b A v

Pré) operty OvZﬁer’s Signature ' Date

_ Fer more information phone (510)-238-3721,
Rav. 3/28/17

000079



Landlord Narrative

The Tenants’ petition must be dismissed because the Rent Adjustmeﬁf i’régramﬁoésn’bha?&le
jurisdiction. The rental unit is exempt from rent control because it is a single-family residence
exempted by the Costa-Hawkins Rental Housmg Act (California Civil Code §1954.50 et seq.).
See Attachment A, Property Assessment Information. Furthermore, the Tenants’ petition is
incomplete because the Tenants failed to. sign the verification under penalty of perjury which is
required. Nonetheless, if the hearing officer seeks to further review the petition, Landlord

responds as follows:

To address the issues raised by Tenant in section I. Grounds for Petition, Landlord responds
as follows

~ (b) The rental unit is exempt from rent control because it is a single-family residence
exempted by the Costa-Hawkins Rental Housing Act (Cahforma Civil Code 1954.50). The CPI
Adjustment does not apply to the rental unit.

(c) The rental unit is exempt from rent control because it is a single-family residence
exempted by the Costa-Hawkins Rental Housing Act (California Civil Code 1954. 50). The
property owner is not required to receive approval from the Rent Adjustment Program for the
contested rent increase. -

(d) The rental unit is exempt from rent control because it is a single-family residence
exempted by the Costa-Hawkins Rental Housing Act (California Civil Code 1954. 50). The
property owner is not required to provide the Notice of the Rent Adjustment Program (RAP

Notice) form.

(e) The rental unit is exempt from rent control because it is a smgle ~-family residence
exempted by the Costa-Hawkins Rental Housing Act (Cahforma Civil Code 1954.50). The
property owner is not required to. provide the Notice of the Rent Adjustment Program (RAP

- Notice) form.

(k) The rental unit is exempt from rent control because it is a single-family residence
exempted by the Costa-Hawkins Rental Housing Act (California Civil Code 1954.5 0). The limit
for rent increases over 30% over a 5-year period does not apply to the rental unit..

1) This exemption is based on a State law and there is no fraud or mistake.

000080




11/14/2018

ALAMEDA COUNTY, CA

acgov.org

Search Results - Assessor - Alameda County

{

Skip County Header

ATTACHMENT_A

ONLINE SERVIOGES I : Assessor's Office | Tre
PROPERTY ASSESSMENT INFORMATION ¥

2018 - 2019 Assessment Information

SRS
asurer-Tax Colle

ctor | New Query’ "

assesfigfmreee ,
AR ST I T TN

B Parcel Number: 48A-7043-40

:: ;l'\;sessor‘s Map: (Map image is not to Map. Disclaimer

B Use Code:

B Description e

@ Land $152,004.00 -

& Improvements $354,677.00

W Fixtures 0

W Household Personal Property 0

B Business Personal Property 0

8 Total Taxable Value $506,681.00 -
Exemptions

& Homeowner 0

& Other 0

B Total Net Taxable Value $506,681.00

Additional Assessment Information | Property Tax Information

Adobe Acrobat Reader is required to view the.maps. Click here to download.

@‘i Alameda County © 2018 + All Rights Reserved * Legal / Disclaimers » Accessibility

https://www.acgov.org/MS/prop/index.aspx

000081

2

11



o —J

1. ACCOUNT NUMBER 00182031 2, TAXRATE:: ~ $13.95 per $i,o‘oo SR X mbusTnY CODE: M
4 Malllng Address _ . Do Checkthe followmg appl:cablebox(es)
. WE ZALABAK SHERRYD l ) CI .4%-1‘._" lfyou are maklngohangesto unes4-12 see enclosed mstructlons ; . .
- 402 VERMONT AVE . Q 4b Clalming 2 Small Buslne_ss Exempﬂon total gross recelpts must be $3 100 or less
E BERKELEY CA 94707-1722 ’ ' . - andydu MUSTsubmrtaF 1 4508 § ) - :
' - ) o _ - Note: 'nus exemphon must .' ; )
D 40}'lf you dlscontlnued/sold Your . buslness or rental property In 2017 or 2018 Complete
K Sectlons lland in. Retumslgned declaratlon wrth total payment ) .
. S : ~|:l' 4,'4_: Requestmg apportionment of your EI'OSS recelpts éomplete worksheet in fhe’
5. Business Name: - ZALABAK SHERRY D : o enclosed lnstruchon #13 (only lndusn'yCodesA B, C, D EF,G, lT&Zmayapply) ’

r O g
CITY OF OAKLAND 2018 BUSINESS TAf)‘ ‘FCLARATION (Green) 4 [ 6
BUSINESS TAX RENEWAL L

510-238-3704

2019 REMEWALTAY
Renew & Pay Onllne @ HTTPS /LTSS, OAKLANDNET com

Delmquent |f pard/postmarked after March 1, 2018

lllLLS \

SECTION 1 - BUSINESS INFORMATION

6. Business Location: . 5553 KALES AVE, OAKLAND, CA84618-1506 _ ‘ o
' ' 8. Email Address:  SHERZ@COMCAST.NET

7. Business Phone Number: - {510) 29?-8628 , _
9. State Contractor's License' Number: - ’ N 10. Ownership Type: . Sole Proprietorship
T11. 1st Owner’s Name: Sherry D Zalabak . 12.2nd OWner’_s Name: 4

. sscnow II-CALCULATETHEZOISTAXES DUE: Please include dollars afd cerits (e.z. $1,000:00) oo @ ZP Wsc:f \,l\ \z o 5

i3, 2018 TAX BASE (2047 Gross Rental Incorie) : 13,8 ‘ go0 IF oAiD AFI'ER M ARCH 1, 2015,
14. 20?.8 TA'XlDUE, (l_vlultiply Line 13 by 01395 OR enter $13,95, whichever is 14.5 z Z 5 P enal (on tax)
greater) ’ S : . ) ADD 0% (rf pald etween
15, PENALTY DUE (See box at right if paying dfter 3/1/2018) ' 15. 8 :
16. INTEREST DUE (see box at right if paying after 3/1/2018) - : / 16.%
17. PRIOR AMOUNT DUE (Go to HTTPS://LTSS.0AKLANDNET.COM for the most 7 T {, o .
17.8 670.18
current balance due) . ) . [,
) . ¢ " .

i8. RECORDATION AND TECHNOLOGY FEE - - 185 200
19, State Mandated Disebllity Access and Education Revolving Fund ' 19. $- 4.00 i
20. TOTALAMOUNT DUE (Add Lines 14-19) 20.%
PAYMENT OPTIONS - YOU CAN NOW PAY ONLINE ! - . o '?(7
ONLINE: VISA, MasterCard, Discover or eCheck at HTTPS://LTSS. OAKLANDNET.COM

Enter your account number: 00182031 and your personahzed PIN: 775859
BY MAIL: Send one check per account made payable to “Oakland Business Tax.” DO NOT SEND CASH. -

IN PERSON' Cash Check or VisA, MasterCard or Discover (see reverse for hours & hol(days)

o - - Y .
o
SECTION i - HOW TO CLOSE YOUR ACCOUNT - Was this business or rental property sold or the activity permanently discontinited? :
To close your account ‘complete Section Ii and remit any applicable payment due. Check Bax 4¢ {above)and complete linelor2 (below)
1. Business or Rerital Property in Oakland was R S - Toi close the account, this declaration must be completed, signed and

dlscontlnued on: ) : returned, with any payment that is due, on or before Morch 1, 2018.

[:l If you would like to opt out of paper correspondence please check the box and update your: emall address on Llne 8 above.

| hereby declare, under penalty of pel;lury, that the lnformatlon contained herein is to the best of my knowledge true and complete

Signed: ' . : 4 - Phone:; ._ ' . Date:
Renew & Pay online @ HTTPS:IILTSS.,O'AKL'ANDNET.COM

Printed 1/5/2018:1o:so am D%fi% \/(-;”‘" l"’} <a/l\*~*"’7 ZAUATHAKC 2/2///6/ 000082 ‘ 3




T 4 g . MMM ML UM M L L T VAR AR G0 WA I MU UL AL G Y UL § Ny,

iD t ai cn |

Check Details , 016 DEC 0 P2y
Check Number : L ' 723 |
Date Posted ' | ’ 02/23/18
Check Amount ' ' ' $424.50
" JOHN ZALABAK
IR |||/ T
; Bz ey Qo
Date

s (i, g ONCLAOD, s sz.
_r&w&ém.éﬁaﬂ

8“0.11"

= i

For your security, information like account humbers, signatures, and the ability to view the backs of
checks have been removed from thé images.
You can see full or partial fronts and backs of the images by using the link at the top of the window.

=r Equal Housing Lender

of 1 | o ‘0000§§2018, g:u PN




YOS Fargo . ' ) nups:/connect.secure.welisrargo.conyaccounts/ mquiry/summary/det.,

#N P .
( | ( |

Check Details | S T
Check Number ‘ » 722

Date Posted ‘ : 02/26/18

Check Amount : ~ $68.00

Compaw»%ek
JOHN ZALARAK

o ey oy i

e ("m ﬁ/&’?ﬁﬁ-ﬁﬂrﬂb s 6527
Ste gty “@{W dﬂf/% @ B

L g /
Ly

For your security, mformatlon like account numbers, sxgnatures, and the ab;llty to view the backs of
checks have been removed from the images.

You can see full or partlal fronts and backs of the images by using the link at the top of the window.

PIAWR KA M S rmrnrd.

= Equal Housing Lender

00008241/2018, g:‘u PM



FE

LR RATS

WIEDEC -5 P iz oL,

I Justification for Rent Increase

Date of Contested Rent Increase: 10/10/18 effective 12/15/18
Justification: Single Family Home exemption

1. Exemption Attachment

1. Did the prior tenant leave after being given a notice to quit (Civil Code Section 1946)?
No .
2. Did the prior tenant leave after being given a notice of rent increase (Civil Code Section
827)?
No :
3. Was the prior tenant evicted for cause?
No
4. Are there any outstanding violations of building housing, fire or safety codes in the unit
' or building? :
No - »
5. Isthe unit a single family dwelling or condominium that can be sold separately?
Yes , ,
6. Did the petitioning tenant have roommates when he/she moved in?
No
7. If the unit is a condominium, did you purchase it? No _
If so: 1) from whom? N/A 2) Did you purchase the entire building? N/A

000085



CITY OF OAKLAND : ~F°}r fiafF\’JStia.nLP i T

RENT-ADJUSTMENT PROGRAM | )

P.O. Box 70243

Oakland, CA 94612-0243
- (510) 238-3721

TENANT PETITION

CITY OF OAKLAND

Please Fill Qut This Form As Completely As You Can. Failure to provide needed information may
- result in your petition being rejected or delayed. '

Please pﬁnﬁzgﬂ)ly 4

Your Name S Rental Address (with zip code) , Telephone:

CHESTER "CHASE" MARTIN | 5553 KALES AVENUE

KRISTEN PONGER : OAKLAND, CA 94618 E-mail; R

Your Representative’s Name : .| Mailing Address (with zip code) Telephone: |
Email:

Property Owner(s) name(s) Mailing Address (with zip code) | Telephb_ng:

SHERRY ZALABAK 402 VERMONT AVENUE T

: BERKELEY, CA 94707 D -

Property Manager or Management Co. Mailing Addresé (with zip code) Telephone:

(if applicable) ’
Email:

-Number of units on the property: 2

Type of unit you.rent .. ’ U Apartment, Room, or

(check one) ' x House d Condomlm'um Live-Work

Are you current on

your rent? (check one) x Yes 2 No

If you are not current on your rent, pleasé explain, (If you are legally withholding rent state what, if any, habitability violations exist in
yOur unit.) " :

I.. GROUNDS FOR PETITION: Check all that apply. You must check at least one box. For all of the

grounds for a petition see OMC 8.22.070 and OMC 8.22.090. I (We) contest one or more rent increases on
one or more of the following grounds:

(a) The CPI and/or banked rent increase notice I was given was calculated incorrectly.

TR (b) The increass(s) exceed(s) thie CPI Adjustment and is (are) unjust:fied or is (are) greater than 10%.
(¢) Ireceived a rent increase notice before the property owner received approval from the Rent Adjustment

X | Program for such an increase and the rent increase exceeds the CPI Adjustment and the available banked
- | rent increase. = : : . o

Rev. 7/31/17

For more information phone (510) 238-3721. | . ' |

000086




% (d) No written notice of Rent Program was given to me togethei' with the notice of increase(s) I am
contesting. (Only for increases noticed after July 26, 2000.) :

% (¢) The property owner did not give me the required form “Notice of the Rent Adjustment Program” at least
6 months before the effective date of the rent increase(s).

(f) The rent increase notice(s) was (were) not given to me in compliance with State law.

(g) The increase I am contesting is the second increase in my rent in a 12-month period.

(h) There is a current health, safety, fire, or building code violation in my unit, or there are serious problems
-with the conditions in the unit because the owner failed to do requested repair and maintenance. (Complete
Section III on following page) '

(i) The owner is providing me with fewer housing services than I received previously or is charging me for
services originally paid by the owner. (OMC 8.22.070(F): A decrease in housing services is considered an
increase in rent. A tenant may petition for a rent adjustment based on a decrease in housing services.)
(Complete Section III on following page)

() My rent was not reduced after a prior rent increase period for.a Capital Improvement had expired.

(k) The proposed rent increase would exceed an overall increase of 30% in 5 years. (The 5-year period
begins with rent increases noticed on or after August 1, 2014).

x

x (1) I'wish to contest an exemption from the Rent Adjustment Ordinance because the exemption was based on
fraud or mistake. (OMC 8.22, Article )] : '

(m) The owner did not give me a summary of the justification(s) for the increase despite my written request.

(n) The rent was raised illegally after the unit was vacated as set forth under OMC 8.22.080.

II. RENTAL HISTORY: (You must complete this s_ection)_

Date you moved into the Unit: NOV- LL‘ | LU‘ “! Initial Rent: § 2,600 /month

When did the owner first provide you with the RAP NOTICE, a written NOTICE TO TENANTS of the
existence of the Rent Adjustment Program? Date: Never . Ifnever provided, enter “Never.”

Is your rent subsidized or controlled by any government agency, including HUD (Section 8)? Yes

List all rent increases that you want to challenge. Begin with the most recent and work backwards. If
you need additional space, please attach another sheet. If you never received the RAP Notice you can
contest all past increases. You must check “Yes” next to each increase that you are challenging.

Date you | Date increase Monthly rent increase | Are you Contesting Did You Receive a

received the goes into effect : this Increase in this Rent Program

notice (mo/day/year) _ _ Petition?* Notice With the
(mo/day/year)- From To : " Notice Of
: Increase?

06/05/18 08/01/18 - | $2,652 $ 4,500 #$Yes _No - LYes %No

12/1116 11117 52600 |S 2652 UYes  No ~Yes  XNo

$ $ UYes _No ZYes ©No

$ $ UYes = No ZYes i No

$ $ EHes—=No =Yes ITNo

3 $ UYes _No ~Yes iNo

Rev. 73117 For more information phone (510) 238-3721. 2

000087




* You have 90 days from the date of notice of increase or from the first date you received written notice of the
existence of the Rent Adjustment program (whichever is later) to contest a rent increase. (OM.C.822.090A 2) If
you did not receive a RAP Notice with the rent increase you are contesting but have received it in the past, you
have 120 days to file a petition. (0.M.C. 8.22.090 A k)] : :

Have you ever filed a petition for this rental unit?
@ Yes
® No

List case number(s) of all Petition(s) you have ever filed for this rental unit and all other relevant Petitions:

II. DESCRIPTION OF DECREASED OR INADE UATE HOUSING SERVICES:
Decreased or inadequate housing services are considered an increase in rent. If you claim an unlawful
rent increase for problems in your unit, or because the owner has taken away a housing service, you must
complete this section. ' . :

. Are'you being charged for services originally paid by the owner? . . OYes = NNo

Have you lost services originally provided by the owner or have the conditions changed? OYes NNo
Are you claiming any serious problem(s) with the condition of your rental unit? OYes N No

If you answered “Yes” to any of the above, or if you checked box (h) or (i) on page 2, please attach a
separate sheet listing a description of the reduced service(s) and problem(s). Be sure to include the
following: '

1) alist of the lost housing service(s) or problem(s);

2) the date the loss(es) or problem(s) began or the date you began paying for the service(s)

3) when you notified the owner of the problem(s); and .

~4) how you calculate the dollar value of lost service(s) or problem(s).

Please attach documentary evidence if available.

You have the option to have a City inspector come to your unit and inspect for any code violation. To make an
appointment, call the City of Oakland, Code of Compliance Unit at (510) 238-3381.

IV. -VERIFICATIONﬁ The tenant must sign:

I declare under penalty of perjury pursuant to the laws of the State of California that everything I said
in this petition is true and that all of the documents attached to the petition are true copies of the
originals. '

Tenant’s Signature - ' : ~ Date

L

Rev. 73017 For more information phone (510) 238-3721, : 3

000088



V. MEDIATION AVAILABLE: Mediation is an entirely voluntary process to assist you in reaching an
agreement with the owner. If both parties agree, you have the option to mediate your complaints before a
hearing is held. If the parties do not reach an agreement in mediation, your case will go to a formal hearing
before a different Rent Adjustment Program Hearing Officer. _ ' :

You may choose to have the mediation conducted by a Rent Adjustment Program Hearing Officer or select an
outside mediator. Rent Adjustment Program Hearing Officers conduct mediation sessions free of charge. If
you and the owner agree to an outside mediator, please call (510) 238-3721 to make arrangements. Any fees
charged by an outside mediator for mediation of rent disputes will be the responsibility of the parties
requesting the use of their services. '

Mediation will be scheduled only if both parties agree (after both your petition and the owner’s response have
been filed with the Rent Adjustment Program). The Rent Adjustment Program will not schedule a
mediation session if the owner does not file a response to the petition. Rent Board Regulation 8.22.100.A.

If you want to schedule your case for mediation, sign below.

I agreao have my cage mediated by a Rent Adjustment Program Staff Hearing Officer (no charge). - .

ZMan gtz

Tenant’s Sighature Dat

'VI._IMPORTANT INFORMATION:

Time to File . : :

This form must be received at the offices of the Rent Adjustment Program (“RAP”) within the time limit for
filing a petition set out in the Rent Adjustment Ordinance (Oakland Municipal Code, Chapter 8.22). RAP staff
cannot grant an extension of time by phone to file your petition. Ways to Submit. Mail to: Oakland Rent
Adjustment Program, P.O. Box 70243, Oakland, CA 94612; In person: Date stamp and deposit in Rent
Adjustment Drop-Box, Housing Assistance Center, Dalziel Building, 250 Frank H. Ogawa Plaza, 6" Floor,
Oakland; RAP Online Petitioning System: http://rapwp.oaklandnet.com/petition-forms/. For more
information, please call: (510) 238-3721.

File Review :

Your property owner(s) will be required to file a response to this petition with the Rent Adjustment office
within 35 days of notification by the Rent Adjustment Program. When it is received, the RAP office will send
you a copy of the Property Owner’s Response form. Any attachments or supporting documentation from the
owner will be available for review in the RAP office by appointment. To schedule a file review, please call the
Rent Adjustment Program office at (510) 238-3721. If you filed your petition at the RAP Online Petitioning
System, the owner may use the online system to submit the owner response and attachments, which would be
accessible there for your review. : ’

VII. HOW DID YOU LEARN ABOUT THE RENT ADJUSTMENT PROGRAM?

Printed form providéd by the owner
Pamphlet distributed by the Rent Adjustment Program
Legal services or community organization

Sigmomrbus-or bus shetter
Rent Adjustment Program web site
Other (describe):

[ M

Rev. 7131117 For more information phone (510) 238-3721. _ 4

000089




Chester Martin & Kristen Ponger '

August 3 2018

Rent Adjustment Pfogram'(RAP) |
City of Oakland, CA o
~Re: Tenant Petition

* To Whom it May Concern:

Chester “Chase” Martin & Kristen Ponger, “Tenants’
Sherry Zalabak, “Landlord”
Rental Property Address: 5553 Kales Ave, Oakland, CA 94618

On June 5th, 2018 Landlord dropped off “Sixty Day Notice of Change in Terms of Tenancy”

[Attachment A] raising tenants’ rent 70% from $2,652/month to $4,500/month as of August 5th,

2018. Landiord’s behavior has be,én erratic and contradictory over the past 6 months, and no

justification for the rent increase has beén provided. Tenants Martin & Ponger are choosing to

_ proactively contest the increase via this petition on the following grounds.

1. Increase exceeds the CPJ Adjustment and is greater than 10% without RAP approval

2. Tenants have never received notice of RAP

3. Wish to contest an exemption from the Rent Adjustment Ordinance because the
exemption was based on fraud ‘

Key Points: , ‘ .

e 5553 Kales Avenue is publicly listed as a Single-Family Residence, but has been rented
as a duplex with two separate units since before current tenants Kristen & Chase signed
alease for front 1-BR unit in 2014 [Attachment B] ‘

e Tenants entered lease for front unit in November 2014, no RAP notice provided
[Attachment C] '

a. Previous tenants were Holly and Steve

® Since 2014, the back unit has had two different sets of tenants paying rent under own
respective leases . '

.a. Mike and LeAnne Devol (maiden name Fowlkes); $1,100/month
b. Lindsay Byrd and Isabel Avellan [Attachment D]; $1,400/month

e Landlord raised both front & rear units’ respective rents by 2% in January 2017 with no
RAP notice [Attachment E] '

e On March 28, 2018 Landlord states that tenants must vacate the property by July 1,
2018, so that she can make improvements to prepare for sale [Attachment F]

e On April 25, 2018, Landlord urged tenants repeatedly to sign agreement to terminate
lease [Attachment G], misrepresenting document as “extension of tenancy”
[Attachment H] :

000090




¢ Tenants do not have access to back unit but it is currently vacant. Landlord has told
tenants as reCently as July 2018 that they are restricted from back unit and yard, as -
those are a separate unit. , :

¢ Tenants have always paid rent on time, cared for the property, maintained and performed
minor upgrades and repairs at their own financial expense. Landlord stated in February
2018 that Martin & Ponger were “the best tenants she’s ever had”

Glossary of Attachments: :
Tenants are providing the following attached documentation outlining our historical rental
agreement and series of events that led to this petition. -
Attachment A: Sixty-Day Notice of Change in Terms of Tenancy (Rent Increase)
Attachment B: E-mail to back unit tenants announcing vacancy in front unit
Attachment C: Martin & Ponger Lease Agreement
- Attachment D: Byrd & Avellan Lease Agreement .
Attachment E: Increase in rent for both units without RAP Notice, Jan. 2017
Attachment F: Landlord states tenants must leave property to prepare for s
ale ‘ :
Attachment G: Landlord-Tenant Agreement to Terminate Lease
Attachment H: Urging tenants to vacate and sign lease termination, misrepresenting
document as an “extension” R
e Attachment J: Offer of sale—df—property with Landiord’s description of secondary unit

Background:

In February 2018, landlords of the 5553 Kales Avenue rental property, Sherry and John
Zalabak, invited the tehants, Chase Martin & Kristen Ponger, over to their home in the Berkeley
Hills to discuss the potential purchase of their Kales Ave rental property. The property at 5553
Kales includes two separate units: the 1-BR front house that Kristen & Chase have rented since
November 2014, and the rear standalone studio cottage which the landlord refers to as a
“‘Golden Duplex”. ' \ o

After tenants shared the news with the landlords that they were expecting their first child
in July, both parties left the February meeting in agreement that there was no rush to action
necessary and to reconvene in thé Fall of 2018 to discuss further.

On Sunday, March 25th at 9am Landlord Sherry showed up to tenant’'s home
unannounced to with a realtor friend named Julie Durkee. Landlord proceeded to barge into the
house for an impromptu appraisal of the front unit, while accosting the tenants with questions on
whether they were interested in buying another house down the street to move-in-before baby
arrives on July 9. A . '

- On March 27th, Tenants (Kristen & Chase) received an email and physical note from
landlord (Sherry) apologizing for her unannounced visit the previous weekend. E-mail stated
that circumstances had changed in respect to her husband’s health, and tenants must vacate

the unit by July 1, 2018 [Attachment F] in order to prepare the property for sale. Alternatively,
landlord gave the tenants 30 days to make an offer to purchase the property. Landlord stated
that tenants must make-an-offer or move out by July 1st. - : -

000091




On March 28th, Tenants Krlsten & Chase replled to Landlord s email confirming interest
in purchasmg the property, but could not make.an offer without the landlord first providing an
asking price. Tenants also requested that landlord would recons:der the July 1st vacancy
timeline since their baby was due that week.

On March 29th, Landlord dropped off a handwritten note [Attachment J] offering the
property “as is” for $1.3M through a private sale. At this point tenants took it upon themselves to
contact a real estate agent to conduct a comparable evaluation of the property who also referred
tenants to a lawyer, Jean Shrem.

On April 25th, Landlord beglns to repeatedly urge tenants to sign a “Landlord- Tenant
Agreement to Terminate Lease” document [Attachment G] without cause. Landlord
misrepresents this as an “extension” [Attachment H] of lease and her offer of sale.

On May 25th, Tenants email Landlord with a purchase offer while giving notice of their
refusal to sign “Termination of Lease” document.

On June 5th, 2018 Landlord shows up unannounced to drop off “Slxty Day Notice of
~ Change in Terms of Tenancy” [Attachment A], raising tenants rent 70%, from $2,652 to $4,500
effective August 5, 2018. Tenant Chase Martin was present at the time and approached
Landlord Sherry to discuss the legality of the notice, but was rebuffed by the landiord. Tenant
verbally informed Landlord of intention to file with Rent Board if i issue could not be resolved
amicably in private, but as of August 1st no reply received from Landlord.

000092



[Civil Code Section 827

TO: CHASE MARTIN » KRISTEN PONGER,
and all other persons claiming a right to possession of the premises described below

PREMISES 5553 Kales Avenue
Oakland, CA 94618
(hereinafter the “Subject Premises.”)

YOU ARE HEREBY NOTIFIED that 60 days following service of this Notice on you, the

terms of your tenancy for the Subject Premises will be changed, pursuant to California Civil Code
Section 827, as follows:

This new monthly rent represents the fair market rental value of the premises. Your new monthly
rent shall be due and payable as of August 5,2018. i

Please continue to make your monthly rent payments to your Landlord accdrding to the terms of
your lease agreement, '

Dated: %L{% o, / Y/ %ﬁ\:k?andlggj

000093




e

p : /

T Kosto s Chese_ i
| od b NoT™ QURS (4 Usin) 7@7’ e, /6 "f/”kq ¢
o e /Qéﬂd(‘mﬁ ‘ 2 @A #’Q ..&50/7\f

%47@

'm sorry if | created any upset on Saturday as the timing of our ongoing discussions was
intended to be leisurely. _ - ’ : v

We always planned to give you as much time as you needed to evaluate buying Kales. Recent
events have changed our time line, ‘ :

John's health is forcing us to make soms unintended and difficuit choices. | know that both of
our lives are in a period of drastic change, both good and bad (just like real life). We would love
for you to have the house. JUst knowing that folks we like are there is comforting to me.

The upsetting reality is that:

Let’s see if we can work something out among us. Please get back to me within 30 days with an
offer or let me know if You are not going to pursue one by then; April 27th, 2018.
much lead time as possible but need to let you know that i will needite’

|.am trying to give you as
ty:by J

useiem

Please feel free to call me or e-mail me anytime with your questions.

- Fondly, Sherry Zalabak:

000094




_ Landlord:

§/«ff<r<\/ 7ALMZ7H< -+

V\qé r'Z
Clesez R C’ﬁ‘l‘éé AV N, ‘U“( Krisrzd). 770
Tenant:

,. Sauher. 24
' agree that the lease they entered into for the time penod of A

0 Oa/zm ber 2-¢

ZQ /S for premises at
[z

OAKLLPr/\)D CALLFoRM A

THel

i termi No\/emﬁar{ [ 20l¥ f/}uo WoT o8 Tuo_qlz,or?

Additional conditions fer£apckitapian AiAfade:

TonANTS HM& The Op‘ﬁO)O

1o purchase PropevT Y dm( OWNC’K;A_

Land ord’s s:gndture

SRR Y ZpnABA

Print name

Tenant 75 signature

‘rint name

e——
Date

DI~ p
enant 2's signature

Z;/A)&P\CQ_ |

Date

P AR — )
TINL name N

mant 3's signature

nt name

_wwivolo.com

TN AN o oo

Landlord-Tenant Agreement t‘q‘T'ver_mlha Lease -




CHRONOLOGICAL CASE REPORT

Case No.: T18-0018
Case Name: Sund v Vemon Street Apartments
Property Address: 633 Alma Ave., #5, Oakland, CA.
Parties: ~ Jessica Sund (Tenant) .
' Paul Kranz  (Attorney for Tenant)
Kim Rohrbach  (Paralegal for Petitioner)

‘Greg McConnell (Owner Representative)

JR McConnell °

(Owner Representative)

Don MacRitchie (Witness for Owner)

Ursula Morales

(Property Manager)

~ Jessica Vernaglia (Property Supervisor)
Dave Wasserman (Owner Representative)

Lucky Stewart

TENANT APPEAL:

 Activity

Tenant Petition filed .

Owner Response ﬁled

Hearing Decision mailed

Tenant Appeal filed

Tenént filed Brief in Support éf Appeal
Attorney for Tenant filed “Notice of Errata

And Amended Submission in Support of
Appeal of Hearing Officer’s Decision”

(Agent for' Owner)

Date

November 29, 2017

April 2, 2018

December 20, 2018

January 9, 2019

'January 24,2019

January 29, 2019

000096




1
ARt

Tl% 001% R(‘/IMAT

;\‘.. AT A " i CITY' OF OAKLAND ‘ For date stamp,
VN . 57 RENT ADJUSTMENT PROGRAM -

P.0. Box 70243

Oakland, CA 94612-0243

1 (510) 238-3721 - : .
CTYoF OakLAND 108 4 ‘ : TENANT.PETITION

Please Fill Out This Form As Completely As You Can, Fallure to provnde needed information may
. result'in your petition being rejected or delayed.

Please print legibly . : '
| Your Name ' Rental Address (with zip code) " | Telephone;
Jessica Sund. . - .| 633 Alma Avenue, #5 B
- Oakland, CA 94610 (Fomail:
Your Representative’s,Name‘, v | Mailing Adaress (with zip code) - ' Telephcne:
Paul Kranz - 639 San Gabriel Avenue . ]
| Albany CA 94706 | Bmail: N
Property Owner(s) name(s) Mailing Addr'ess (with zip ccde) | Telephone: .
Vernon Street Apartments, LP C/ORussell B. Flynn '
aka Flynn Family Holdings, 1717 Powell Street, Suite 300 [Frmam
LG o San Francisco, CA 94133
Property Manager or Management Co Mailing Address (with zip code) - Telephone:
(if applicable) ‘ ‘ ' ’ o
Ursula Morales, Resident 633 Alma Avenue ' -
Manager | Oakland, CA 94619 - Email:
L . . AL I e

Number of units on the pmperty —1&— Thomas Preston, Property Superwsor 41

Type of unit you rent M Apartment, Room, or

(checkone) . U House O Condominjum . S
Are you current on
| your rent? (check one) M YeS O No

If you are not current on ‘your rent, please explam (If you are Iegally w1thholdmg rent state what, if any, habltabxllty v1olat10ns exist in
your unit.)

L_GROUNDS FOR PETITION: Check all that apply. You must check at least one box. For all of the

grounds for a petition see OMC 8.22.070 and OMC 8.22.090. I (We) contest one or more rent increases on
one or more of the following grounds: -

| (2) The CPI and/or banked rent increase notice I was given was calculated mcorrectly

| (b) The increase(s) exceed(s) the CPI Adjustment and is (are) unjustified or is (are) greater than 10%.

(c) Treceived a rent increase notice before the property owner received approval from the Rent Adjustment

Program for such an increase and the rent increase exceeds the CPI AdJ ustment and the available banked
rent increase.

Rev. 73117 For more information phone (510) 238-3721. 1

000097




(d) No written notice of Rent Program was given to me together with the notice of increase(s) I am
contesting. (Only for increases noticed after July 26, 2000.)

(e) The property owner did not give me the required form “No’nce of the Rent Adjustment Program” at least
6 months before the effective date of the rent 1ncrease(s) B

'| (£) The rent increase notice(s) was (were) not given to me in compliance with State law.

(g) The increase I am contesting is the second increase in my rent in a 12-month petiod.

(h) There is a current health, safety, fire, or building code violation in my unit, or. there are serious problems
with the conditions in the unit because the owner failed to do requested repair and malntenance (Complete
Section I1I on followmg page)

(i) The owner is providing me with fewer housing services than I rece1ved prev1ously oris chargmg me for
| services ongmally paid by the owner. (OMC 8.22.070(F): A decrease in housing services is considered an
increase in rent. A tenant may petition for a rent ad]ustment based on a decrease in housmg services.)
(Complete Section IIT on following page)

| §) My rent was not reduced after a prior rent increasé period for a Capltal Improvement had expired,

¢ (k) The proposed rent increase would exceed an overall increase of 30% in 5 years. (The 5-year per1od
begins with rent increases noticed on or after August 1, 2014).

(1) I'wish to contest an exemption from the Rent AdJustment Ordinance because the exemption was based on
fraud or mistake, (OMC 8.22, Article ) Unif is not exempt under Costa-Hawkins*

(m) The owner did not give me a summary of the justification(s) for the increase despite my written request.

(n) The rent was raised illegally after the unit was vacated as set forth under OMC 8.22.080.

* See Notace of Change to Terms of Tenancy (Attachment 1)

IL RENTAL HISTORY (You must complete this sectlon)

~ Date you moved into the Unit: _7/10/08  Initjal Rent'$ 895.00 o /month

When did the owner first prov1cle you with the RAP NOTICE, a written N OTICE TO TENANTS of the
existence of the Rent Adjustment Program? Date: No later than . If never provided, enter “Never.”

2014-2015 or thereabout
Is your rent subsidized or controlled by any government agency, mcludmg HUD (Section 8)? Yes ‘

List all rent increases that you want to challenge. Begin with the most recent and work backw,ards. If
you need additional space, please attach another sheet. If you never received the RAP Notice you can
contest all past increases. You must check “Yes” next to each increase that you are challenging,

Date you . | Date increase Monthly rent increase Are you Contesting | Did You Receive a
~ received the | goes into effect _ this Increase in this Rent Program
~ notice (mo/day/year) . Petition?* - Notice With the -
(mo/day/year) ) : From To _ : Notice Of
- V4 Auncrease?
Onorabout | 121117  |$ 90867 [$209500] WYes ONo | WYes ONo
916/17 ‘ $ $ ‘OYes ONo OYes ONo
$ $ OYes ONo OYes ONo
$ $ OYes ONo OYes ONo
$ $ OYes ONo OYes ONo
$ $ OYes ONo OYes ONo .
Rev. 768117 . For more information phone (510) 238-3721. 2

000098




* You have 90 days from the date of notice of increase or from the first date you received written notice of the

- existence of the Rent Adjustment program (whichever is Ilater) to contest a rent increase. (O,M.C. 8.22.090 A 2) If
you did not receive a RAP Notice with the rent increase you are contesting but have received it in the past, you
have 120 days to filea petltlon (0.M.C. 822,090 A 3)

Have you ever ﬁled a petition for this rental unit?
Q, Yes
{ No

List case number(s) of all Petition(s) you have ever filed for this rental unit and all other relevant Petitions:

III. DESCRIPTION OF DECREASED OR INADEQUATE HOUSING SERVICES:
Decreased or inadequate housing services are considered an increase in rent. If you claim an unlawful
rent increase for problems in your unit, or because the owner has taken away a housing service, you must

complete this section.

. Are you being charged for services originally paid by the owner? OYes ONo

. Have you lost services ongmally provided by the owner or have the condmons changed? OYes [OWNo -
Are you claiming any serious problem(s) with the condition of your rental unit? OYes [ONo

If you answered “Yes” to any of the above, or if you checked box (h) or (1) on page 2, please attach a
separate sheet listing a descrlptlon of the reduced servnce(s) and problem(s) Be sure to mclude the
_'followmg oL : :
1) alist of the lost housmg service(s) or problem(s),
2) the date the loss(es) or problem(s) began or the date you began paying for the service(s)
3) when you notified thé owner of the problem(s); and
4) how you calculate the dollar value of lost service(s) or problem(s)
Please attach documentary evidence if avallable.

You have the option to have a City inspector come to your unit and inspect for any code violation. To make an
appointment, call the C1ty of Oakland, Code-of Compliance Unit at (510) 23 8-3381

IV VERIFICATION The tenant must sign’

I declare under penalty of perjury pursuant to the laws of the State of California that everything I said
in this petltlon is true and that all of the documents attached to the petltlon are true copies of the
) orlgmals. :

Zﬁm\”\ ) o | if2a/1

Tenant’s Sighature - ~ Date

Rev. 73117 For more information phone (510) 238-3721. | 3

000099




Y. MEDIATION AVAILABLE Mediation is an entlrely voluntary process to assist you in reaching an
agreement with the owner. If both parties agree, you have the option to mediate your complaints before a
hearing is held. If the parties do not reach an agreement in mediation, your case wrll gotoa formal hearmg
before a dlfferent Rent Adjustment’ Program Hearing Offrcer :

You may choose to have the mediation conducted by a Rent Adjustment Program Heanng Officer or select an
outside mediator. Rent Adjustment Program Hearing Officers conduct mediation sessions free of charge. If
you and the owner agree to an outside mediator, please call (510) 238-3721 to make arrangements. Any fees
charged by an outside .mediator for mediation of rent drsputes will be the respon31b111ty of the part1es
requesting the use of their services.

Mediation will be scheduled only if both partres agree (after both your petition and the ownei’s response have |
been filed with the Rent Adjustment Program). The Rent Adjustment Program will not schedule a
mediation session if the owner does not file a response to the petition. Rent Board Regulation 8.22.100.A.

If you want to schedule your case for mediation, sign below.

Tagree to have my case mediated by a Rent Adjustment Program Staff Hearing Officer (no p11érge).

Tenant’s Signature o ‘ : Date

VI. IMPORTANT INFORMATION

Tlme to File ,

This form must be received at the offices of the Rent Adjustment Program (“RAP”) within the time limit for
filing a petition set out in the Rent Adjustment Ordinance (Oakland Municipal Code, Chapter 8.22). RAP staff
- cannot grant an extension of time by phone to file your petition, Ways to Submit. Mail to: Oakland Rent
Adjustment Program, P.O. Box 70243, Oakland, CA 94612; In person: Date stamp and deposit in Rent
Adjustment Drop-Box, Housing Assistance Center, Dalziel Building, 250 Frank H. Ogawa Plaza, 6" Floor,
Oakland; RAP Online Petitioning System: http://rapwp. 0'1k1'mdnet com/Detrtron forms/. For more
1nfor1nat1on please call: (510) 238-3721. . .

File Review : '

Your property owner(s) will be required to file a response to thls petltlon with the Rent Ad]ustment office
within 35 days of notification by the Rent Adjustment Program. When it is received, the RAP office will send
you a copy of the Property Ow_ner s Response form. Any attachments or supportmg documentation from the
owner will be available for review in the RAP office by appointment. To schedule a file review, please call the
Rent Adjustment Program office at (510) 238-3721. If you filed your petition at the RAP Online Petitioning
System, the owner may use the online system to submit the owner response and attachments, which would be
acce531b1e there for your.review. »

VIL HOW DID YOU LEARN ABOUT THE RENT ADJUSTMENT PROGRAM?

Printed form provided by the ownet

Pamphlet distributed by the Rent Adjustment Program
Legal services or community organization

Sign on bus or bus shelier

Rent Adjustment Program web site

Other (describe):

HHI"H

Rev. 73117 For more information phone (510) 238-3721. 4

0001 00




. CITY OF OAKLAND

RENT ADJUSTMENT PROGRAM
P.O. Box 70243

Oakland, CA 94612-0243 -

(510) 238-3721 '

PROPERTY OWNER

- CITY OF OAKLAND

- RESPONSE

Please Fill Out This Form As Com letel As You Can. Failure to provide needed mformatlon
may result in your response bemg rejected or delayed.

CASE NUMBER T 18-0018

Your Name : Complete Address (with zip code) Telephone: " _
| IL-Jl:(s:Ll:lyaSI\;IZvrvaalgs 1717 Powell SL #300 | . .ien
o\ » : i 4 il:
" Alma Apartmients, LP San Francisco, CA 94133 Emai
Your Representativé’s Name (if aﬁy) Completé Address (with zip code) Telephone:
Gregory McConnell ' 300 Frank Ogawa Plaza #460 Fan

JR McConnell Oakland, CA 94607 Email:-
The McConnell Group :

L

Tenant(s) Name(s) Complete Address (with zip code) -

633 Alma Ave. #5

4e35|ca Sund - Oakland, CA 94610

Property Address (If the property has more than one address, list all addresses) | Total ﬁumb_er of units on
' - rope!
633 Alma Ave., Oakland, CA 94610 . property 18
Have you paid for your Qakland Business License? Yes X No [ Lic. Number: 00197907

The property owner must have a current Oakland Business License. If it is not current, an Owner Petition or
Response may not be considered in a Rent Adjustment proceeding. Please provide proof of payment.
. ** Documentatioh will be submttted prior to hearing

Have you paxd the current year’s Rent Program Service Fee (%68 per umt)? Yes Bl No [0 APN: 23-467-5
The property owner must be current on payment of the RAP Service Fee. If the fee is not current, an Owner Petition
or Response may not be considered in a Rent Adjustment proceedmg Please provide proof of payment, _

" *=Documentation will be submitted prior to hearmg
Date on which you acquired the building: 08/ _ / 17..

Is there more than one street address on the parcel? Yes [l No X.

Type of unit (Circle One): House / Condominium4 Apartment, foom, or live-work

L. JUSTIFICATION FOR RENT INCREASE You must check the appropriate justification(s)
box for each increase greater than the Annual CPI adjustment contested in the tenant(s) petition.
For the detailed text of these justifications, see Oakland Municipal Code Chapter 8,22 and the Rent

1

For more information phone (510)-238-3721.
Rev. 3/28/17 '

000101




- ( _—
Board Regulations. You can get additional information and copies of the Ordinance and
. Regulations from the Rent Program office in person or by phoning (510) 238-3721.

You must prove the contested rent increase is justified. For each justification checked on the
following table, you must attach organized documentary evidence demonstrating your entitlement
" to the increase. This. documentation may include cancelled checks, receipts, and invoices.
Undocumented expenses, except certain maintenance, repan', legal, accountmg and management
expenses, will not usually be allowed

Debt

Date of Banking Increase'd'. Capital Uninsured ) Fair
.} Contested (deferred Housing Improvements  Repair Service Return
Increase annual Service Costs ‘ Costs ’ '
increases ) L
oy e O O .o = o o
o O o O o 0
o o 0. o o o

** Costa.- Hawkms Please see attachment
you are Jusnfylng additional coutested increases, please attach a separate sheet.

II. RENT HISTORY - If you contest the Rent History stated on the Tenant Petition, state the
correct information in this section. If you leave thls section blank, the rent hlstory on the tenant’s.
petltmn will be consndered correct

The tenant moved into the rental unit on,

The tenant’s initial rent including all services provided was: $ / month. ‘

' Have you (or a previous OWner) giVen the City of Oakland’s form entitled “NOTICE TO TENANT S OF
RESIDENTIAL RENT ADJUSTMENT PROGRAM” (“RAP No’uce”) 1o all of the petmomng tenants?
Yes _ "No I don’t know _

" Ifyes, on what date was the Notice first given?

Is the tenant current on the rent? Yes - No

Begin with the most recent rent and work backwards. If you need more space please attach another sheet.

Date Notice | Date Increase _ Rent Increased Did you provide the “RAP
Given Effective v NOTICE” with the notice

(mo./day/year) ' From _To of rent increase?

' $ $ OYes 0ONo

1§ 18 OYes ~0ONo

$ $ OYes 0ONo

$ '$ 0Yes 0ONo

$ $ OYes ONo

Rev. 3/28/17

For more information phone (510)—238’-3 721,

0001602




IIL EXEMPTION

' 4If you claim that your- property is exempt ﬁ'om Rent Adjustment (Oakland Mumclpal Code
Chapter 8.22), please check ohe or more of the grounds

O  The unit is a single family res1dence or condormmum exempted by the Costa Hawkins Rental
Housing Act (California Civil Code 1954.50, et seq.). If claiming exemption under Costa-Hawkins,
please answer the followmg questions on a separate sheet: :

Did the pnor tenant leave after bemg glven a notice to quit (Civil Code Section 1946)?

Did the prror tonant leave after being given a notice of rent increase (ClVll Code Section 827)7

Was the prior tenant evicted for cause?

Are there any outstanding violations of building housing, fire or safety codes in the unit or building?

Is the unit a single family dwelling or condominium that can be sold separately?

Did the petmomng tenant have roommates when he/she moved in? :

If the unit is a condominium, did you purchase it? If so: 1) from whom? 2) D1d you purchase the entire
building? .

Ny AL

a The rent for the unit is controlled, regulated or subsidized by a govemmental unit, agency or
A authonty other than the City of Oakland Rent Adjustment Ordinance. :

o The umt was newly constructed and a certificate of occupancy was issued for it on or after
January 1, 1983

00 ' On the day the petition was filed, the tenant pet1t1oner was a resident of a motel hotel, or
boardmg house less than 30 days. :

a The subject unit is in a bulldmg that was rehabllltated at a cost of 50% or more of the average
basic cost of new constructlon

[ : The umt is an accommodation in a hospital, eonvent, monastery,' extended care facility,
convalescent home, non-profit home for aged, or. dormitory owned and operated by an educational
institution. .

(it} The unit is located in a building with three or fewer units. The owner .occupies one of the units
contmuously as his or her pnnelpal residence and has done so for at least one year.

Iv. 'DECREASED'HOUSING SERVICES

If the petition filed by your tenant claims Decreased Housmg Services, state your position regardmg the
tenant’s claim(s) of decreased housing services. If you need more space attach a separate sheet. Submit
any documents photographs or other tang1ble ev1dence that supports your posmon

y. VERIFICATION

I declare under penalty of perjury pursuant to the laws of the State of California that all
statements made in this Response are true and that all of the documents attached hereto
.are true coples of thebriginals. -

4/2/18
Property Owdér’s Signature A : Date

For more information phone (510)-238-3721.
Rev. 3/28/17

000103




-

A , - { [
IMPORTANT INFORMATION:

Time to File

This form must be received by the Rent Adjustment Program (RAP), P.O. Box 70243, Oakland,.
CA 94612-0243, within 35 days after a copy of the tenant petition was mailed to you. Timely
mailing as shown by a postmark does not suffice. The date of mailing is shown on the Proof of
Service attached to the response documents mailed to you. If the RAP office is closed on the last
(day to file, the time to file is extended to the next day the office is open. : :

You can date-stamp and drop your Response in the Rent'Adjuétrnent drop box at the'lHousing
. Assistance Center.. The Housing Assistance Center is open Monday through Friday, except
holidays, from 9:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m. ' ' . :

File Review o

You should have received a copy of the petition (and claim of decreased housing services) filed
by your tenant. When the RAP Online Petitioning System is available, you will be able to view the
response and attachments by logging in and accessing your case files. If you would like to review the -
attachments in person, please call the Rent Adjustment Program office at (510) 238-3721 to
make an appointment. S

‘Mediation Program

Mediation is an entirely voluntary process to assist you in reaching an agreement with. your
- tenant, In mediation, the parties discuss the situation with someone not involved in the dispute,
discuss the relative strengths and weaknesses of the parties’ case, and consider their needs in the
situation. - Your tenant may have agreed to mediate his/her complaints by signing the mediation
‘section in the copy of the petition mailed to you. If the tenant signed for mediation and if you
also agree to mediation, a mediation session will be scheduled before the hearing with a RAP
staff member trained in mediation. - ‘ ' '

If the tenant did not sign for mediation, you may want to discuss that option with-them. You and
your tenant may agtee to have your case mediated at any time before the hearing by submitted a -

 written request signed by both of you. If you and the tenant agres to a non-staff mediator, please
call (510) 238-3721 to make arrangements. Any fees charged by a non-staff mediator are the
responsibility of the parties that participate. You may bring a friend, representative or attorney
to the mediation session. Mediation will be scheduled only if both parties agree and after your
response has been filed with the RAP, ' :

. If you want to schedule your casé for mediation and the tenant has already agreed to
mediation on their petition, sign below. o

I agree to have my case mediated by a Rent Adjustment Program Staff member at no charge.

Property Owner’s Signature - _ Date

For more information phone (510)-238-3721.
Rev. 3/28/17

000104




AN

~ T18-0018 Sund v. Vernon St. Apartrhents.(Alma Apartments, LP)

Attachment A

The owner contests the tenant petition and respectfully responds by saying that the tenant is entntled 1o
- no relief under the petltlon

This Is a Costa- Hawkms rent increase. The original occupant no Ionger maintains thls unit as thelr prlmary
place of resldence

Owner denies all allegations in the petition and Owner reserves the right to supplement this response
with'testimony at hearing and evidentiary documentation prior to hearing, per RAP regulations.

000105




Consultants and Advocates

Memorandum”

To:

Froni: JR McConnell
Date; 512212018 |
Subject: Additional'ddcmhen’t‘atibn re: T18-0018

Rent Adj ustment Heann y

Officer

Please find the following additional evndentiary documentation in support of Owner position:

O N UA WN P

ltem

Investigator’s. Report - Jessica Sund

Investigator’s Report — Cory. Hamrick

Declaration of Onsite Manager
Notice of Increase — 11/6/17
Lease

‘Estoppel

Estoppel -amended

- Correspondence with Tennant

i) Letterto Sund-8/22/17

i) Email from Sund

- il) Voicemail from S‘u'nd

iv) . Letter to Sund — 8/28/17
Proofs of Payment

I} Business License

i) RAP fee

Thahk you.

\

Page #

53
64.
65

" 68

8
87

89
90

91
92

93
94

300 Frank Ogawa Plaza, Suite 460, Oakland, CA 94612 « p:.510.834.0400 s ¢:510.691.7365 « jr@themcconnellgroup.com

000106




May 20, 2018
- Re: Sund, Jessica Maggie - 633 Alma #5
‘DATA SEARCHES RE: JESSICA MAGGIE SUND

_ DOB: .
SSN. XX issued in California in 1985.

CONCLUSIONS:‘

It is known to the landlord, and not contested in this matter, that Tenant, Jessica M. Sund had a child in
late 2017 with her partner, Cory Hamrick. Evidence of this fact is also found in the findings of this
report. In light of this uncontested fact and the findings contained in this report, a preponderance of the
evidence supports a conclusion that Jessica Sund’s permanent place of residence is not the subject
property, 633 Alma Avenue, Apt. 5, Oakland, CA, but rather is 3024 California Street, Oakland, CA
94602. Specific evidence supporting this conclusion includes the following: : ' -

1) A review of findings in three Address History databases for Ms. Sund identified 3024 California Street,
Oakland, CA 94602 as Ms. Sund’s only current address. California St. is reported as recently as

~ 5/182018; while the most recent reporting date forAlma Avenue in any of the databases is 12/5/2017.

- Further, the August, 2017 initial reporting date for California Street is much more recent than the
8/28/2008 initial reporting date for Alma Avenue indicating Ms. Sund’s residency at California St. is.a
much more recent development, and therefore more likely her current residence (Pages 9-15). '

2) A baby registry — the bump.com — identified Ms. Sund as expecting a child with a due date of Oct 25,
2017, location - Oakland, CA. . A link at the page, present in December , 2017, but no. longer present - —
igt/gifts/baby-girl-hamrick — associated the child with Cory Hamrick. The due date of Ms. Sund’s and
Mr. Hamrick’s child is consistent with the September/October initial reporting dates for Ms. Sund at

- 3024 California Street, Oakland, CA in Address History databases (Pages 35-36). '

3) A Residence Histolry" Database for 3024 California Street, Oakland, CA 94602 reported Cory T.
Hamrick, reported dates of 05/04/1999-12/05/2017 and Jessica M. Sund, reported dates of 07/01/2017-
07/01/2017 as current tenants (Pages 51-53). - :

4) That Jessica Sund’s partner, and the father of her child, Mr. Cory T. Hamrick’s current principle

place of residence 3024 California Street, Oakland, CA 94602 is evidenced by the following: Address

History Databases identify 3024 California Street, Oakland, CA 94602 as Mr. Hamrick’s sole current

address, with reporting dates 4/1999 — 3/27/2018; Cory Hamrick is the current owner of the property, a

Homestead Exemption is on file and the Tax Assessor’s mailing address of record is the same as the

property address - 3024 California St., Oakland, CA 94602; M. Hamrick is currently registered to vote
- at 3024 California St., Oakland, CA 94602 (see attached Cory Hamrick Datasearches Report).

*****************;’c**************k************************'k*********************************

NEILSON anp MACRITCHIE

INVESTIGATORS
SINCE 1853

o : ‘ PAGE 1
CONFIDENTIAL ATTORNEY WORK PRODUCT

- -000107




SUMMARY:

ADDRESS HISTORY

Address History Databases identify 3024 California Sti’eet, Oakland; CA 94602 as Ms. Sund’s ,cui*ren.t
address. Three different Address Databases were reviewed on 12/5/2017 and again on 5/182018. Findings
on the two dates were as follows: ‘ K

Database #1:

12/5/2017: Two current addresses were reported: The subject address, 633 Alma Avenue, Apt. 5,
.Oakland, CA, reporting dates — 9/25/2011 and 10/2/20015 -11/03/2017; and a second address — 3024
- California Street, Oakland, CA 94602, reporting dates - 08/31/2017-12/05/2017. :

5/18/18: One current addresses was reported: 3024 California Street, Oakland, CA 94602, reporting
dates — 10/2005-5/182018. The reporting dates for the subject address, 633 Alma Avenue, Apt. 5,
‘Oakland, CA, were 10/2/2005 -11/03/2017. NOTE: The sudden appearance of an identical initial
reporting date of 10/2005 for both addresses in the 5/18/18 datasearch indicates that this 10/2005 initial
reporting date for both properties is due to a database error, and the original initial reporting dates
identified on 12/5/2017 of 9/25/2011 for 633 Alma Avenue and 08/31/2017 for 3024 California Street are
the more reliable dates. : . '

Database #2:

12/5/2017: One current addresses was reported: The subject address, 633 Alma Avenue, Apt. 5, Qakland,.
CA, reporting dates — 9/2017. o o :

" 5/18/18: Two addresses were reported: The subject address, 633 Alma Avenue, Apt. 5, Oakland, Cz.&,
reporting dates — 9/2017 and a second address — 3024 California Street, Oakland, CA 94602, reporting
dates, 9/2017 ' _ : ' o

v

‘Data.base #3':

12/5/2017; One current addreéses was reported: The subject address, 633 Alma Avenué, Apt. 5, Oakland,
CA, reporting dates — 8/28/2008 — 12/5/2017. : :

5/18/2018: One current addresses was reported: 3024 Califoniia Street, Oakland, CA 94602, reporting
dates — 8/31/2017-5/19/2018. The reporting dates for the subject address, 633 Alma Avenue, Apt. 5,
Oakland, CA, remained the same as on 15/5/2017 — 8/28/2008 — 12/5/2017. ' :

NEILSON anp MAcRITCHIE

INVESTIGATORS
: SINCE 1953

_ PAGE 2
CONFIDENTIAL ATTORNEY WORK PRODUCT -

-000108




The follov;'ing findings from the above database records indicate Ms. Sund has transitioned from her
residency at the subject address to a current residence at 3024 California Street, Oakland, CA 94602:

- Initial Reporting Dates - The 1n1t1al reportmg dates for 3024 California Street, Oakland, CA 94602 are
August and September, 2017, while initial reporting dates for the subject property date back to
8/28/2008. The much more recent initial reporting dates for 3024 California Street, Oakland, CA 94602
document Ms. Sund’s residency at the address as a much. more recent development, and therefore more
likely her current residence. NOTE: See above discussion of the multiple initial reporting dates for both .
properties in Database #1 ~

- Current Reporting Dates — Two of the three databases report 3024 California Street, Oakland, CA
94602 as recently as 5/18/2018, while the most recent reporting date for 633 Alma Avenue, Apt. 5,
Oakland CA in any of the databases is 12/5/2017 '

- The reporting of 3024 California Street, Oakland, CA 94602 in only one database durmg the initial
searches of 12/5/2017 and the subsequent reporting of the address in all three databases during the
searches of 5/18/2018 is also consistent with the appearance of new addresses in the Address History
Databases. The databases are derived in chief from the three major credit bureaus (Equax, Experian
and TransUnion). New or updated address information is received by the clients of the bureaus — credit
granting businesses, who in turn report periodically to the bureaus. Reporting periods vary between
business from as little as 30 days to upwards of six months. Thus there is always a lag time in the
reporting between the initial gathering of the information by the client companies and their periodic
reporting to the bureaus. The gradual appearance of the California St. address in only one database in
December, 2017 and ¢ subsequent in all three bureaus in May, 2018 is consistent w1th the appearance of
“newly reported addresses in this precess.

(See pages 9-15)

TELEPHONE NUMBER DATABASES '

Onhne contact of the Dlrectory Assistance (411) on December 7, 2017 identified no llstmgs under Jessica
~ Sund in Oakland, CA. - , . K |

On 12/5/2017 a cell number — (510) 206-5436, was identified in an undated database record as associated
with Jessica Sund at the 6138 Park Avenue, Richmond, CA, 633 Alma Avenue, Apt. 5, Oakland, CA and
886 Cleveland Street, Apt. 11, Oakland, CA address (Phones Plus 1 -3). An online search of the 411

: Dlrectory Assistance found no mformatlon available for that number.

(See pages 15-16)

NEILSON AND MAcRITCHlE

INVESTIGATORS
SINCE 1953

v . PAGE 3
CONFIDENTIAL ATTORNEY WORK PRODUCT ‘

0001 09




UTILITIES

Utilities databases identified no account associated with Jessica Sund.

REAL PROPERTY OWNERSHIP RECORDS

A search of California real property ownership records statewide, and jurisdictions available on-line
nationwide, identified no records of property ownership associated with Jessica Sund. On March 27,

- 2018, a telephone contact of the Alameda County Assessor’s office identified Cory Hamrick as the
property owner of 3024 California Street, Oakland, CA (see also Cory Hamrick Datasearch Report) The
Assessor found no property records were found under Jessica Sund

ALAMEDA COUNTY RECORDER INDEXES:

A search of Alameda County Recorder’s indexes, identified no recordings under Jessica Sund.

'CALIFORNIA DMV RECORDS:

A search of California Department of Motor Vehicle driving records identified a current Cahforma
license for Jessica Maggie Sund, issued 01/03/2013, expiration — 01/06/2023. One violation was noted, a
10/12/2016 - Driving while using wireless telephone The citation was issued wlule driving vehicle license
plate 3JBL110 (Record #1).

An i mqulry of Cahforma DMY vehicle registration records Jkeyed to the subject address 1dent1fied a 1994
Toyota - license plate 3JBL110 registered to Jessica Sund at 633 Alma Avenue, Oakland, CA (Record
#2). A record keyed to 3024 California Street, Oakland, CA identified no vehicle registered to Jessica
Sund (Record #3). NOTE: The currerit registration expiration date for Ms. Sund’s 1994 Toyota is
6/2/2108, indicating that the vehlcle was renewed on 6/2/2017, :

(See pages 16-18)

VEHICLE SIGHTINGS:

A nationwide search of the license plates keyed to abovementioned license plate numbers identified eight
sightings of license plate 3JBL110 between February 28, 2011 and October 18,2015. One sighting was in
El Sobrante, CA on October 18, 2015 (Record #1); one sighting was in Alameda, CA on August 1, 2013
(Record #4); three sightings were in Oakland, CA between February 28, 2012 and October 31, 2013
(Records #3, 6 & 8); and the remaining three sightings were in the immediate vicinity of 633 Alma

* NEILSON ano MACRITCHIE

- INVESTIGATORS
SINCE 1953

5 : . PAGE 4
CONFIDENTIAL ATTORNEY WORK PRODUCT

‘000110




\

Avenue, Oakland, CA between March 11, 2013 and March 2() 2014 The. s1ght1ngs were between the
_ hours of 10 31pm and 12:21 am (Records #2,5 & 7). - :

Y(See pages 18-23)

VOTER REGISTRATION:

On December 7, 2017, an online search of Alameda Voter Registration records keyed to Date of Birth: -
. 01/XX/1976 and Last 4 SSN: XXXX; identified no records (Record #1).

On December 7, 201’7, an online search of Contra Costa County Voter Registration records keyed to First
Name: Jessica; Last Name: Sund and Date of Birth: 01/XX/1976; identified no record (Record #2).

Archived database records identified two voter registrations for Jessica Sund: At 633 Alma Avenue, Apt.
5, Oakland, CA, Date of registration was 10/01/2008 and (Record #3) At 6138 Park Avenue, Richmond,
CA. No date of registration was available, however the address is reported in Address History databases
for Ms. Sund from 2005 to 2011 (Record #4).

(See pages 24-27)

BUSINESS ENTITIES/EMPLOYMENT RECORDS:

A search of California Secretary of State Corporation, LLC, and Limited Partnership records, California
Fictitious Business Name (FBN) Records, California Board of Equallzatlon Records, Employment and
Corporate Affiliation Databases, California Department of Consumer Affairs Professional License
Records - including the State Contractors Licensing Board and Uniform Commercial Code (UCC)
identified two Employment Association records: 1) An undated record associating Ms. Sund with
Stem2Bloom, 633 Alma Ave., Apt 5, Oakland, CA 94610; and 7/31/2012 record assocnatmg Ms. s/und
w1th Prudentlal Penfed Realty, Clarkesville, TN.

(See pages 27-28)

LIENS & JUDGMENTS:

. No record of any ]udgments or llens recorded against Jessica Sund were ldentlfied in liens and ]udgment
databases.

NEILSON AND MACRITCHIE

INVESTIGATORS
SINGE 1953

: PAGE 5
CONFIDENTIAL ATTORNEY WORK PRODUCT

000111




CALIFORNIA SUPERIOR COURT CIVIL RECORDS:

- A search of California Superlor Court C1v1l indexes, avallable on-line, mcludmg Jessica Sund’s known
counties of residence Alameda County and Contra Costa County identified one record in Alameda

“County ~ Case Number: RG16842109, Title: Sund v City of Oakland, Filing Date: 12/12/2016. A
PI/PD/WD claim that is continuing as status is “Hearing Reset to Civil Pre-Trial Settlement Conference
01/24/2019.09:00 AM”

(See pages 28-33)

CAL’IFORNIA SUPERIOR COURT CRIMINAL RECORDS:

A search of California Superior Court Crlmlnal indexes, available on-line identified no records NOTE
Alameda County and Contra Costa Crlmmal Court filings are not available online.

ARIZONA SUPERIOR COURT CIV'IL & CRIMINAL RECORT)S'

A search of Arlzona Superior Court C1v11 & Criminal indexes, available on-lme, mcludmg Jessnca Sund’s
- known county of resndence Maricopa County, identified no records.

NATIONWIDE FEDERAL BANKRUPTCY, CIVIL AND CRIM]NAL COURT RECORDS
‘A search of on-lme Federal Bankruptcy, Civil, and Crlmmal court records nationwide identified one
record under Jessica Sund. The record was eliminated through non-matching social security number,

spouse, address, other ldentlﬁer or as. havmg been filed in a jurisdiction remote from Jessica Sund’s
known address history. , :

' INTERNET SEARCHES:

Ouline search engine inquiries and searches of social and professional networking websites identified the
following records re: Jessica Sund:

Record #1: A baby registry — the bump.com - for Jessica Sund identified a due date: Oct 25,2017 and the
Jocation as Oakland, CA. A link at the page, present in December of 2017, but no longer present .
associated the child with Cory Hamrick — jgt/gifts/baby-girl-hamrick, The link is highlighted in the below
record. Record #1: A baby registry — the bump.com - for Jessica Sund identified a due date: Oct 25, 2017
and the location as Oakland, CA. A link at the page, present in December of 2017, but no longer present

- associated the child with Cory Hamrick — Jgt/glfts/baby-glrl-hamrlck The link is hlghhghted in the below
record

NEILSON anp MAcRITCHIE

INVESTIGATORS
SINGE 1953

. ' PAGE 6
CONFIDENTIAL ATTORNEY WORK PRODUCT )

1000112




Record #2: An undated Nuwber website listing identifying a number for Jessica M. Sund — (510) 306-
5436 with an address of 633 Alma Avenue, Oakland, CA. The site identifies Ms Sund’s prevmus locatlon
_as Richmond, CA 94801 :

Record #3: A LinkedIn page _for Jessica Sund which identified herself as an Intervention Specialist at
American Indian Model School in Oakland, CA from July 2016 — Present. The Experience section also
identiﬁes here as “Owner & Founder, STEMZBloom.com, Dec 2015 - Present San Francisco Bay Area”.

Record #4 & 4A: The website for StemZBloom for which Ms. Sund i is “Owner & Founder” per her
LinkedIn page. The site promotes a Preschool through 3rd grade curricalum developed by Ms. Sund. In a
bio page at the site Ms. Sund “I have developed and taught science and nutrition curriculum for the
University of CA Agriculture and Natural Resource Division in conjunction with Oakland Unified School
District State Preschools and Child Development Centers for their Sustainable Nutrition Urban Garden
Program as well as for De Colores Head Start... I've taught middle and high school students in math,
helping them reach their goals and move beyond limitations. ... I also integrate my extensive classical
training from Oakland Ballet into my lessons as a way to i msplre children to build somatic connections to
the subject matter, using creative movement as a catalyst...” No residence information is referenced. A
Google site map at the website has a pin placement for the business location at 2640 College Ave.,

: Berkeley, CA 94704 the location of the Berkeley Playhouse. -

Record #5: The websnte for American Indian Model Schools. Ms. Sund’s LinkedIn page states that she is

an “Intervention. Speclallst at American Indian Model School in Oakland, CA from July 2016 — Present”.

~ A search of the Staff page at the site found no reference to Ms. Sund The entity is addressed at 171 12“‘
St., Oakland CA 94607. . _ _

(See pages 34-43)

RESIDENT HISTORY FOR 633 ALMA AVENUE, #5, OAKLAND. CA 94610:

A search keyed to 633 Alma Avenue, #5, Oakland, CA 94610 identified three resndents currently
assoc:ated w1th the address ' _

John S. Schonborn with reported dates of 08/1986-12/05/2017
‘Therese Karlsson with reported dates of 02/13/2007-12/05/2017
Jessica Sund with reported dates of 10/2005-12/05/2017 -
Irma Lee Fink with reported dates of 12/1996-12/2017

(See pages 44-49)

NEILSON anp MACRITCHIE

INVESTIGATORS
SINCE 1953 -

: _ o PAGE 7
CONFIDENTIAL ATTORNEY WORK PRODUCT

000113




'RESID'ENT HISTORY FOR 3024 CALIFORNIA STREET, OAKTAND, CA 94602:

A search keyed to 3024 Callforma Street, Oakland CA 1dent1fied three residents currently assoclated :
w1th the address:

Cory T Hamrlck with reported dates of 05/04/1999-12/05/2017
Erica Winn with reported dates of 11/05/2012-11/28/2017
Jessica M. Sund with reported dat'e‘s of 07/01/2017—07/01/201’7

No evndence a relatlonshlp, or bearing on the nature of an association, between Cory T. Hamnck DOB '
1/7/1967 and Ms. Sund was ldentlfied in social media, or other sources.

(See pages 50-52)

*************************************************_************I*************************

NEILSON anp MACRITCHIE

INVESTIGATORS
SINCE 1953

_ PAGE 8
CONF IDENTIAL ATTORNEY WORK PRODUCT

000114




SUBJECT INFO:
Name: Jessica Maggie Sund

DOB: 01/XX/1976 ‘ o
SSN: 556-83-XXXX issu'ed_ in California m 1985.

ADDRESS HISTORY

Addres_s History Databases identify 3024 California Street, Oakland, CA 94602 as Ms. Sund’s current
address. Three different Address Databases were reviewed on 12/5/2017 and again on 5/182018. Findings
on the two dates were as follows: - ‘ '

Détabase #1:

12/5/2017: Two current addresses were reported: The subject address, 633 Alma Avenue, Apt.. 5,
‘Oakland, CA, reporting dates — 9/25/2011 and 10/2/20015 -11/03/2017; and a second address — 3024 -
Califo'rnia Street, Oakland, CA 94602, reporting dates - 08/31/2017-12/05/2017. :

5/18/18: One current addresses was reported: 3024 California Street, Oakland, CA 94602, reporting
dates - 10/2005-5/182018. The reporting dates for the subject address, 633 Alma Avenue, Apt. 5,
Oakland, CA, were 10/2/2005 -11/03/2017. NOTE: The sudden appearance of an identical initial
reporting date of 10/2005 for both addresses in the 5/18/18 datasearch indicates that this 10/2005 initial
reporting date for both properties is due to a database error, and the original initial reporting dates
identified om 12/5/2017 of 9/25/2011 for 633 Alma Avenue and 08/31/2017 for 3024 California Street are

‘the more reliable dates.

" Database #2: |

12/5/2017: One cufrent addresses was reported: The subject address, 633 Alma Avenue, Apt. 5, Oakland,
CA, reporting dates — 9/2017. ’ . :

5/18/18: Two addresses were reborted: The subject address, 633 Alma Avenue, Apt. 5, Oakland, CA,
‘reporting dates — 9/2017 and a second address — 3024 California Street, Oakland, CA 94602, reporting
dates, 9/2017 - ' .

Database #3§
12/5/2017: Oneé current addresses was reported: The subject address, 633 Alma Avenue, Apt. 5, Oakland,
CA, reporting dates — 8/28/2008 — 12/5/2017. - . : :

NEILSON anp MACRITCHIE

INVESTIGATORS
SINCE 1853

PAGE 9
CONFIDENTIAL ATTORNEY WORK PRODUCT :

000115




- 5/18/2018: One current addresses was reported: 3024 California Street, Oakland, CA: 94602, reporting
dates — 8/31/2017-5/19/2018. The reporting dates for the subject address, 633 Alma Avenue, Apt. 5,
Oakland, CA, remained the same as on 15/5/2017 - 8/28/2008 ~12/5/2017. o

The following findings from the above database records indicate Ms. Sund has transitioned from her
residency at the subject address to a current residence at 3024 California Street, Oakland, CA 94602:

- Initial Reporting Dates - The initial reporting dates for 3024 California Street, Oakland, CA 94602 are
August and September, 2017, while initial reporting dates for the subject property date backto
8/28/2008. The much more recent initial reporting dates for 3024 California Street, Oakland, CA 94602
document Ms, Sund’s residency at the address.as a much more recent development; and therefore more
likely her current residence. NOTE: See above discussion of the multiple initial reporting dates for both
properties in Database #1. '

- Current Reporting Dates — Two of the three databases report 3024 California Street, Oakland, CA
94602 as recently as 5/18/2018, while the most recent reporting date for 633 Alma Avenue, Apt. 5,
Oakland, CA in any of the databases is 12/5/2017. - - ‘ "

- The reporting of 3024 California Street, Oakland, CA 94602 in only one database during the initial
searches of 12/5/2017 and the subsequent reporting of the address in all three databases during the
searches of 5/18/2018 is also consistent with the appearance of new addresses in the Address History
Databases. The databases are derived in chief from the three major credit bureaus (Equifax, Experian
and TransUnion). New or updated address information is received by the clients of the bureaus ~ credit
granting businesses, who in turn report periodically to the bureaus. Reporting periods vary between
business from as little as 30 days to upwards of six months. Thus there is always a lag time in the
reporting between the initial gathering of the information by the client companies and their periodic
reporting to the bureaus. The gradual appearance of the California St. address in only one database in
December, 2017 and ¢ subsequent in all three bureaus in May, 2018 is consistent with the appearance of
newly reported addresses in this process. ‘ '

DECEMBER 3, 2017 DATABASE SEARCHES:

Database #1

NEILSON anp MACRITCHIE

INVESTIGATORS
SINGE 1953

PAGE 10
CONFIDENTIAT, ATTORNEY WORK PRODUCT ‘ :

000116




6138 PARK AVE # 11, RICHMOND, CA 94805-1229 (CONTRA COSTA COUNTY) (05/09/2005 to
10/2011) . .
6138 PARK AVE, RICHMOND, CA 94805-1229 (CONTRA COSTA COUNTY) (05/10/2005 to
- 10/2005) . ‘ _ .
PO BOX 11634, OAKLAND, CA 94611-0634 (ALAMEDA COUNTY) (06/2008 to 08/06/2008)
822 S9TH ST # 11, EMERYVILLE, CA 94608-1408 (ALAMEDA COUNTY) (03/2004 to 06/2005)
822 59TH ST, EMERYVILLE, CA 94608-1408 (ALAMEDA COUNTY) (01/23/2004 to 05/10/2005)
886 CLEVELAND ST APT 11, OAKLAND, CA 946061536 (ALAMEDA COUNTY) (12/15/1998 to
12/2003) . | o
886 CLEVELAND ST, OAKLAND, CA 94606-1568 (ALAMEDA COUNTY) (02/1999 to
01/23/2003) \_ o | o 4
PO BOX 9045, OAKLAND, CA 94613-0001 (ALAMEDA COUNTY) (11/14/1997 to 01/23/2003)
3445 PIERSON ST, OAKLAND, CA 94619-3425 (ALAMEDA COUNTY) (08/1991 to 01/23/2003)
20022 N 31ST AVE, PHOENIX, AZ 85027-3900 (MARICOPA COUNTY) (03/13/2000 to
03/13/2000) - .
3000 MACARTHUR BLVD, OAKLAND, CA 94613-1301 (ALAMEDA COUNTY) (10/15/1997 to
- 10/15/1997) | I '

~ Database #2
’ %@i‘g’yﬁ’(§$ ?.Q "}W'{,ﬁ_,, R Vi Pk PR RO e ey S UERY - "%@ﬁﬁ;

6138 PARK AVE, RICHMOND, CA 94805- (Mar 2005 - May 2005)
822 59TH ST, EMERYVILLE, CA 94608-1408, ALAMEDA COUNTY (Feb 2004 - May 2005)

PO BOX 9045, OAKLAND, CA 94613-0045, ALAMEDA COUNTY (Mar 1998 - Sep 2001)

886 CLEVELAND ST, OAKLAND, CA 94606-1568, ALAMEDA COUNTY (Feb 1999) -

3445 PIERSON ST, OAKLAND, CA 94619-3425, ALAMEDA COUNTY (Aug 1991 - Mar 1993)

Database #3

Name

T
o
% i s
& o g & oo . 35
: £ 7 ST
B’ L ks - i Y
; T i ! o d 1
! Y t 7 e onsy
e P8 ok, I b
H 4 % Fhy . i
3] g e
2) .

SUND JESSICA  |OAKLAND CA 94611-0634. f56—83:}1(;(§5().(LCA |
M ~ Reported: 06/20/2008 - 09/12/2008 [ SS1ed: 1565 i

DOB: 01/XX/1976 Age: 41

County: ALAMEDA

NEILSON anp MACRITCHIE

INVESTIGATORS
SINCE 1053

_ : PAGE 11
CONFIDENTIAL ATTORNEY WORK PRODUCT

000117




M

en teccia [7X6138 PARK AV 1 «'
or D TESSICA I CHMOND CA 94805.1209  [356-83-XXXX
M . SUND. 1 1 [Reported: 03/01/2005 - 06/19/2008 };’3‘1;’%11/9%5&;‘92? Ao 41
A STND, TM | County: CONTRA COSTA  [POB: 01X197 Sl D
B — [4x822 59TH ST T | Landline: (510)420-
e D AESSICA 6 ARTAND CA 94608-1408 X e s
™M J 0t [Reported: 01/27/2004 - 04/01/2005 [155ed:  [Landline: (510)834-
A SN, e BOR 01 Rt e 1
T " ax822 59TH ST e o |
SUND JESSICA _ [EMERYVILLE CA 94608-1408 _[356-83-XX M CA Landline: (510)420-
~ [Reported: 047252004 - 09/01/2004 [Sevels DESIMCA s
County: ALAMEDA N
{10x886 CLEVELAND ST | oy
SUND JESSICA {OAKLAND CA 94606-1568 f:sf;fjj:lcgcgscin( A {Landline: (510)834-
M Reported: 12/15/1998 - 07/01/2003 DOB- LR Aser 41 9440
_[County: ALAMEDA | SomneEn )
| - [Tx3445 PIERSON ST o
SUNDIESSICA |OAKLAND CA94610-3405 [SEEIXXXX
M Reported: 06/01/1994 - 11/13/2000 [15$ued: 1985inCA.
. ICountys ALAMIDA *IDOB: 0LXX/1976 Age: 41
1x3445 PEARSON ST
SUND JESSICA |OAKLAND CA 94619 556-83-XXXX
M Reported: 11/13/2000 - 11/13/2000 fssueds 1985 in CA
 {County: ALAMEDA ' o
1x PO BOX |
SUND JESSICA OAKLAND CA 04613 [DEERXXXX
M Reported: 11/14/1997 - 01/31/1999 [155ued: ,
County: ALAMEDA " [DOB: 01/XV1976 Age: 41
~ [ix CARDINAL RIDGE AP S
SUND JESSICA  [DAKLAND CA 94613 oS XX A
M Reported: 10/01/1998 - 10/01/199g [1S5ued: .
County: ALAMEDA POB: OLAGUIIT6 Age: 41
xPOB 9025
SUND JESSICA  [OAKLAND CA 94613-0045 o ca
M Reported: 03/01/1998 - 03/01/1998 .
County: ALAMEDA. " DOB: OLXX/1976 Age: 41
SUND JESSICA  2x5000 MACARTHUR BLYD f:sflfg e Scm( A
M OAKLAND CA 94613-1301 DOB: 01/%X/1976 Ages 41

CONFIDENTIAL ATTORNEY WORKIPRODUC’I_‘

NEILSON AND MAcRITCHIE |

INVESTIGATORS
6INCE 1953

" PAGE 12

000118




Reported: 10/15/1997 - 10/15/1997
|County: ALAMEDA o

5

MAY 18, 2018 DATABASE SEARCHES:

Database #1;

ALMA AVE, OAKLAND, CA 94610-3853 (ALAMEDA COUNTY) (09/25/2011 to 09/25/2011)
8 PARK AVE # 11, RICHMOND, CA 94805-1229 (CONTRA COSTA COUNTY) (05/09/2005 to
10/2011) : . o - |
6138 PARK AVE, RICHMOND, CA 94805-1229 (CONTRA COSTA COUNTY) (05/10/2005 to
05/24/2005) S |

3707 MALVERN RD, KINGSFORD HEIGHTS, IN 46346-3355 (LA PORTE COUNTY) (10/2008 to.
10/2008) - o |

PO BOX 11634, OAKLAND, CA 94611-0634 (ALAMEDA COUNTY) (06/2008 to 08/06/2008)

822 SOTH ST# 11, BMERYVILLE, CA 94608-1408 (ALAMEDA COUNTY) (02/2004 to 06/2005)
822 59TH ST, EMERYVILLE, CA 94608-1408 (ALAMEDA COUNTY) (01/23/2004 to 05/10/2005) -
886 CLEVELAND ST APT 11, OAKLAND, CA 94606-1536 (ALAMEDA COUNTY) (12/15/1998 to
12/2003) - . | | - |
886 CLEVELAND ST, OAKLAND, CA 94606-1568 (ALAMEDA COUNTY) (02/1999 to
01/23/2003) : : i |

PO BOX 9045, OAKLAND, CA 94613-0001 (ALAMEDA COUNTY) (11/14/1997 to 01/23/2003)

613

3445 PIERSON ST, OAKLAND, CA 94619-3425 (ALAMEDA COUNTY) (08/1991 to 01/23/2003)
20022 N 31ST AVE, PHOENIX, AZ 85027-3900 (MARICOPA COUNTY) (03/13/2000 to
03/13/2000) - ) |
5000 MACARTHUR BLVD, OAKLAND, CA 94613-1301 (ALAMEDA COUNTY) (10/15/1997 to
10/15/1997) - o o . |

Database #2:

: R o e o A STAS ot \Eg,g ATy '
6138 PARK AVE, » CA 94805-1229, CONTRA COSTA COUNTY (Mar 2005 - May 2005)
822 59TH ST, EMERYVILLE, CA 94608-1408, ALAMEDA COUNTY (Feb 2004 - May 2005)

PO BOX 9045, OAKLAND, CA 94613-0045, ALAMEDA COUNTY (Mar 1998 - Sep 2001)

- NEILSON anp MAacRITCHIE

INVESTIGATORS
- SINCE 1953

. : B PAGE 13
CONFIDENTTAL ATTORNEY WORK PRODUCT

000119




CITY OF OAKLAND

| 250 FRANK OGAWA PLAZA SUITE 5313 OAKLAND CA 94612 2043
- Housing and Community Deve!opment Department | TEL (510) 238 3721

Rent Adjustment Program - ‘ ~ FAX (510) 238-6181
: . TDD (510)238-3254

HEARING DECISION

. CASE NUMBER: T18~0018 Sund v. Vernon Street Apariments, LP

~ PROPERTY ADDRESS: 633 Alma Avenue, Unit 5, Oakland, CA

HEARING DATE:-  May 30, 2018
: ~June 4, 2018
SITE INSPECTION :  June 4, 2018
DECISION DATE: December 20, 2018
APPEARANCES: _ Jessica Sund Petitioner |
' Paul Kranz * Attorney for Petitioner

Kim Rohrbach Paralegal for Petitioner
Greg McConnell Owner Representative
JR. McConnell Owner Representative
Don MacRitchie  Witness for Owner
Ursula Morales  Property Manager
Jessica Vernaglia Property Supervisor
Dave Wasserman Owner Representative
Lucky Stewart Agent for Owner

SUMMARY OF DECISION

The petltloner s petltlon is DENIED
INTRODUCTION

Petitioner Jessica Sund filed a tenant petition on November 29 2017
which contests a proposed monthly rent increase from $908.67 to $2,095.00
effective December 1, 2017 on the following grounds:

000120




l. The increase e‘xc':eeds fhe CPI A justment and is unjustified or is greater
than 10%: . _ - _ ' -

2. The propbsed rent increase would exceed an overall increase of 30% in
-8 years; and '

3.1 wishj to contest an exemption from the Rent Adjustment Ordinancé
becausé the exemption was based on fraud or mistake. :

The owner filed a timely response to the petition and contends that the
. contested rent increase is a Costa Hawkins rent increase. The petitioner, who
was the original occupant, no longer resides at the subject property as her

primary place of residence. C . : '

ISSUES PRESENTED

1. Is the contested rent increase limited by the Rent Adjustment

" Ordinance? D '
EVIDENCE -

- Petitioner's Status as a Tenant

Testi‘mbnv of Jessica Sund - Petitioner

. The petitioner testified that she moved into the subject unit in July 2008, at
an initial monthly rent of $895.00. She testified that on September 6, 2017, she

was served a rent increase notice proposing to increase her rent from $908.67 to

$2,095.00 monthly.! She further testified that she is currently paying $908.67 in

rent monthly and has continued to pay that amount since the effective date of the

‘rent increase.

Ms. Sund testified that on August 24, 2017, she emailed the pr.operty

supervisor at the time, Thomas Preston, to notify him that her boyfriend, Cory -

~Hamrick, would be moving in with her the following weekend, and that they were
expecting a baby in October of 2017.2 In response to her email, she received a

letter from Thomas Preston, dated August 28, 2017, stating that her lease had a

“no  subletting/no assignment clause”, and a ‘“use/occupancy” provision,.

therefore, her request to sublet the unit to her boyfriend was denied.® The letter
‘also stated that if her boyfriend did move in, her lease .and tenancy would be
terminated for unlawful subletting. She testified that she received this letter in

early September, around the ‘'same time as the rent increase notice dated .

September 6, 2017.

! Exhibit |
2 Exhibit 2 .
3 Bxhibit 3

000121




_ Ms. Sund testified that because the property manager refused to allow her
boyfriend to move in with her, and instead issued an exorbitant rent increase, she

.~ decided to stay with her boyfriend temporarily, who resides at 3024 California
Street in Oakland, California. She moved to the California street address in early
October, 2017, right before the birth of her daughter on October 24,.2017.4 She
testified that she moved because she believed that if she continued to reside at
the Alma’street apartment, she wouid have to pay the rent increase, and she -
could not afford it. She also moved because she wanted the. support of her
boyfriend to care for her newborn child, who had medical issues requiring full
time care. She also did not warit to deal with the stress of being in an adversarial
relationship with her landlord. "Ms. Sund testified that as of the date of the -
hearing, she was still residing primarily at the California street address. She
testified that she visits the Alma street apartment once or twice a week to check
on her plants, and the apartment generally, but is staying at the California street
address with her boyfriend and baby for now. : S

-On cross examination, Ms. Sund testified that she has not moved back
into the Alma street apartment because of excessive construction noise that. -
began in November of 2017 and is still ongoing. She submitted copies of
construction notices issued by the property manager.® . She further testified that
her carpet was damaged when the property manager replaced her refrigerator -
and the dirty carpet is another reason she has not moved back into the Alma
street unit. Finally, she testified that she has been receiving mail at the California

- street address since October of 2017, A '

Testimony of Lucky Stewart — Agent for Owner

_ Lucky Stewart is an agent for the owner. He testified that he is employed
by an ownership group that acquires different properties in the bay area and he

~ acts as an asset manager for the ownership group. He is tasked with managing
the takeover of properties and overseeing general operations. He testified that
he acquired the subject property, 633 Alma Street, in June of 2017.

- Shortly after he acquired the subject property, he received reports from
other tenants in the building that the - petitioner was subletting her unit.
Specifically, he was told that there were strangers going in and out of the
petitioner's unit freely-and had possession of keys to the unit but the petitioner
was no longer there. He also personally observed an international couple, with
luggage, coming out of.the petitioner's unit, sometime in early August. Both

. individuals were tall, blonde, and speaking a foreign language, and when he
attempted to speak to them, they ignored him. Based on the reports from other
tenants, and his own observations, he decided to investigate the petitioner's

- whereabouts. ' He did an internet search and asked his attorney, Dave

4 Exhibit 4
5 Exhibit §

000122




Wasserman, to.do a LexisNexis search to see if the petitioner was still living in’
the Alma street apartment. His own internet search revealed a baby registry
under the petitioner and her boyfriend Cory Hamrick's name, as well as couch
surfing listings placed by Cory Hamrick, the petitioner's boyfriend, advertising an
unspecified unit as available for rent. Mr. Stewart testified that he was. advised
by his attorney that the LexisNexis search revealed two addresses linked to the .
- petitioner, the 633 Alma street address and the 3024 California street address,

- and that the petitioner was likely no longer living at the 633 Alma street address.

. Based on his findings, he issued a warning letter to the petitioner on -
. August 22, 2017, which was posted on the door of the petitioner's unit and’
~mailed to the ‘petitioner.®. In the letter, he informed her that he had ‘received
complaints regarding an overwhelming amount of random visitors coming and
- going from unit 5 at 633 Alma street. The visitors seem to have access and keys
to come and go freely, yet you are not around: What is also troubling is that -
some of them have been disturbing your neighbors and this is their home.”” The’
letter went on to warn the petitioner that the lease was in her name only and that
her lease did not allow for her to sublet.or assign any part of the premises. A
copy of the lease with.the provision prohibiting subletting and assignment was
received into evidence.® The petitioner denied ever receiving the August 22,
2017, letter. . - :

After ‘he issued the warning letter, on August 24, 2017, the property
supervisor at the time, Thomas Preston, received the email from the petitioner
announcing that she was pregnant and that her boyfriend would be moving in the
next day. Mr. Stewart testified that he viewed the petitioner's email as a demand
and not a request to sublet. He also believed that the petitioner was using the
request to sublet to her boyfriend as ruse so she could continue renting out the

- -unit to short-term tenants. He testified that he directed the property supervisor to.

respond by issuing the letter dated August 28, 2017, which denhied the
petitioner's request to sublet to her boyfriend and informed her that if her
boyfriend did move in her lease and tenancy would be terminated for unlawful
subletting: The letter further stated that “if the petitioner had made a reasonable
- and proper request well in advance of the move-in date, instead of unilaterally.
stating that her boyffiend was moving in, the landlord would have been
amendable to accommodating her request...and... if the tenant wished to revisit
this issue down the road in‘'a more appropriate fashion, then management may
be more receptive”.® This letter was posted on the petitioner's door and mailed
on August 28, 2017. Mr. Steward testified that the petitioner never followed up .
her request to sublet to her boyfriend, and to his knowledge, Cory Hamrick, the
petitioner’'s boyfriend, never moved into the Alma street unit. '

§ Exhibit 12
7 Exhibit 12
8 Exhibit 11
® Bxhibit 2

000123




-

After this letter was sent, the tenants in unit 1 reported that strangers were
still coming and going from the petitioner's unit. This prompted the property
mapagement to issue a Costa Hawkins rent increase. On September 6, 2017,
the property management issued a notice of rent increase to Jessica Sund and
- all subtenants in possession of the subject unit, stating that the original occupant,
~Jessica Sund, was no longer permanently residing in the unit and the rent was

being increased pursuant to California Civil Code Section 1954.50, ef seq. (Costa
Hawkins Rental Housing Act)."® Finally, Mr. Stewart testified that since the Costa
Hawkins rent increase, he has not received reports of anyone entering. or leaving -
the petitioner's unit. ' : '

Testimony of Property Manager — Ursula Morales

: Ursula Morales is the onsite property manager for 633 Aima Street. She
has held that position since October 1, 2017. She testified that she knows all the
tenants in the building and she has never met or seen the petitioner before. She
testified that she lives in unit 11, which is diréctly above the petitioner's unit and

_she has never heard a baby cry in the petitioner's unit.. She further testified that
sometime in November or December of 2017, she received a complaint about
strangers coming in and out. of the petitioner's unit as well as noise and smoke
coming from the petitioner’s unit. She testified that these complaints were made
by the tenant in unit 6, Marissa Williams. Ms. Williams is the tenant in the unit

- directly across from the petitioner's unit. In response to these complaints, she

went to the hallway downstairs to check on'the petitioner's unit. She heard some
noise, but nothing out of the ordinary, just the sound of television. Finally, she
testified that she has never personally observed anyone; including the petitioner,
coming in and out of the petitioner’s unit. : -

Testimony of Don MacRitchie - Private Investigator

Don MacRitchie testified that he was retained to investigate the tenancy of
the petitioner. He is a licensed private investigator who is licensed to gather this
type of information for administrative proceedings and the data he obtains
originates with the original consumer. His investigation encompassed searches
of various address history databases, social media outlets, voter registration
records and other public records. He has performed this type of investigation
thousands of times and has been qualified to testify as an expert in court
proceedings regarding false testimony about where people live and has testified
as an expert in over seventy matters before the San Francisco Rent Board. He
‘has also testified as an expert in prior proceedings before the Rent Adjustment -
Program. ! ' . ' :

Mr. MacRitchie testified that during his investigation, he.com'pleted two
database searches, one in December of 2017, and one in May of 2018. He

10 Exhibit |
Y T16-0707 Brown v. Wasserman

1000124




. prepared two Investigatdr Reports bésed_ on his findings, one for the petitioner,
* Jessica Sund, and one for her boyfriend, Cory Hamrick.'2 : '

His investigation: of the petitioner, Jessica Sund, indicated that she first
reported 633 Alma Street, Unit 5, as her current address on August 28, 2008.
- The database searches show that she subsequently reported 3024 California
Street as her current address for the first time on July 1, 2017, and again in
August of 2017, The California street address continued to be reported as her
current address as recently as May 2018. On the other hand, the most recent
reporting date for the Alma street address in any of .the databases was
December 5, 2017.. S _ S

His investigation of Cory Hamrick indicated that Mr. Hamrick’s current
place of residence is 3024 California Street. Mr. Hamrick first reported the
California street address as his address in April of 1999, The California street
address continued to be reported as his sole current address as recently as
March 27, 2018. Mr. Hamrick is the current owner of the California street
property. The property is a two bedroom, one bathroom, single family home. Mr.
Hamrick also claims a Homestead Exemption for the property. Mr. MacRitchie
testified that a Homestead Exemption applies if the property is the owner's
principal place of residence, and it allows the owner to claim a property tax
deduction. The Tax Assessor's office also confirmed that the mailing address of -
record for the property is the California street address, His investigation also
indicates that Mr. Hamrick is currently registered to vote at 3024 California
Street. Finally, the database searches did not show any reports of the Alma

street address as being associated with Mr. Hamrick. '

_ fn addition to the database searches, Mr. MacRitchie testified that he also
interviewed other tenants at 633 Alma street. He interviewed the tenants after
the first day of hearing in this case, and prior to the second day of hearing. He
testified that he spoke to four tenants, three of them were current tenants, and
~ one was a former tenant. The current tenants were the tenants in unit 3, 4,and 6

who all believed the petitioner had lived elsewhere for quite a while. The former
tenant was also the former property manager, Kathy Espinoza, who also believed.
the petitioner had been living elsewhere for quite some time.

, Based on his investigation Mr. MacRitchie ‘opined that a preponderance of
the evidence supports a conclusion that Jessica Sund’s permanent place of

~residence is not the subject property, 633 Alma Street, Unit 5, but rather. 3024
California Street. - - - . '

Site Inspection

The Hearing Officer conducted a site inspection on'June 4, 2018. She
noted that the unit was a studio apartment, consisting of one large room, a

12 Exhibits 7 and 8

000125




kitchen, bathroom, and a closet. There was one queen size bed in the unit and a

_ portable rock and play. There was no crib i the unit. The Hearing Officer did -
‘not observe any toys in the unit.' There were two diapers, one baby lotion bottle,

and a onesie laid out.on a counter. The refrigerator and closets were empty.

FINDINGS OF FACT AND CONCLUSIONS OF LAW

Petitioner's Status as a Tenant

Thé owner has established by a prepondefancé of the evidence that the
petitioner no longer permanently resides at 633 Alma street, Unit 5, in Oakland
but rather, 3024 California street. . ‘

The agent of the owner, Lucky Stewart, testified credibly that shortly after
acquiring the Alma street property in June of 2017, he received multiple
complaints from tenants about strangers going in and out of the petitioner's unit.
freely, with keys to the unit, while the petitioner herself was nowhere to be seen..
- He also personally observed a blonde couple exiting the petitioner's unit with .
luggage, speaking a foreign language, and ignoring his  attempts to .
.communicate. Based on this information, he did an internet search that revealed -
a baby registry for the petitioner and her boyfriend, Cory Hamrick, as well as
listings by Mr. Hamrick, purporting to rent out an unspecified unit on couch
surfing sites. He testified that this search further fueled his suspicions that the -
petitioner did not reside in the subject unit and that instead, the petitioner was

- unlawfully subletting her unit to short-term tenants.  This testimony is

corroborated by the investigator, Don MacRitchie, who testified that records show
the tenant first began listing the California street address as her current address
on July 1, 2017. Based on this evidence, it is more likely than not that the
- petitioner was no longer permanently residing at the Alma street address since at -
least July 1, 2017. ' - '

* The petitioner's testimony that she temporarily moved from the Alma’
street address.to the California street address in October of 2017, after her
request to have her boyfriend move into her unit was denied, is simply not
credible. .The Hearing Officer finds it implausible that the petitioner's boyfriend,
Cory Hamrick, would leave his two-bedroom house, that he owns and claims a
homestead exemption for, to move into the petitioner's- studio apartment,
especially considering that the couple was expecting a baby in October of 2017
Choosing to move in together into a small studio apartment in anticipation of a
newborn baby when the option of a two-bedroom house was readily available
- does not seem reasonable. : : : '

_ Theé tenant herself testified that she has been staying at the California
street address since October of 2017, and has no immediate plans to move back

into the Alma street apartment. She further testified that she only visits the Alma
street apartment once or twice a week, to water the plants and check on the

7

000126




apartment, but she does not carry out daily living activities in the Aima street unit.

She does not sleep there, or cook there on a regular basis. Although it is

undisputed that the petitioner has been paying her rent for the Alma street -
apartment, paying rent alone. is not sufficient to establish that the unit is being

. occupied as a permanent residence. ' ’

. The owner argued that the petitioner has no intention of occupying the unit .
as her primary residence. She is holding on to the unit at a below market rate so
- she can rent it out to short-term tenants. He further argued that the petitioner's
boyfriend never intended to move into the Alma street address and instead.the
request by the petitioner to have her boyfriend move in was merely a.ruse to
allow her to continue renting. out her unit to short-term tenants for her own .
financial advantage. The Hearing Officer finds this argument persuasive. '

_ Additionally, the - testimony of Don MacRitcHie," the investigator, is
substantial evidence of the fact that the petitioner has not occupied 633 Alma
Street, Unit 5, as her permanent place of residence since July 1, 2017. ‘

- Finally, the Hearing Officer's onsite inspection of the Alma street
apartment indicates that the petitioner does not live there. The apartment was
sparse and the closet and refrigerator were empty. In addition, the apartment did
not have any evidence of a child residing in the unit, aside from the rock and play -
and some diapers strategically laid out on a counter. The apartment did not have
toys or-any.other children’s furniture. - o '

-Based' on the evidvénce and testimony, it is more likely than not that the
petitioner has not occupied the subject unit as her primary ‘residence since at
least July 1, 2017.

Costa-Hawkins |

Califiornia Civil Code-Section 1954.53(d) states inpart: -

(2) If the original occupant- or occupants who took possession of the .
dwelling or unit pursuant to the rental agreement with the owner no. longer
permanently reside there, an owner may increase by any amount allowed
by this section to a lawful sublessee or assignee who did not reside at the
dwelling or uniit prior to January 1, 1996. '

- (3) This subdivision does not apply to partial changes in océupancy of a
dwelling or unit where ‘'one or more of the’ occupants of the premises,

- pursuant to the agreement with the owner provided for above, remains an
occupant in lawful possession of the dwelling or unit...." - '

000127




The testimdny and 'd'ocumentary evidence constitute substantial evidence
‘that the petitioner no longer permanently resides in the subject.unit and therefore
lacks standing to file this petition. . ‘ :

ORDER

. The petitioner lacks standing to file this petition because she no

. has not resided at this address since July of 2017.

longer resides at.633 Alma Street, Unit 5, Oakland, Caliernia, and |

2 Petific’)n T18-0018 is DENIED.

Right to Appeal: This Decision is the Final Decision of the Rent Adjustment
Program Staff. Either party may appeal this Decision by filing ‘a properly
completed appeal using the form provided by the Rent Adjustment Program. The

appeal must be received within twenty (20) days after service of this decision.

The date of service is shown on the attached Proof of Service. If the last date to
file is a weekend or holiday, the appeal may be filed on the next business day.

Dated: December 20, 2018 _ W
| S ‘ MAIMOONA SAHI AHMAD

Hearing Officer _
Rent Adjustment Program

000128




- PROOF OF SERVICE
Case Number T18-0018

I 'am a resident of the State of California at least eighteen years of age. I am not a party to the
Residential Rent Adjustment Program case listed above. [ am employed in Alameda County,
California. My business address is 250 Frank H. Ogawa Plaza, Suite 5313, 5th Floor, Oakland,
California 94612. : - o S ‘ '

Today, I served the attached documents listed below by placing a true copy of it in a sealed
envelope in a City of Oakland mail collection receptacle for mailing on the below date at 250
Frank H. Ogawa Plaza, Suite 5313, 5th Floor, Oakland, California, addressed to:

Documents Included
Hearing Decision

Manager

Thomas Preston
633 Alma Avenue
Oakland, CA 94619

Manager .
“Ursula Morales’

I 633 Alma Avenue

Oakland, CA 94619

Owner . o

- Vernon Street Apartments, LP aka Flynn Family Holdings, LLC
1717 Powell Street #300 c/o Russell B. Flynn :

San Francisco, CA 94133 - '

Owner Representative .

Gregory McConnell, The McConnell Group
300 Frank Ogawa Plaza Suite # 460
Oakland, CA 94607

Owner Representative

JR McConnell, The McConnell Group
300 Frank Ogawa Plaza Suite #460
Oakland, CA 94607 =

. Tenant

Jessica Sund

633 Alma Avenue #5
Oakland, CA 94610

000129




Tenant Representative
Paul Kranz
639 San Gabriel Avenue
Albany, CA 94706

I am readily familiar with the City of Oakland’s practice of collection and processing.
correspondence for mailing. Under that practice an envelope placed in the mail collection
receptacle described above would be deposited in the United States mail with the U.S.Postal
Service on that same day with first class postage thereon fully prepaid in the ordinary course of
business. :

I declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California that the abbve is true
and correct. Executed on December 20, 2018 in Oakland, CA. '

.'A  | ?ﬂéb[agyl/(/// .4

Esther K. Rush

‘Oakland Rent Adjustment Program

000130




- CITY OF OARILAND G o 35

- RENT ADJUSTMENT PROGRAM
250 Frank Ogawa Plaza, Suite 5313
Oakland, CA 94612 - :

(510) 238-3721 o RENT ADJUSTMENT
T | e Reopay

[0 Owner ™ Tenant

Appellant’s Name ‘
Jessica Sund _
Property Address (lncludé Unit Number) -

633 Alma Avenue # 5 :

Oakland, California 94610 .

Appellant’s Mailin_g Address (For receipt of notices) Case Number

633 Alma Avenue # 5 . T18-0018

Oakland, California 94610 ‘ Date of Decision appealed

, : ‘ ' i 12/20/2018
Name of Representative (if any) Representative’s Mailing Address (For notices)
| Paul Kranz, Esq. ' _ 639 San Gabriel Avenue o :

Albany, California’9470_6

Please select ydur ground(s) for appeél from the list below. As part of the appeal, an é)kplanatioﬁ' must
be provided responding to éach ground for which you are appealing. Each ground for appeal listed .
- below includes directions as to what should be included in the explanation. ‘

1) There are math/clerical errors that require the Hearing Decision to be updated. (Please clearly
explain the math/clerical errors.) :
2) Appealing the decision for one of the grounds below (required):

a) M The decision is inconsistent with OMC Chapter 8.22, Rent Board Regulations or prior decisions
- of the Board. (In your explanation, you must identify the Ordinance section, regulation or prior Board
decision(s) and describe how the description is inconsistent. ).

'b) B The decision is inconsistent with decisions issued by other Hearing Officers. (In your explanation,
. You.must identify the prior inconsistent decision and explain how the decision is inconsistent,)

¢} H The decision raises a new policy issue that has not been decided by the Board. (In your explanation,
You must provide a detailed Statement of the issue and why the issue should be decided in your favor.).

d) = The decision violates federal, state or local Iaw. (In your explanation; you'must provide a detailed _
~ Statement as to what law is violated,) ' '

e) B The decision is not supported by substantial evidence. (In your explanation, you must explain why
. the decision is not supported by substantial evidence Jound in the case record,). : :

For more information phone (510) 238-3721,

Rev. 6/18/2018

“000131'




9] = I was denied a sufficient opportunity to present my claim or respond to the petitioner’s claim. (I
your explanation, you must describe how you were denied the chance to defend your claims and what
evidence you would have presented, Note that a hearing is not required in every case, Staff may issue a
decision without a hearing if sufficient facts to make the decision are not in dispute.) o

g) [ The decision denies the Owner a fair return on my investment. (You may appeal on this ground only
When your underlying petition was based on a fair return claim. You must specifically state why you have been
denied a fair return and attach the calculations supporting your claim.)

h = Other. (In your explanation, you must attach a det&iled explanation of your érounds Jor appeal.)

Submissions to the Board must not exceed 25 pages from each party, and they must be received by the Rent
Adjustment Program with a proof of service on opposing party within 15 days of filing the appeal. Only the first
25 pages of submissions from each party will be considered by the Board, subject to Regulations 8.22.010(A)(5). -
Please number attached pages consecutively. Number of pages attached: . Please see attachments

* You must serve a éopy of your appeal on the opposing pai'ties or your appeal may be dismissed. o
I declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California that on - , 20

I'placed a copy of this form, and all attached pages, in the United States mail or deposited it with a commercial
carrier, using a service at least as expeditious as first class mail, with all postage or charges fully prepaid,
addressed to each opposing party as follows: Please see Proof of Service separately enclosed

Name

/

Address
o Zin

“Pauwe L. 1S - bn/béizo 19

SIGNATURE of APPELLANT or DESIGNATED REPRESENTATIVE DATE

For more information phone (510) 238-3721,

Rev, 6/18/2018

-000132




.....

ATTACHMENT 1

Petitioner will further submit a brief notto exceedtwenty-ﬁve (25) pages.

Petitioner also does not waive her right to contest the time lines for her appeal on the
ground that the date 1ndlcated .on the proof of service (December 20 2018) attached to the subject
Hearmg Decision is 1naccurate The dates stamped by the postage meter on each of the envelopes _.
in wh_1ch the Hearing Decision was separately and respectively mailed to Pet1tioner and to her
.attorney show thct postage was afﬁxed on December 26, 2018-—not ‘six days earlier, on December
20, 2018, as declared on the proof of service. Coples of the envelope received by Petltloner and

of the envelope received by her attomey are attached as Attachment 2.

000133




‘‘‘‘‘‘‘

 ATTACHMENT2

000134







/
3
" !
. \ 1 m
M g : i ]
’ & F 4
Y oF OAKLAND Ei o et =
CITY OF %3
DoegRis & 4
- 5o wt L0oaste 300042
. . . iz 2% 5000358055 0EC 25 2018
HOUSING & COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT | : e TR
. RENT ADJUSTMENT PROGRAM : .
, 1250 FRANK H. OGAWA PLAZA P
SUITE 5313
OAKLAND, CA 94612-0234
Paul Kranz ,
- 639 San Gabriel Avenue

Albany, CA 94706

208 KPH-IMB  S470S Bl R R T R R T AR R B TR BT U U




ey

N3 B ERERNINEBEE 5 GEE0E B

=R TS - Y, T N TR

PROOF OF SERVICE
‘Case Number T18-0018

1, the undersigned, certify and attest as follows:

1 am'over the age of eighteen years and am not a party to the cause‘w.ithi'n. My business

‘address is 639 San Gabriel Avenue, Albany, California 94706.

On January 9, 2019, I caused the within:
| CITY OF OAKLAND RENT ADJUSTMENT-APPEAL
to be served by first claés mail, postage prepaid, on Respondent’s representatives. addressed as
follows: |

c/o Russell B. Flynn

Vernon Street Apartments, LP, aka Flynn Famlly Holdmgs LLC
1717 Powell Street # 300

San Francisco, California 94133

Gregory McConnell

The McConnell Group

300 Frank Ogawa Plaza Suite # 460
Oakland , Califomia-94607

1l TR McConnell , The McConnell Group

300 Frank Ogawa Plaza Suite # 460
Oakland, California 94607

Thomas Préston_

633 Alma Avenue

Oakland, California 94619
Ursula Morales

633 Alma Averiue

Oakland , California 94619

 Executed Albany, California on January 9, 2019,
1 declare under penalty of perjury that the foregoing is true and correct.

Glona Reynolds /

0001 37




o ' RECEIV
Paul L. Kranz - - il :
639 San Gabriel Avenue . , :

Albany, California v§4"1106 : JUL 1 2 2019
Telephone 8 10) 549 5900 R

hdy 5 2019

Ms. Barbara Kong-Brown

Senior Hearing Officer

Rent Adjustment Program

250 Frank Ogawa Plaza, 5" Floor
Oakland, California 94612

. Re: Sundv. Vernon Street Apartments_ LP, etal
~Case No. T18-0018 :

Dear Ms. Bafbara Kong-Brown

Thank you for your response about the correct ordinance on which the 25 page limit is

based. However, the subsection immediately following that subsection states that the 25 page

- limit may be modified or waived for good cause. I already stated to you that our brief is only 14
pages, if you exclude exhibits. 1am at a loss to understand your failure to acknowledge this .
subsection permitting submissions longer than 25 pages, as well as to apply that provision to our
appeal, since the exhibits consist only of either docurments submitted as evidence at the hearing,
thus already in the program files, or verbatim descriptions of sworn testimony presented at the

“hearing: Review of the hearing officer’s decision shows the extent to which that decision
purports to rely on testimony frora the hearing. Therefore, the transcribed téstimony is essential
fot a fair adjudication of the appeal. There clearly is good cause for the length of our submission.
All of this was explained in my previous letter to you. I also note that the program’s on-line -

“appeal cites a wrong or non-existent ordinance in support of a 25 page limit. And it also fails to
state that permission for a submission longer than 25 pages may be granted.

Your rules also state that a program goal is for appeal‘!hearings to be heard within 30 days
of being filed.” Our appeal form was filed on January 9, 2019 and our appeal still has not been
heard. Our brigf was filed on Jam.ua.ry 24,2019, ‘A Notice of Errata was filed on January 29,
2019. However, the hearing was not scheduled because the program claimed the appeal had not
been served on the other party even though a proof of service was attached to the appeal. Then
~ after a hearing was scheduled, it was delayed when the opposing party asked for more time to
respond to the appeal. But as of this date, the opposing party has not provided any response to
the appeal. Also, the original petition wag filed in November 2017, The hearmg on the peutmn
was not held until May 30 and June 4, 2618

The progmms s time d(—‘m s and nlm(‘s to provide accarate information has subqtantvallv
- prejudiced our client. In general, these fahues prefudive tenants far more than-propeity owners
because the majority of tenants rr.rr’ sent themselves since they do not have the resources to
afford to pay an attorney. :

I look forward to hearing from you abour these matters.

000138




Ms. Barbara Kong-Brown
Senior Hearing Officer
Rent Adjustment Program
July §, 2019

Page 2-

Thank you for your consideration, '

. PLK:gr |

Very truly yours, '

%&L@\»' |

~ Paul L. Kranz

000139




/
o f

/.
/

/

s Kong-Brown, Barbara
/- ‘ :

From:
‘Sent;
To:
Subject:

-Kong-Brown, Barbara =
.'Monday, July 15, 2019401 PM

Paul Kranz

N Response to your letter dated July 5,2019

Mr. "Kfantz In respanse to your letter received July 12, 2019, as stated in my prewous communication, you appeal
submission is limitedto 25 pages, and there is no good cause for you to submit an additional 49 pages of hearmg

tra nscnpt

" The goal of the Rent Adjustment Program is to hear appeals within 30 days and there has been a substantial appeals
" backlog. We have made substantial progress in reducing the backlog from approxumately 75 cases to 30 and contmue to
work towards further reduction in the backlog

The goal of the Rent Adjustment Program is to heara p,_eﬁtion within 60 days of the original petition filing date. Due to
.staffing issues there has beeni a delay in scheduling cases for hearing and we hope to reduce this b‘acklog by_ 2020.

BARBARA KONG-BROWN . -

SENIOR HEARING OFFICER -

RENT ADJUSTMENT PROGRAM - .
250 FRANK OGAWA PLAZA, 5™ FLOOR

- OAKLAND, CA 94612
T. 510-238-3721
F. 510-238-6181

000140




7/ /[[{ 5//1’7[’( V- (/@W}’) \ﬂ({t)p% | ' ‘ﬁ”'/gw 00 /g
fd?/"’”/f”?“:’”f"’f LF - [5&3 Pima Sf’me%

Petmoner Jessica Sund appeals from the decls1on of Heanng Ofﬁcer Malmoona Sah - S

Ahmad. Petitioner notes for the record that her petltlon was filed on November 29, 2018. The
* hearing commenced six months later, on May 30, 2018, and concluded on June 4, 2018. The
‘ dec1s1on was not issued for more than six months, on December 20, 2018. Accordmg to the -

proof of servme, it was maﬂed on December 20, 2018, but the envelope contalmng hasa -

December 26, 2018 postmark. . _

* Petitioner also notes for the record that the attachments hereto (other than the attachments

which are excerpts from the witnesses' testlmony on May 30th and June 4th, 2018) were -

submitted et the hearing, either by her counsel or Respondent’s counsel or both, but have bee%

renumbered. for expedlency s sake. As for the excetpts from the w1tnesses testimony ate ‘s;
_concerned, these are marked according to where each begms and ends in the audio recordmg@f.
the initial day of testimony, May’ 304, _ -
' INTRODUCTION ' o =

o
Petitioner Jessica Sund brought the petition because, within days of notifying her -+

landlord that she was pregnant and that her boyfriend and father of her child would begm to stay

in the unit, her landlord served her with notice that her rent was bemg more than doubled.

Unable to pay the increased rent, and after consultmg with an attorney, she filed this petition and
. then began to stay in her boyﬁlend’s resxdence ' '

Because Ms. Sund's newborn daughter had serious health conditions requiring 24-hour
monitormg, it was necessary for her and the baby s father’s to live together; moreover, the
neceseity for monitoring was ongoing. It was abeolutely unreasonable for Ms. Sund to consider - / g
residing in her apartment under these conditions. Ms. Sund testified on the first day of the
hearing that she did and does not know whether the relationship with her daughter’s father would
be permanent. For this reason, staying w1th at her boyfnend'shome with their child has been
intended as “temporary”. | ' -

' The landlord did not present any evidence to contradict these facts. The landlord
contrived the story that Ms. Sund was residing with her boyfriend because she was subletting her
‘unit in order to take advantage of its below-market rent and make a profit. But the landlord did
not present an iota of credible’ and competent evidence to support its claim. With the exception

ofa single claimed sighting by the landlord’s “asset manager”——wha claimed he once saw a
- 1-

}W/ ’0/”/0;@ E‘M»@D jer J/gp o] 051\ f /Pf ‘@ﬂ/ :

/“’” ~—— 000141




tall, blonde couple speaking German exiting her unit with luggage—the landlord had no other
‘ evidence to support'sublletting. Indeed, the decision relies heavily on this purported sighting by
the asset manager, ,Lucky‘Stewat't. But Mr. SteWart also testified that this alleged one-time
sighting was not the eanse of the attempted rent increase. He said it was later sightings, .
observed by property managers he never identified, and by certain tenants, none of whom .
testified. Nonetheless, the tenants reported nobody coming and gomg from Ms. Sund's umt
accordmg to testimony of the landlord’s private investigator who had mterv1ewed them. And the
only property manager who testified—the landlord’s own 24/7 on site property manager*—stated
that she never saw any other persons using Ms. Sund’s unit and knew of no evidence of
subletting. ‘Finally, the prlvate investigator, who the landlord (and the hearing officer)
characterized as a qualified “expert” on such matters; opined that Ms. Sund was not subletting;
i.e., that there was not evidence to support his client’s contention. '

That a hearing officer could find that Ms. Sund's pregnancy, and her request for her baby
and her baby’s father to be able to stay in her unit, was "merely a ruse to allow her to continue
rentmg out her unit to short-term rentals for her own ﬁnancml-advantage“, is simply incredulous
and offensive, and in blatant disregard of the evidence.

STATEMENT OF FACTS
Jessica Sund is a 41-year old single woman. She has lived at the subject ptennses, 663

“Alma Street #5 since 2008. She has worked as an elementary and middle school sclence :
teacher, and is eurrently earning a graduate degree in water resource management On Fnday,
August 24, 2017, she notified her landlord by written email that she was expecting a baby in
October and that her boyfriend and father of her expected newborn, as well as the newborn,
would be staying in her unit. (See Attachment 1.) In a letter dated August 28, 2017, which Ms.
Sund actually received about a week later (it was posmahked September 7), property rnanager
Thomas Preston rejected her request because it had been "couched as a “demand”. (See
Attachment 2.) Per Mr. Preston, any request had to be made “well in advance of the requested

move-in date, and thereafter providing necessary information to and documentatlon to

"The landlord's "asset manager", Lucky Stewart, testified that the [e.lleged] subletting
stopped shortly after Ms. Sund received the rent increase notice in early September, 2017

-2-

000142




management.” (/bid.) On that same day and on the following day, August 29, 2017, Ms. Sund
called Preston three times to further discuss her request. (See Attachment 5, pp. 1-2.) Neither
Preston or anyone else on behalf of the landlord responded' Preston did not return her phone
messages; he did not respond by email or by letter. (See ibid.) Instead the next commumcatlon
Ms. Sund. recelved from the landlord was on or about September 6, 2017, when the landlord

- personally served Ms. Sund with a Notice of Change Terms of Tenancy-Rent Increase Notice
[Costa-Hawkins]' increasing her rent from $908 67 to $2,095, and stating that “Jessica Maggie -
Sund no 1onger resides at the Premises and that all cutrent occupants are subsequent occupants
_'and subleases . .. .” (See Attachment 3; Attachment 5,p.3.) Infact, there were no other
.current or subsequent occupants and subleases (Ms. Sund testimony cite) at the subject premises
and Ms Sund still resided there by herself (See Attachment 5p.2)

‘Ms. Sund’s reaction to the notice was “fear” because she could not afford that rent and
was about to have a baby. (See Exhibit 5, p. 4.) Around that time, she began staymg with her
boyfhend (See Exh1b1t 5 pp. 7,11-12.) She believed that 1f she continued to stay at the subject
premises, she would have to pay the increased rent, and she also wanted the support of her
boyfriend and father of her expected newborn. (See Exhlbt 5,pp- 4, 6, 7.) She was 41 years.old -
and this was going to be her first birth. She also retained counsel and the subject petition was
filed. . . |

M:s. Sund also continued to stay with her boyfriend after fhe baby was born because of
medical issues the baby Suffered that required 24-houtr monitoring. (See Exhibt 5, P.4) These
were serious medical problems; potentially life;-tlxreatening; (See ibid.)

‘The Hearing Officer’s Decision and Findings | |

The hearing officer’s decision relies on testimony from the landlord’s “asset manager”
Lucky Stewart stating that: the subject property was acquired by his employer in June 2017; that
shortly the_reaﬂer, he reeeived reports from tenants that Ms. Sund was subletting and strangers
with keys to her unit were entering the unit and the Ms._S.und was no longer there?; that he

bersonally observed a tall blond couple with luggage coming out of the unit, speaking a foreign

2See Exhibit 6, pp. 1-2

-000143




language, who ignored him when he tried to speak to them?; that, based on this infoﬁnation, Ahe‘
had counsel conduct an investigetion involving LexisNexis, which identified a second address
(the Cahforma Street address) "linked to" Ms. Sund and which prompted his attorney to say,
"Yeah, she's no longer living there.*" He also testified this led toan internet search and to him
Tlocating a baby registry connected to Ms. Sund and Cory Hamrich, her boyfriend’; as well as to
~ him locating on-line “couchsurfmg[.com " listings "from them renting out apartments in, ‘under
her or Cory’s name.%" And that based on this infon_nation, he issued a letter dated August 22,
2017, warning her not to sublet. _ : '

" In the August 22 letter, signed "The Management " Mr, Stewart claimed that property
managers had noticed and received complaints of an “overwhelming _a.mount of random visitors’
coming and going from [her] uhit, and with keys to the unit." (See Attachment 4.) Ms. Sund
testified that she never received the letter: (See Attachment 5, p. 10.) With the exception qf l
Lucky Stewart’s testimony that he had personally observed ‘what he beliet'ed tobsan
"internationial" couple (tall, blonder, speaking a foreign language), nothing else he testified to l
. was supported by etdrhissible evidence. There was no admissible evidence of any internet search
conducted by him or the landlord’s attorney; no evidence of “mariagers” noticing any suspected
sublessees’; no evidenee of an “overwhelming amount of random visitors.” (Cite basically all |

98

attachments consisting of the owner's testimony.) As for the “coucheurfmg posts, Stewart later -

3See Atftachment 6, p 2
‘See Attachment 6, pp. 2—3
~ *See Attachment 6, pp. 3, 24,
$See ‘Attachment 6, p. 3; see alse pp. 10-11, 7-8

"Lucky Stewart was the only “manager” who claimed to have seen any potential
sublessees, and he only claimed to have seen on one occasion the German or "international”
couple. Moreover, the landlord called the on-site property manager, who testified that sheison
site about “24/7", and had never seen any such sublessees connected to Ms. Sund’s unit.

*A couchsurfing profile for Cory Hamrich remains available at
https://www.couchsurfing.com/people/coryhamrick . It indicates Mr. Hamrick has not even
logged into his account for about three years; i.e., since around 2016.

4.

000144




changed hlS testimony, saying that he didn't recall .or see any reference to any specific address; -
that the listings don't typlcally refer to any specific address. (See Attachment 6, pp. 8-10.) He
further testified that he saw no couchsurfing listing pertaining to Ms. Sund. (See Attachment 6,
" pp.7-8.) The couchsurfing testimony was also hearsay '

Stewart characterized the August 22™ letter, sent after his claimed "international” couple

- SIghtmg, asa “warning”. (See Exhibit 6, pp 4,7.) Stewart went on to explain, "Then when we

saw that it [sublettmg and/or assignment] was still continuing, and it was observed that there
were still people coming and going and not the tenant, we resorted to serving the Costa-
Hawkms " (Seeid., p. 4.) Not only were thete no documents or declarations or notes (mcludmg
the landlord’s private investigator’s reports) to support any sublettmg (persons "commg and
going" from Ms. Sund's unit) after August 22 or at any time, but there were no firsthand
accounts of any person(s) coming and going whatsoever other than the "international" couple

Mr. Stewart claimed he'd seen. (See Attachments 6-7, inclusive. ) The only property manager
 who testified—the landlord’s 24/7 on-site property manager Ursula Morales—stated that she
never saw anyone coming and going from Ms. Sund's unit, ezther (See Attaehment 7,0.7)
Yet, the lack of evidence of anybody coming and gomg is nowhere clted or acknowledge in the .
hearmg officer's decision, _ .

~ Also, after initally testifying that she'd been 1nformed of "strangers coming in and out of
o Ms Sund's unit, Ms. Morales later testlﬁed that she'd received just one such complaint from a
smgle tenant, in around Novcmber or December 2017. (See Attachment 7, inclusive. ) The
_' complaining tenant had reported "smoke and n01se," apparently attrlbuted to Ms. Sund's unit.
(See Attachment id., p. 2.) When Ms. Morales went downstairs to investigate, she found

"nothing out of the ordinary" and just some TV noise. (See Attachment id, p. 3 ) The purported

single-tenant complaint is inadmissible; it's hearsay. Although Morales testified that it was sent
to her by email (See Attachment za_’, p. 5), no email was offered as evidence.  And on cross-

- examination, Morales testified that the complaint was "more about" ‘noise than anything else.
(See Att_achinent 7,p. 5.) Finally, when asked by the hearing officer if it amounted to "just that
one complaint over the holidays about'the smoke and noise, Ms. Morales replied, "M-hm" (See
id., p. 6.). None of these inconsistencies or lapses in the testxmony are cited or acknowledged in

the hearing officer's decision.

S5

000145




Thus, Betwéen the time that the Auguét 22 "warning" letter was purportedly sent and
Septembér 6, when thq Costa-Hawkins»renvt increas'e'notice'issued, nothing riew had
happened— except that, on August 24, ‘the owner was notified by Ms. Sund that she was
prégﬁar_zt, and that Mr. Hamrick, the baby's father, would be moving in. |

Here it should also be noted that the hearing ofﬁcér in het decision incorrectly quotes the
landlord’s responsive letter dated August 28th as stating: "[I}f [you] had made a reasonable and -
proper request well in advance of the move-in date, instead of unilaterally stati'nlg,that [your]
boyfriend was moving in, the landlord would have been amendable lto accommodating [your]
request...and...if the [you wish] to revisit this iésue down the road in a more appropriate fashion, -
then management may be mbr_e receptive"”. AThe letter does not say that, (See Attachment 4.) It
says that the landlord is #ypically "amenable” and that “down the road...managénient may be
more receptive”' [emphasis added]. Hardly reassuring to a soon-to-be new mother expecting a
baby in the 4-6 weeks, whose phone calls tol further discués'the issue are ignored, and who théh .
. receives a rent increase she cannot afford. ‘ -
/] / ( . .

‘Returning to Mr. Stewarf's testimony, it should be noted that there are surveillance
‘cameras at the property. According to Stewart's testimony, at the time of the hearing there were
about five cameras total, (See Attachmént 6, p 18.) These included a camera at the back of the
- first floor, where Ms: Sund's unit is located, near an emergency exit. (See ibid.) Also, there
were multiple cameras in front of the building, (See ibid.) Mr Stewart Mer testified that he
never checked any cameras for recordings of the people he'd claimed have keys to Ms. Sund's
| apartment. (See Attachment 6, pp. 21-21.) When asked why, his incredible answer was, "If I
thought it was an important issue, I would have produced the footage." (See id., p. 21.) .T.he
‘hearing officer omits iﬁ her decision any reference to the fact that there were cameras, and to

the fuct that no footage was produced at.all,

Apart from the hearing officer's misplaced reliance on Mr. SteWart's testii'nony, she also
relied on the testimony Don; MacRitchie, the private investigator hired by the ownér through ‘

counsel. Her summary of this testimony 'concludés, “MacRitchie opined that a preponderance of

the evidence supports a conclusion that Ms. Sund's permanent place of residence is not the

-6-

000146




subject propetty . . [.]." (See Hearing Decision ("Decisien"), p. 6. | .
“Permanent place of residence” in the context of Costa-Hawkins is a legal issue, and an

expert is prohibited from testifying as to a legal conclusion. "There are limits to expert

testimony, not the least of which is the prohibition agamst admission of an expert's opinion on a

~ question of law. This lirmtation was recognized by this court in Ferrezra v. Workmen's Comp.

Appeals Bd. (1974) 38 Cal.App.3d 120 [112 Cal, Rptr 2321 (Summers v. 4.L. Gilbert Co.

(1999) Cal. App. 4® 1155, 1178.) What the hearmg officer’s decision failed to cite or even

mention is that the landlord’s expert, MacRitchie—who'd conducted extensive data-base

searches in the course of investigating Ms. Sund's status—— testified that he was unable to -

identify a single individual who 'd ever sublet Ms. Sund's unit. (27: 13-). And he admitted that‘

he knew of no evidence that she was sublettmg T herefore, hls opzmon was Ms. Sund was not

 Sublettting. ' ,

| After the ﬁrst day of testimony, MacRitchie was asked to mterv1ew four tenants from the

| 'subject premises, (The first day of testimony was Friday, May 30®. ) He did so. None of them -

knowledge of any other persons associated with Ms. Sund’s unit, according to his testlmony as

follows:: '

MR. KRANZ: DID ANY OF THEM TELL YOU THAT PERSONS OTHER THAN MS.

‘ SUND WERE STAYING THERE?

MACRITCHIE: THEY DIDN’T. THEY THOUGHT IT POSSIBLE.

MR. KRANZ: OKAY. AND WHICH PERSONS TOLD YOU THEY THOUGHT IT

POSSIBLE?

MACRITCHIE: ALL DIDN’T HAVE DEFINITE KNOWLEDGE, AND THEY ALL WERE _

AWARE THAT THERE WERE PEOPLE THAT WERE THERE IN THE BUILDIN G THAT .

WEREN’T ASSOCIATED WITH APARTMENTS AND THEY DIDN’T KNOW FOR

CERTAIN WHICH APARTMENT THEY WERE ASSOCIATED WITH. SO THEY

THOUGHT THEY WERE SOME TYPE OF SUBTENANTS, BUT THEY COULD NOT

DEFINITELY ASSOCIATE WITH MS. SUND’S APARTMENT

“This o opinion was offered in Mr. MacRitchie S investigative report on Ms. Sund, rather
than during testimony :

-7

7000147




MR. KRANZ: AND DID YOU ASK THEM FOR — IF THEY HAD ANY INFORMATION

ABOUT THESE ALLEGED SUBTENANTS ?

MACRITCHIE: YES. '

MR. KRANZ: AND WHAT DID THEY TELL YOU ?

MACRITCHIE: WHAT I JUST TOLD YOU.

| ARGUMENT |
I.  There Was Not Substantial Evidence To Support the Decnsmn
Substantial evidence means more than a mere scintilla; it means such relevant evidence

as a reasonable mind might éccept as adequate to support a conciusion. (See Richardson v.

P_efales (1971) 402 U.8. 389, 401; Gebhart v. SEC, 595'F,3d 1034, 1043 (9th Cir. 2010);

- Howard ex re‘l.- Wolff'v. Barnhart C-Ioward) (9th Clr 2003) 341 F. 3d 1006, 1011.) The records
as a whole must be considefed, weighing both the evidence that supports and the evidence that
detracts from the agency’v:s deCision, (See Mayes v. Massaﬁar_i (9th Cir. 2001) 276 F.3d 453, 459;

see also Int’l Union of Painter & Allied T rades v. J & R Flooring, Inc. (9th Cir. 2011) 656 F.3d
860, 865 Hawaii Stevedores, Inc. v. Ogawa, (9tﬁ Cir. 2010) 608 F.3d 642, 652 ("The ALJ is
expected to consider the record as a whole, 1ncludmg all witness testimony and each medical
report, before entering findings"). The court must affirm where there is such relevant evidence
as reasonable minds rmght‘accept as adequate to support a conclusion, even if it is possible to
draw contrary conclusmns from the evidence. (See Howard, 341 F.3d at 1011.) |
. When the record as a whole is reviewed, reasonable minds cannot find that there was
adeduate evidence to support the conclusions of the hearing officer. Reasonable minds could not
differ as to whether the conclusions drawn by the hearing officer were justified by the évidence,

because they were not. The decision was not supported by substantial evidence.

II. The DecisiohConStitutes An Abuse of Discretion.

An abuse of discretion is a plain error, discretion exercised to an end not justified by the -

evidence, a judgment that is clearly against the logic and effect of the factsas are found.
(Rabkin v. Oregon Health Sciences Univ.(9th Cir, 2003) 350 F.3d 967, 977 (citation and internal

quotation marks omitted); see also In re Korean Air Lines Co., Ltd. (9th Cir. 2011) 642 F.3d 685,

698 n.11.)

-000148




Under the abuse of discretion standard a reviewing court cannot reverse absent a |
definite and firm conviction that the district court committed a clear error of ]udgment in the
conclusion it reached upon a weighing of relévant factors. (See McCollough v. Johnson
Rodenburg & Laumger LLC (9th Cir. 2011) 637 F. 3d 939, 953; Valdivia v. Schwarzenegger
(Sth er 2010) 599 F. 3d 984, 988 (cmng SEC v. Coldicutt (9th Cir. 2001) 258 F.3d 939, 941.

The heanng officet’s exer01se of dlscretlon reﬂects judgement that was clearly agamst

7 the Ioglc and effect of the facts. Her selectlve use of evidence, rmscharactenzatlon and
misstatement of other of ev1dence and patent lack of objectwlty, as evinced i 1n her decision,
demonstrates a Judgement mcons1stent with loglc and the facts. She cons1stently relies on
~ evidence that was madmlss1ble while at the same entirely i 1gnor1ng other evidence (much of

whxch was submltted by the Respondent). ' ’ ‘
| The de01s1on thus reflects an abuse of discretion, all of which in Respondent’s favor, and
demonstrates a lack of objectivity and a preJudlce towa;rds Petitioner.

. In Disregard of the Evndence, the Hearing Officer Arnved at the
Unwarranted Concluslon, "The Petitioner's Testimony that She Temporarlly
‘Moved from the Alma Street Address to the California Street Address
“in-October of 2017, After Her Request to Have Her Boyfriend Move Into
Her Unit Was Denied, is Slmply Not Credible"

This conclusion was at best misguided, as was her anczllary conclusion, "It is
unplaus1ble that the petititioner's boyfnend Cory Hamnck would leave his two-bedroom house,
that he owns and claims a homestead exemption for to move into the Ms. Sund's one-bedroom
apartment." (See Decision (Statement of Facts and Conclusmns) atp.7.)

Ms. Sund testified that she and her boyfrlend had been’ together just two years; that were
not mamed and that she did not know if the relationship would be permmanent. (KR note 36.) For
these reasons, she was not certam about where she would continue to live. She also testified
that her baby was born with and still suffered from a serious, even potentially life-threatening
condition that required around-the-clock monitoring, a citcumstance that required her to live
w1th her boyfriend. '

This evidence was, further, undisputed.

The phenomena of smgle women choosing to have children is  commonplace in our

society, and hardly novel. This is reflected in the fact that it is now illegal to discriminate based

-9.

000149




. ( »
on familial status. In addition, the phenomena of children sphttlng their time between parents
who live in dlfferent locations is ublqultous In our society. Therefore the hearing officer’s
above conclusmns are unsupported by evidence, tone-deaf to contemporary reahtles and
| inconsistent with the evxdence that was submitted. Each was altogether unwarranted

IV.  Under CACI No. 203, The “Evidence” Respondent’s Submltted and Clted in
the Decision the Decision Deserved To Be Vlewed W_lth Distrust and
Rejected

CACI No. 203, entltled Party Having Power to Produce Better Evidence, prov1des as.
follows _ , .
You may consider the ability of each party to prov1de ev1dence If a party prov1ded
. weaker evidence when it could have provided stronger ev1dence, you may dlstrust the
weaker evidence. - , . _ ’
| Examples of Respondent’s failure to provide stronger ev1dence when it could have or
ostensibly could have produced stronger evidences are numerous and have been recounted
above. They include Respondent s failure to produce employees claimed to have relevant
: mformatlon and failure to produce declarations, documents, video footage, etc.. Indeed
testimony from Respondent’s own witnesses was sufficient to defeat, and should have defeated
its clalms Respondent called three witnesses. Each offered sxgmﬁcant ev1dence contradlctmg
. or 1ncon31stent with Respondent’s claims. ' _
Its asset manager testified that the siting of the "1nternatlona1" couple was not itself the
cause of the rent increase. | ,
, Respondent’s 24/7 on-site property manager testified: that she never saw a poss1ble a
sublessee and in effect had no evidence that Respondent ever sublet. And Respondent’s private
investigator, who Respondent and the hearing ofﬁcer insisted was an expert, found no ewdence
| of sublettlng
~ Also, Respondent offered no explenation,for why it never responded the emails and
phone calls Ms. Sund made to discuss her boyfriend and their baby staying in her unit.
Moreover, Respondent never explamed why its August 28" Jetter stated that it would be
"amenable" to cons1dermg Ms. Sund's request when it allegedly already believed and was

allegedly already investigating—and had recelved information that—Ms. Sund was subletting in
-10-

000150




violation of her lease. Elther the August 28™ letter was dlsmgenuous or the landlord did not
believe that Petitioner was sublettmg——1f not both.

Ms. Sund testified on the first day of the hearing that she never recelved an August 22xld
letter warnmg her about subletting. The letter was anonymously signed, "The Management "
And why didn’t Stewart, who said he wrote the letter, testify that ke posted and mailed it? (KR
~note48.) Also, given the weight Respondent places on that letter, why dldn’t its private

| 'investigator interview Mr. Stewartabout the details it contained? Why wasn’t a declaration
B ﬁ'om Mr. Stewart presented, at least by the seeond day of the heanng, five days later?
V. The Residential Rental Adjustment Program and Appeals Board Are
' Authorized Under Costa-Hawkins to Regulate or Momtor the Grounds for
Ev1ct10n : .
In August 1995 California enacted Civil Code sect1ons 1954.50 through 1954.535, the
« Co‘sta-Hawkms Rental Housing Act (Costa-Hawkins), which established “what is known among |
Jandlord-tenant specialists as ‘vacancy deeontrot," declaring that ‘[n]otwithstanding any other
pro_visioh of law,” all residential landlords may, except in speciﬁed situations, ‘establish the‘ '
initial rental rate for a dwelling er unit.”" (DeZerega v. Meggs (2000) 83 Cal. A_pp; 4th 28, 41, .
99 Cal. Rptr. 2d 366' see Civ.Code § 1954.53, eubd. (a).) T;he effect of this provision was to -
permit landlords “to impose whatever rent they choose at the commencement of a tenancy.” |
(Cobb v. San Francisco Reszdentzal Rent Stabilization and Arbitration Bd. (2002) 98
Ca,l.App.4th 345,351,119 Cal. Rptr. 2d 741.) However, the Legislature was well aware,
however, that such vacancy decontrol gave landlords an incentive to evict tenants that were
paying rents below market rates. (Bullard v. San Francisco Residential Rent Stabilization Bd
| (2003) 106 Cel. App. 4th 488, 492, 130 Cal. Rptr, 2d 819). Accordingly, the Costa Hawkins
statute 'expressly preserved the authority of local governments “to regulate or monitor the -
grounds for eviction.” (Civ.Code § 1954.53, subd. ON) :

A. The Evidence Estabhshes a Case of Constructive Eviction.

The evidence here establishes a censtructwe eviction of Ms. Sund because the rent-
increase Respondent sought meant that Ms. Sund would no longer be eble to reside in her unit.
She testified she cannot afford a more than doubling of her rent. The rent board cannot

meaningﬁilly monitor or regulate the grounds of this eviction without examining the reasons for

o-11-

000151




it. Petitioner contends that the reason was her request that her boyfrlend and baby s father, and
later their chrld be able to reside in her unit. ' &
Ms. Sund had a r1ght to have the father of her expected chrld and their daughter move in
with her. This right accrued when she notified the landlord of as much It was nnproper and
offensive for the landlord to insist that Ms. Sund had to wait to “revisit th1s issue down the road,"
and it violated her rrghts Further, her immediate subsequent phone calls to do just that were
ignored by the landlord, untll the landord served her with the Notice of Change of Terms- Rent
Increase. "
It is illegal to discriminate in housing based on pregnancy or family status, under both-
state (FEHA DFEH) and federal (FHA, HUD) law and agency regulatlons The landlord cannot
~ impose conditions on Pet1t10ner s exercrse of that right. That Respondent ignored the phone
calls Petitioner made in an effort to exercise that right was unreasonable——espemally after it had
stated that it would consider her request, i.e. , that it would “revisit this issue”. The landlord
never responded except by way of a notice of rent increase. This was despite the fact that it had .
- already independently verlﬁed that Petrtroner Wwas pregnant and who the father was. (KR note
53.) Respondent never asked for any addltlonal mformat1on This evidence establishes an
attempted 111ega1 eviction.
B. The Evidence Estabhshes a Case of Retallatxon _
It was within days of Petitioner’s request that the Respondent served her with a notice of
' rent increase. That this occurred within days after Petitioner sought to exercise certaln rights
| provided to her by law. This is undeniable. The only response or communication Petltloner ever
 received after seekmg to exermse these rights was the notice of rent i increase. This was
retaliation, Therefore the rent increase being sought is impermissible. .

C.  The City of Oakland's Prohibition Against Discrimination and Harassment, :

' as Embodied in OMC Chapter 8.22, Provided the Hearing Officer With the
Authority to Consider the Evident Discrimination and Harassment in This
Case. :

The laws of the State of California and the Housing Element of the General Plan
.- of the City of Oakland proh1b1t arbltrary d1scr1m1nat10n by landlords." (OMC § 8.22.300. ) Basic

" fairness requires that a landlord must not terminate the tenancy of a residential tenant without

12-

1000152




o good' just, non-arbitrary, non—discriminatory'reasons (Ib'ia’ ) The risiné market demand for |
' rental housing in Oakland creates an incentive for some landlords to engage in harassmg
behavior, including: ‘
[R]epeated acts or omissions of such s1gn1ﬁcance as to
substantlally mterfere with or dlsturb the comfort repose, peace or
qulet of any person lawfully entitled to occupancy ofsuch
dwellmg unit and that cause, are hkely to cause, or are intended to
cause any person lawfully entitled to occupancy of a dwellmg unit -
to vacate such dwelling unit or to surrender ot waive any nghts in
relation to such occupancy '
(See OMC § 8.22.610E, .8.22. 640A(15) ) _
In other short, the purposes of Chapter 8.22 plainly 1nclude preventmg dlscnmmatlon and
harassment. It is impossible to fulfill these purposes without cons1der1ng evidence of either
dlscrlmma’uon or of harassment when there is such evidence. Yet, the heanng officer made it
clear durmg the initial May 30 hearing in this matter that she would not cons1der ev1dence of
discrimination. Petltloner did not seek to have this evidence considered for the purpose of
monetary damages or other affirmative relief, It was offered as a defense to the respondent’
attempt to increase her rent [and to thereby effectlvely evict her]. The hearing officer’s refusal |

to consider this ev1dence was-error.

VIIL. Petitioner ’s Unit Is Not Exempt Under Costa Hawkins Since the Vacancy
' De—Control is Inappllcable Here. ' :
The effect of section 1954 53, subdivision (a)° of Costa—Hawkms is to permit landlords
"to impose whatever rent they choose at the commencement ofa tenancy " (See Cobb v. San
Francisco Residential Rent Stabzlzzatton and Arbitration Bd, (2002) 98 Cal. App. 4th 345, 351 D
Section 1954.53, subdivision (d)(2) further prov1des

5Subd1v1s1on (a) in relevant part prov1des that an owner of residential rea] property may
estabhsh the initial rental rate for a dwelling or umt

-13-

000153




. If the original ocbupant or occupants who took possession of~the ‘dwelling or unit
pursuant to the rental agreement with the owner no longer permanently reside
 there, an owner may increase the rent by any amount allowed by this section toa

lawful sublessee or assignee [emphasis added]. ' '

That Ms. Sund is the original occupant in lawful possession of the subject unit is in
uncontested. There is no claim that at any time she notified the owner any intent to vacate or
terminate her tenancy . The dispﬁte here revolves whether or not Ms. Sund has continued to
permanently reside in her unit. | o
| . The word "permanently" is undefined in Costa-Hawkins e)&éept with reference to
sﬁbletting and assignment. (See ibid, see also §_1§54.5 1) Yet, implicit in the statutory language
is that a rent increase 1s unwarranted absent the creation of a new tenancy. (See § 1954.53 subd. .
@ & (@)(2)) | | |

Here, thefe Was 1o new te'nancy:» Contrary to the oWner's theory of this case and the
hearing officer's decision, there is no substanﬁal or adfnissible evidence that Ms. Sund sublet or
~ assigned the unit at any time since the inception of her ténancy ih July, 2008. For the above -
reasons, subdivision @) is ihapplicable.

/ / /

- - | %;zg//'%mf?fé'/

Stritted () 20) 1ot PORL gy

® Indeed, as she testified on May 30" and as was earlier stated, she-continues to retain
personal possessions at 633 Alma Street, receive certain items of mail there, use the shower,
occasionally eat, take care of her plants, and so forth.

- 14 -

1000154




B Attachment 1

000155




Es

et 4. AT 8411 1 MM

uf Gk Mo, o, 6. Db, i
Chstndenr BEAT . § ol ey i o

- -000156




Atta_chment 2

000157




Alma Apartments LP
- B33 Almay
© Oakfand , CA




000159




Attachment 3

1000160




| ']THSNOTKHJHDCH%NGEYERMSCWVEW%NCYHEREBYSLWERSEDESAND
REPLACES ANY OTHER NOTICE TO CHANGE TERMS OF TENANCY AND/OR ANY
OTHER RENT INCREASE NOTICE(S) PREVIOUSLY SERVED UPON YOU.

NOTICE TO CHANGE TERMS OF TENANCY
 :RENT INCREASE NOTICE- |

To  Jessica Maggie Sund (original.occupant), AND ALL SUBTENANTS IN » ~
“POSSESSION, name(s) unknown, as well as any other occupant(s) claiming the right to
possession of the following residential rental premises: :

© 633 Alma Street, Unit Number 5
City of Oakland, County of Alameda, State of California 94610
~-including all associated housing privileges-f (the “Premises”)

You are hereby notified that, effective December 1, 2017, not less than sixty (60) days
after service of this notice is completed upon you, the terrs of your tenancy of the Premises will
be changed as follows: ~ :

- The monthly rental thereof will be changed from $908.67 per

. month to two thousand ninety five dollars ($2,095) per month,
payable in the advance of the first day each and every month you
continue to hold possession of the Premises. '

All other terms of the teﬁancy will remain unchanged.

You are further notified that a negative credit report reflecting on your credit history may
be submitted to a credit-reporting agency if you fail to fulfill the terms of your credit obligations.

* You are hereby notified that, pursuant to California Civil Code Section 1954.50, et seq.

- (Costa-Hawkins Rental Housing Act), the Premises and/or your tenancy therein are not subject to

the City of Oakland’s Rent Adjustment Program (Chapter 8.22 of the Oakland Municipal Code)

for purposes of this rent increase. The landlord and owner of the Premises contends that the last

original occupant, Jessica Maggie Sund, no longer permanently resides at the Premises, and that

. all current occupants are subsequent occupants and sublessees who commenced occupancy of the
Premises on or after January 1, 1996, - ‘ ' '

Pursuant to the Cos‘ia-Hawkins Rental Housing Act (Civil Code Sections 195450, et
- 8eq.), please note as follows: :

Conditions for Establishing the Initial Rental Rate Upon Sublet or Assignment:

(A) Where. the original occupant or occupants who took possession of the dwelling or unit
'pursuantAto the rental agreement with the owner no longer permanently reside there, an owner

Costa-Hawkins Rent Increase for 633 Alma Street, Unit Number 5, Qakland, CA
] : A '

000161




may increase the rent by any amount allowed by this section to a lawful sublessee or assi gnee
who did not reside at the dwelling or unit prior to January 1, 1996. However, sucha rent increase
shall not be permntted while:

(i) The dwelling or unit has been cited in an inspection report by the appropriate governmental
agency as containing serious health, safety, fire, or building code violations, as defined by
Section 17920.3 of the California Health and Safety Code, excluding any violation caused by a
disaster; and,

(i) The citation was issued at least 60 days'prior to the date of the vacancy; and,

(i) The cited violation had not been abated when the prior tenant vaeated and had remained
unabated for 60 days or for a longer period of time, However, the 60-day time period may be
extended by the apptopriate governmental agency that issued the citation.

(B) This provision shall not apply to partial changes in occupancy of a dwelling or unit where
one or more of the occupants of the premises, pursuant to the agreement with the owner, remains’
an occupant in lawful possession of the dwelling or unit, or where a lawful sublessee or assignee
who resided at the dwellmg or unit prior to January 1, 1996, remains in possession.of the
dwellmg or unit, -

(C) Acceptance of rent by the owner shall not operate as a waiver or otherwise prevent
enforcement of a covenant prohibiting sublease or assignment or as a waiver of an owner's rights
to estabhsh the initial rental rate unless the owner has received written notice from the tenant that
is party to the agreement and thereafter accepted rent.

Informa‘uon regarding this NOTICE may be obtained from the City of Oakland’s cht
Adjustment Program. Parties seeking legal advice concerning evictions should consult with an
attorney. The Rent Program is located at 250 Frank H. Ogawa Plaza, Suite 5313, Oakland,
California 94612, 510.238.3721, website: www.oaklandnet.com. Please refer to the attached
City of Oakland Rent Adjustment Program Notice to Tenanrs of Restdennal Rent Adjustment
Progr am.

Rent increases imposed pursuant to the Costa-Hawkins Rental Housing Act are effective
" upon the expiration of the notice period presctibed by California Cmi Code section 827 and are
not governed by the Rent Adjustment Program..

Questions about this NOTICE may be directed to the undersxgned who is the agem for
the landlmd and owner,

. WASSERMAN-STERN
. Dated: September 6, 2017 s

DAVID P. WASSERMAN, Esq.,
Attorneys and Duly Authorized Agents for the
Landlord/Owner, Vernon Street Apartments, LP

Wasserman-Stern Law Offices
2960 Van Ness Avenue
. San Francisco, CA 94109
Tel. No.: (415) 567-9600
Fax. No.: (415) 567-9696
Email: dwasserman@wassermanstern.com

Costa-Hawkins Rent Increase for 633 Alma Street, Unit Number 5, Oakland, CA
5 _

000162




CITY 0F OAKLAND

P.0. BOX 70243, OAKLAND, CA 94612-2043 , i Al
Department of Housing 'anc_f Community Development TEL (510) 238-3721
Rent Adjustment Program - | FAX (510) 238-6181
o ' . TDD (5.10) 238-3254 -

NOTICE TO TENANTS OF THE RESIDENTIAL‘ R_ENT ADJUSTMENT PROGRAM

* Oskland has a Rent Adjustment Program (“RAP”) that limits rent increases (Chapter 8,22 of the Oakiand
Municipal Code) and covers most residential réntal units built before 1983, For more information on -
which units are covered, contact the RAP office. o ) . : '

¢ Starting on February 1, 2017, an owner must petition the RAP for any rent increase that is more than the
annual general rent increase (“CPI increase”) or allowed “banked” rent increases. These include capital
improvements and operating expense increases. For these types of rent increases, the owner may raise your
rent only after a hearing officer has approved the increase. No annual rent increase may exceed 10%. You
have a right to contest the proposed rent increase by respond ing to the owner’s petition. You do not have
to file your own petition. ‘ ' - ' B

+. Contesting a Rent Increase: You can file a petition with the RAP to contest unlawful rent increases or -
decreased housing services. To contest a rent increase, you must file a petition (1) within ninety (90) days
of the notice of rent increase if the owner also provided this Notice to Tenants with the notice of rent
increase; or (2) within 120 days of the notice of rent increase if this Notice to Tenants was not given with
the notice of rent increase. If the owner did not give this Notice to Tenants at the beginning of your

~ tenancy, you must file a petition within ninety (90) days of first receiving this Notice to Tenants,
Information and the petition forms are available from the RAP drop-in office at the Housing Assistance
Center: 250 Frank H. Ogawa Plaza, 6th Floor, Oakland and at: :
hlm://wwwz._ogklandnet.-com/Governmenl/o/hcd/(i/Rent'Adiuslmenl. ,

¢ If you contest a rent increase, you must pay.your rent with the contested increase until you file a petition.
If the increase is approved and you did not pay the increase, you will owe the amount of the increase

. retroactive to the effective date of increase, : '

*  Oakland has eviction controjs (the Just Cause for Eviction Ordinance and Regulations, 0.M.C. 8.22) -
which limit the grounds for evictions in covered units, For more information contact the RAP office.

¢ Oakland charges owners a Rent Program Service Fee per unit per year. If the fee is paid on time, the
owner is entitled to get half of the fee from you, Tenants in subsidized units are not required to-pay the
tenant portion of the fee,. =~ ' '

¢ Oakland has a Tenant Protection Ordinance (“TPO”) to deter harassing behaviors by landlords and to give
tenants legal recourse in instances where they are subjected to harassing behavior by landlords (O.M.C.

. 8.22.600). (City Council Ordinance No. 13265 C.M.8)

* Theowner s __ is not permitted to set the initial rent on this unit without limitations (such as
pursuant to the Costa-Hawkins Act). Ifthe owner is not permitted to set the initial rent without limitation,
the rent in effect when the prior tenant vacated was .

‘ , TENANTS' SMOKING POLICY DISCLOSURE

*  Smoking (circle one) IS or IS NOT permitted in Unit .+ the unit you intend to rent. . _

® Smoking (circle one) IS or IS NOT permitted in other units of your building. (Ifboth smoking and non-smoking units.
exist in tenant’s building, attach a fist of units in which smoking is permitted.) :

*  There (circle one) IS or 1S NOT a designated outdoor smoking area. It is located at _

Freceived a copy of this notice on
' {Date) ' (Tenant’s signature)

LEAR B % (B AE) E WA R A B b XIRA, EHE (510) 238-3721 BB,

La Notificacién del Derecho del Inquilino estd disponible en espafiol. Si desea una copia, llame al (510) 238-3721,

000163

Ravicad 7/10/17




DAVID P. WASSERMAN, ESQ. (171923) : (415) 567-9600
WASSERMAN-STERN LAW OFFICES ‘ o

© 2960 Van Ness Avenue, Suite B .

, San Francisco, California © 94109 - o Raf. o, O Fle o,
 avemesior 633 ALMA STREET - , W2683460 .

Insert name of court, judiciat district and branch court, if any: -

Plaintitf:

633 ALMA STREET

Defgndant:

JESSICA MAGGIE SUND (original occupant) - | ,
. ) Hearing Date: Time: : [')e.pt/Div: : Case Number:
POS BY MAIL ‘

At the time of serv»ce | was at least 18 years of age and not a party to this action,
On September 6, 2017, | served the within:

i

~ NOTICE TO CHANGE TERMS OF TENANCY RENT INCREASE NOTICE NOTICE TO TENANTS OF THE RESIDENTIAL

RENT ADJUSTMENT PROGRAM

on the defendant in the within action by placing a true copy in a sealed envelope with postage fully

prepa«d for first class in the United States mail at San Francnsco, California, addressed as follows:

JESSICA MAGGIE SUND (original occupant), ANY/ALL UNNAMED OCCUPANTS
633 Alma Avenue, Unit 5

Oakland, CA 94610

Person serving: : : a.Fee for service:
Scott Lane =~ . d.Registered California Process Server
Wheels of Justice, Inc. - (1) Employee or independent contractor
52 Second Street, Third Floor ‘ (2) Registration No.: 1126

"~ San Francisco, (_’,}élifornia 94105 (3) County: San Francisco

_ Phone: (415) 546-6000

! declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California that the foregoing
is true and correct.

Date: September 6, 2017 o Signature:

&

Scott Lane

Printed on recycled paper i . Judicial Council form, cule 982(a) (23)

000164




' Attachment 4

000165




[




=

AT TS R T I N T R

B ¥ R IR PNV TEST I &R = 3

PROOF OF SERVICE
Case Number T18-0018

1, the undersigned certify and attest as follows:

I am over the age of e1ghteen years and. am not a party to the cause w1thm My busmess

“address is 639 San Gabriel Avenue, Albany, California 94706

On January 24,2019,1 caused the within;
"~ RESIDENTAL RENT ADJU STMENT PROGRAM— .
PETITIONER JESSICA SUND'S BRIEF IN SUPPORT OF APPEAL;
ATTACHMENTS TO APPEAL

to be served by ﬁrst class mail, postage prepald on Respondent’s representatives. addressed as

'follows

| /o Russell B. Flynn -

Vernon Street Apartmehts LP, aka Flynn Family Holdings, LLC
1717 Powell Street # 300
San Francisco, California 94133

Gregory McConnell

- The McConnell Group

300 Frank Ogawa Plaza Suite # 460
Oaskland , Cahfomxa 94607

Executed in Albany in the County of Alameda, California, on January 24, 2019.

I declare under penalty of perjury that the foregoing is true and correct.

Hloria @%M@
Gloria Reynblds '

-000167




CITY OF OAKLAND RENT ADJUSTMENT PROGRAM

Notlce Of Errata and Amended Submlsmn In Support
- Of Appeal of Hearmg Officer’s Decision

CASE No. T18-()01_8 o= B

....

~ JESSICA SUND,
- Petitioner and Tenant

%_:,zzm 62 NP 610

V. .

VERNON STREET APARTMENTS, LP, AKA FLYNN FAMILY HOLDIN GS
| LLC,,
0wner and Respondent

LAW OFFICES OF PAUL L. KRANZ
PAUL L.KRANZ (BAR No. 114999)
639 SAN GABRIEL AVENUE
ALBANY CA 94706
(510) 549-5900
kranzlaw@sbcglobal.net

ATTORNEYS FOR PETITIONER -
JESSICA SUND

-000168




NOTICE OF ERRATA

Petmoner submlts this Notice of Errata and the attached amended submission in support ‘
of her appeal in ease no. T18-0018. The attached submission is substantially thé same as her
submisston filed on January 24, 2019, and primarily differs from the submission filed on J anuary
24, 2019 by containing certain format changes, eorrection of tybographical errore? and the |
inolusion of icer‘tain limi‘tediadditional portions of the testimony at the‘ subjeet hearing.

For the following reasons, Petitioner also asserts that this submission should be
cons1dered and that 1t should not be considered late. First, as stated in and evrdenced by
Petitioner’s prevrous ﬁlmgs the hearing officer’s decision was not served by ma11 untll
December 26, 2018 as evidenced by the postmarks on the envelopes in which the hearing
ofﬁcer s decision was malled vand received by both Petitioner and her attomey‘ An appellant is
' lpermitted 35 days from the dat_e of ma‘it service to file a notice of appeal aad any submisstons in
support of the appeal (20 days,to file the notice of appeal and 15 ‘days- thereatter‘ to file:
subrrxiseions). Thirty five days from the date the decision was rnailed isJ anu@ 30,2019,
_Therefore,‘thi.s submis_sion should be .considered timely. S_econd, .‘I.’etiltioner”s attorney. Paul L.
| Kranz‘ has been out of his office and out of state because of the recent trery serious iltness of an
immediate familﬁr menrber For this reason, he was out of hrs office, from Decemoer 21,2018 to
January 6, 2019 and again from January 21,2019 to J anuary 25,2019. Therefore, Petltxoner s
attorney’s very 11m1ted ava11ab1hty during this period when the appeal had to be prepared and
- finalized constitutes good cause to permit this amended submlss1on
Dated: J anuary 28,2019 o * Respectfully submitted,

(P&Mtw—\

Paul L. Kranz

000169




. Petitioner Jessica Sund appeals frorn the decision of Hearing 'Ofﬁc"e‘r Maimoona Sah- .
Ahmad. Petitioner notes for the record that her petition was filed on November 29,2018. The
hear'mé commenced six months later, on May 30, 2018, and concluded on June'4, 2018. The .

* decision did not issue fot more thta.n six months, on December 20, 2018. According to the proof
of service attached to it, it was mailéd'on December 20, 2018, but the envelopes in which it was
contained were postmarked December 26, 2018. ' _
Pentloner also notes for the record that the attachments Hereto (other than the attachments
which are excerpts from the witnesses' testimony on May 30th and June 4th, 2018) were
submitted at the heating, either by her counsel or Respondent's counsel or both, but have been
renumbered for expediency's sake. As for Witnesses' testimony, they are marked according to

whete each excerpt begins and ends in the audio recordings of each day of testimony.

| | - INTRODUCTION | |
Petitioner Jessica Sund brought the petition because, within days of 'notify-ing her landlord
that she was pregnant and that her boyfriend and father of her child would begin to stay with her
- in her apartment, her landlord served her with notice that‘her'rent was being more than ctoubled
Unable to pay the increased rent, and after consulting with an attorney, she filed this petltlon and
then began to stay in her boyfriend’s residence. '
Because Ms. Sund's newborn daughter had setious health conditions reqliiring 24-hour
monitoring, it was necesséry for her and the baby's father’s to live together; moreover, the
necessity'ifo'r monitoring was ongoing. It was absolutely unreasonable for Ms. Sund t0 consider
residing 1n her apartment under theso conditions. Ms. Sund testified on the first day of the
hearing that she did and does not know whether the relationship with her daughter’s father would
be permanent. For this reason, staying with at her boyfriend's home with their chiltl'has been
- intended as “temporary”. o ‘ |
The landlord did not present any evidence to contradict these facts. Instead, the landlord
contrived the story that Ms. Sund was residing vtrith her boyfriend because she was subletting her
umt in order to take advantage of its below-market rent and make a profit. But the landlord did

" not present an iota of credible and competent evidence to support its claim. With the exception

-1-

000170




ST ey

Of a single clalmed srghtlng by the. landlord’s “asset manager —who clalmed he once saw a
tall blonde couple speakmg German exrtmg her unit with a luggage—the landlord had no other
evidence to support subletting. Indeed the hearing officer’s decision relies heavily on this

~ purported sighting by the asset manager Lucky Stewart, But Mr. Stewart also testified that this
a.lleged one-time sighting was not the cause of the attempted rent mcrease ‘He said it was later
sightings, observed by property managers but who he never identified, and by certain tenants,
none of whom testified at the hearing, Nonetheless the tenants reported nobody coming and

' gomg from Ms. Sund's unit, according to testrmony of the landlord’s private investigator, based -
on havmg mtervrewed them. And the only property manager who did testrfy—-the landlord’s
own 24/7 on site property manager—stated that she never saw any other persons usmg Ms.
Sund’s unit and knew of no eV1dence of sublettmg Finally, the private investigator, who the
landlord (and the hearing officer) characterized as a quahﬁed “expert” on such matters, opined
that Ms. Sund was not sublettlng, 1.e., that there was not evidence to support his client’s
contention. '

In light of the evidence, that the hearing ofﬁcer could find that Ms. Sund's pregnancy, and
her request for her baby and her baby’s father to be able to stay in her unif, was "merely a ruse to |
allow her to contmue renting' out her unit to short-term rentals for her own financial advantage,"
is simply incredulous.. - ' ' ‘ '

| STATEMENT OF FACTS
‘ Jessrca Sund is a 41-year old smgle woman, She has lived at the subject premises, 663
_ Alma Street #5, since 2008. ‘She has worked as an elementary and middle school scrence teacher
and is currently earning a graduate degree in water resource management On Friday, August 24,
2017, she notified her landlord by written email that she was expecting a baby in October and -
that her boyfriend and fathér of her expected newborn, as well as the newborn, would be staying
in her unit. (See Attachment 1; Attachment 5 at 1.) In a letter dated August 28 2017, whrch Ms.
Sund actually recewed about a week later (it was postmarked September 7), property manager

- Thomas Preston rejected her request because it had been "couched as a “demand”. (See

'The landlord's "asset manager”, Lucky Stewart, testified that the [alleged] sublettmg
stopped shortly after Ms. Sund received the rent i increase notice in early September, 2017

2.

000171




| Attachment 2.). Per Mr. Preston, any reciuest had to be made “well in advance of the requested
~ move-in date and thereafter providing necessary information and documentatlon to
management.” (/bid.) On the same day Ms. Sund made her request, and on the followmg day,
August 29, 2017 Ms. Sund called Preston three times to further discuss her request (See
| Attachment 5at 1—2 Attachment 1) Nelther Preston nor anyone else responded on behalf of the
landlord; Preston did not return her phone messages; and, he did not respond by email or by
letter, (See ibid.) Instead, the very next communication Ms. Sund received from the landlord
was on or about September 6, 2017, when the landlord personally served Ms. Sund with a Notice
of Change Terms of Tenancy—Rent Increase Notice [Costa—Hawkms] increasing her rent from

$908. 67 to $2,095, and stating that < essica Maggie Sund no longer resides at the Premises and

- that all current occupants are subsequent occupants and subleases . . , . (See Attachment 3;

Attachment 5at3.) Infact, there were no other current or subsequent occupants and subleases
| at the subJ ect premises and Ms. Sund still resided there by herself (See Attachment 5 at 2. )

. ‘Ms. Sund’s reaction to the rent increase was “fear” because she could not afford more
than twice the rent and was about to have a baby. (See Attachment 5 at 4.) Around that time,
she began staying with her boyfnend (See Attachment Sat7,11-12.) She believed that if she
continued to stay at the subject premises, mcludmg wrth her boyfrlend and then her baby, she
would. have to pay the increased rent, and she needed the support of her boyfriend, the father of
her expected newborn. (See Attachment 5 at 4,6,7.) Ms. Sund was 41 years old and this was
going to be her first child. She retalned counsel and the subject petition was filed.

Ms. Sund also continued to stay with her boyfrlend after the baby was born because of
medical issues the baby suffered that required 24-hour monitoring. (See Attachment 5 at4-6.)
These were serious medical problems potentlally life-threatening for her newborn daughter.
(See id. at 6.) ' ‘ '
The Hearing Officer’s Decision and Findings
The hearing officer’s decision relies on testimony from the landlord’s “asset manager”
Lucky Stewart stating that the subject property was acqmred by his employer in June 2017; that

shortly thereafter, he received reports from tenants that Ms. Sund was subletting and that there

000172




—,

were strangers with keys to her unit and that Ms. Sund was no longer there?; that he personally
observed a tall blond couple w1th luggage commg out of the unit speaking a foreign language,
who ignored him when he tried to speak to them’; and that, based on this information, he had
attorney conduct an investigation mvolvmg LexisNexis, which identified a second address (the
California Street address) "linked to" Ms Sund and which prompted his attorney to say, "Yeah,
she's no longer living there " He also testified this led him to conduct an internet search in
which he located a baby reglstry connected to Ms. Sund and her boyfrlend Cory Hamrich’; and
that he also located, on-lme “couchsurﬁng[ com]" listings "from them rentmg out apartments in, _
under her or Cory's name.*" And that, based on this information, he issued a Tetter dated August
22, 2017 warmng Ms Sund not to sublet.

‘The August 22 warmng letter, 31gned "The Management," stated that property managers
had noticed and received complaints ofan “overwhehmng amount of random visitors coming '

and gorng from [her] unit, and with keys to the unit." (See Attachment 4.) Ms. Sund testified

. that she never received the letter. (See Attachment 5 at 10.) With the exception of Lucky

Stewart’s testlmony that he had personally observed what he believed to be an "international"

couple (tall blonder, speakmg a forelgn language), nothing . else he testified to was supported by

admissible evidence, There was no eV1dence of any internet search conducted by h1m or by the
landlord’s attorney, no ev1dence of “managers notrcmg any suspected sublessees no evrdence

of an “overwhelmmg amount of random visitors.” (See Attachments 68, 1nclus1ve ) As for the

’Sec Attachment 6 at 1-2
*See Attachment 6 at 2, 15
“See Attachment 6 at 2-3
' 3Sec Attachment 6 at 3, 24,
SSee Attachment 6 at 3; see alSo id. at 10—1 t, 7-8

- "Lucky Stewart was the only “manager” who claimed to. have seen any potential
sublessees, and he only claimed to have seen on one occasion the German or "international”
couple. Moreover, the landlord called the on-site property manager, who testified that she is on
site about “24/7", and had never seen any such sublessees connected to Ms. Sund’s unit.

4.

000173




“couchsurfing”® posts (unsupported by any ev1dence), Stewart later: changed his testimony, saymg
that he didn't recall or see any reference to any specific address. (See Attachment 6 at 9-10. ) He
also changed his testlmony and said that he d1d not couchsurfing listing. pertammg to Ms. Sund
(See Attachment 6 at 7-8.) The couchsurfing testimony was also hearsay. ' v

Stewart characterized the August 22™ letter, sent after his elalmed "mternatlonal" couple
sighting, as a warmng” (See Attachment 6 at 4, 7 .) Stewart went on to explain, "Then when
we saw that it [subletting] was still cont1nu1ng, and it was observed that there were still people
coming and going and not the tenant, we resorted to serving the Costa~-Hawkins [rent mcrease]."
(See id. at 4.) Not only were there no documents or declarations or notes to support any

: sublettmg (persons "coming and gomg" fiom Ms. Sund's unit) after August 22 or at any time, but
there were no firsthand accounts. whatsoever of any person(s) comzng and § gozng, other than the

"international” couple Mr. Stewart clanned he'd seen. (See' Attachments 6—8 ) The only property
manager who testlﬁed-—the landlord’s 24/7 on-site property manager Utsula Morales—stated
that she never saw anyone coming and going from Ms Sund's unit, either. (See Attachment 7 at
7.) Yet, the lack of evidence of anybody coming and gomg is nowhere cited or acknowledge in
the hearing officer's- dec1s1on o '

Also, after initially test1fymg that she'd been informed of "Strangers commg in and out of
" Ms. Sund's unit, Ms. Morales later testified that she'd received just one such complaint from a
stngle tenant in around November or December 2017. (See Attachment 7, inclusive. ) The
complalnmg tenant had reported "smoke and noise," apparently attributed to Ms. Sund's umt

- (See id. at 2. ) When Ms. Morales went downstalrs to investigate, she found’ "nothing out of the
ordlnary" and just some TV noise. (See Attachment id at 3.) The purported complamt was also
1nadmrss1ble plainly hearsay. Although Morales testified that this complaint was sent to her by
email (See id at p. 5), no email was offered as evidence. And on cross- -examination, Morales
testrﬁed that the complaint was "more about" noise than anything else. (See Attachment 7 at 6. )

Fi 1nally, when asked by the hearing officer if the extent of the complaint was llmlted to smoke

SA couchsurﬁng profile for Cory Hamrich remains avatlable at .

https://www. couchsurfing, com/people/coryhamno It indicates Mr. Hamnek has not even

logged into his account for about three years; i.e., since around 2016.

.l s

000174




. and noise, Ms. Morales replied, "M-hm" (See id.-at 7.). However none of these obv1ous

inconsistencies or lapses in testimony are cited or a\ifknowledged in the hearmg ofﬁcer s decision.
‘ Thus the ev1dence demonstrated that between the time that the August 22 "warning"

v letter was purportedly sent and September 6, when the Costa~Hawk1ns rent increase notice

issued, nothzng new had happened—— except that, on August 24" the owner was notzﬁed by Ms.

 Sund that she was pregnant, and that M. Hamrick, the baby" s father, would be moving in.

It should also be noted that the decision mcorrectly quotes the landlord’s responsive
letter dated August 28th as stating that the landlord was agreeable to Ms. Sund’s boyfrlend and
then later their child staymg in Ms. Sund’s unit: The decision quotes from the letter as follows
"If [you] had made a reasonable and proper request well in advance of the move-in date, instead
of umlaterally stating that [your] boyfnend was moving in, the landlord would have been -
amendable to accommodatlng [your] request.. and .if the [you wish] to revisit this issue down
the road in a more appropriate fashion, then management may be more receptive". (Emphasis
added ) The letter does not say that. (See Attachment 4.) 1t says that the landlord is typically

amenable" and that “down the road...management may be more receptive” [erhphasis added].
Hardly reassuring to a soon-to-be new mother expecting a baby in the 4—6 weeks, whose phone
calls and texts to further discuss the i issue are 1gnored and who then receives a rent increase she:
cannot afford '

There were also surveillance: ‘cameras at the property. Accordmg to Stewart's testtmony,
at the time of the hearmg there were about five cameras total. (See Attachment 6 at 18.) These .
mcluded a camera at the back of the first ﬂoor, where Ms. Sund's unit is located. (See lbld)
There were also multlple cameras in front of the building. (See zbzd) Mr, Stewart testified that
he never checked any cameras for recordlngs of peop]e coming in and out of Ms. Sund's '
apartment. (See Attachment 6 at 20-21.) When asked why, his incredible answer was, "If I
- thought it [“whether she’s subletting”) was an important issue, [ would have presented the

footage. We didn’t produce the footage " (See id. at21 ) Yet, the decision contains o
. reference to the landlord’s Jailure to produce any footage despzte the fact that there were ;
 multiple recording cameras on the property. .

Apart from the hearing ofﬁcer s misplaced reliance on Mr. Stewart's testimony, she also

-6-

000175




relied on the testimony of Don MacRitchie, a private investigator hired by the owner. The
hearing officer’s summary of this testimony concludes, “MacRitchie opined that a preponderance
of the ewdence supports a conclusion that Ms. Sund's permanent place of residence is not the

' 'subJect property . . [.]."* (See Hearing Decision ("Decision") at 6. ) |

“Permanent place of residence” in the context of Costa-Hawklns is a legal issue, and an
expert is prohibited from testifying asto a legal conclusmn "Thete are limits to expert
' testlmony, not the least of which is the prohlbltlon against admission of an expert's opinion on a
quest1on oflaw. (Ferreira v. Workmen s Comp. Appeals Bd. (1974) 38 Cal App.3d 120; '
Summers v. A.L. Gilbert Co. (1999) Cal. App. 4™ 1155, 1178.) .

' More importantly, the Iandlord’s expert, Machtchle——after testlfymg that he’d conducted
extensive data-base searches in the course of i investigating Ms. Sund's status— testified that he |
was unable to identify a single individual who'd ever sublet Ms, Sund's unit. (See Attachment 8
~atl) Andhe stated that he had not been able to find any evidence that Ms. Sund was sublettmg
(See Attachment 8, 1nclus1ve ) Therefore, his opinion was Ms. Sund was not subletting. Once
again, reference to this testimony is omitted from the decision. .

F urther after the first day of testimony, at which he was present throughout, MacRJtchJe
was asked to interview four tenants from the subject premlses (The first day of testimony was’
Friday, May 30 thé second was June 4%, ) He did s0. And none of them had knowledge of any
other persons associated with Ms. Sund’s unit, according to his testimony as follows
- MR. KRANZ DID AN Y OF THEM TELL YOU THAT PERSONS OTHER THAN MS.

SUND WERE STAYING THERE?

MACRITCHIE. THEY DIDN’T, THEY THOUGHT IT POSSIBLE.

MR. KRANZ: OKAY. AND WHICH PERSONS TOLD YOU THEY THOUGHT IT
POSSIBLE?

MACRITCHIE: ALL DIDN’T HAVE DEFINITE KNOWLEDGE AND THEY ALL WERE
- AWARE THAT THERE WERE PEOPLE THAT WERE IN THE BUILDING THAT
WEREN’T ASSOCIATED WITH APARTMENTS, AND THEY DIDN’T KNOW FOR

*This opinion was offered in Mr. MacRitchie's 1nvest1gat1ve report on Ms Sund, rather
than during testlmony

-7

1000176




CERTAIN WHAT APARTMENT THEY WERE ASSOCIATED WITH. SO THEY
THOUGHT THEY WERE SOME TYPE OF SUBTENANTS BUT THEY COULD NOT -
DEFINITELY ASSOCIATE WITH MS. SUND’S APARTMENT.

4 MR. KRANZ AND DID YOU ASK THEM FOR — IF THEY HAD ANY INFORMATION

ABOUT THESE ALLEGED SUBTENANTS ?

MACRITCHIE: YES, o |
MR. KRANZ: AND WHAT DID THEY TELL YOU ?

MACRITCHIE: WHAT I JUST TOLD You.
(See id at 1.) ' | S
‘ ARGUMENT |
L There Was Not Substantial Evndence To Support the Declslon
Substanual evidence means more than a mere scmtﬂla it means such relevant evidence as
a reasonable mind ‘might accept as adequate to-support a conclusion. (See Richardson v. Perales
(1971) 402 U. S. 389, 401; Gebhart v. SEC 595 F.3d 1034, 1043 (9th Cir. 2010); Howard ex rel.

Wolff'v. Barnhart (Howard) (9th Cir. 2003) 341 F. 3d 1006, 1011 ) The records as a whole must

be considered, weighing both the evidence that supports and the ev1dence that detracts from the
agency s decision, (See Mayes v. Massanari (9th Cir. 2001) 276 F.3d 453 459; see also Int']
Union of Pamter & Allied Tradesv. J & R Floorzng, Inc. (9th C1r 2011) 656 F.3d 860, 865:
Hawau Stevedores, Inc. v. Ogawa, (9th Cir. 2010) 608 F.3d 642, 652 ("The ALJ is expected to

‘ cons1der the record as a whole, including all witness testimony and each medical report, before

entering findings"). The court must affirm where there is such relevant evidence as reasonable -
mmds might accept as adequate to suppott a conclus1on even if it is poss1ble to draw contrary '
conclusions from the evidence. (See Howard supra, at 1011.)

When the record as a whole is reviewed in this case, reasonable minds cannot ﬁnd that
there was adequate evidence to support the conclusions of the hearing officer. Reasonable mmds

could not differ as to whether the conclusions drawn by the hearing officer were justified by the.

evidence, Therefore the decision was not supported by substantial evidence.

IL. The Decision Constitutes An Abuse of Dlscretlon ;

An abuse of discretion is a plam error, discretion exercised to an end not justified by the

-8.-

000177




evidence, a judgment that is clearly agamst the logic and effect of the facts as are found.
(Rabkin v. 'Oregon Health Sciences Umv (9th Cir., 2003) 350 F.3d 967, 977, Inre Korean Air
- Lines Co., Ltd (9th Cir. 2011) 642 F.3d 685, 698 n.11.)
| Under the abuse of d1scret1on standard a rev1ew1ng court cannot reverse absent a deﬁmte
‘and firm conviction that the d1str1ct court comm1tted a clear error of judgment in ‘the conclusion it
reached upon a welghmg of relevant factors. (See McCollough v. Johnson, Rodenburg & |
Lauznger LLC (9th Cir. 2011) 637 F.3d 939, 953; Valdivia v, Schwarzenegger (%th Cir. 2010)
599 F.3d 984, 988 (citing SEC v. Coldicut (9th Cir. . 2001) 258 F.3d 939, 941).
The hearing officer’s exerc1se of discretion reﬂects Jjudgement that was elearly agamst the ‘
logic and effect of the facts. The selective use of evidence, the mischaracterizations and .
misstatements of other of ev1dence and the plain lack of objectivity, as evinced by the dCClSIOIl
demonstrates a judgement inconsistent with logic and the facts. The dec1510n consistently relied .
on-evidence that was mad1m351ble while at the same entirely i 1gnor1ng other matenal ev1dence
“much of which was subnutted on.behalf of the Respondent.
The decision thus reflects an abuse of d1scret10n demonstrates a lack of object1v1ty and a

preJudlce towards Petitioner.

IL. . In Disregard of the Evndence, the Hearmg Officer Arrlved at the
Unwarranted Conclusion That "The Petitioner's Testimony that She
Temporarily Moved from the Alma Street Address to the California Street
Address in'October of 2017, After Her Request to Have Her Boyfriend Move
Into Her Unit Was Denied, is Simply Not Credible"

- This conclusion was at best misguided, as was her ancillary conclusion, "It is implausible
that the petmoner s boyfriend, Cory Hamrick, would leave his two-bedroom house, that he owns
and claims a homestead exemptlon for, to move into the Ms. Sund's one- bedroom apartment."
.(See Decision (Statement of Facts and Conclusions) at p. 7.) |

Ms. Sund testified that she and her boyfriend had been together Just two years; that they
were not married; that she did not know if the relatxonshlp would be permanent (See
Attachment 5 at 13.) For these reasons, she was not certain about where she would live. She also
testified that her baby was born with and still suffered from a serious, even potentially life-

threatening condition that required around-the-clock monitoring, a circumstance that requlred her

-9.

000178




to live with her boyfriend. (See Attachment 5 at5 .) This evidence was,'ﬁnther, undisputed'

The phenomena of single women choosmg to have children is commonplace inour -
soc1ety, and hardly novel. Thisis reflected i in, for example, the fact that it is now illegal to
dlscnmmate based on mantal or familial status, In add1t1on the phenomena of children splitting
. their time between parents who live in different locations is ub1qmtous in our society. Therefore
the hearing officer’s above conclusions are unsupported by evidence, are tone-deaf to
contemporary realities, and are inconsistent with the evrdence that was submltted Each
conclusmn was altogether unwarranted

IV, Under CACI No. 203 The “Evidence” Respondent’s Submitted and Cited in
the Declsmn Deserved To Be Viewed With Distrust and Rejected

Cahforma Civil Jury Instruction (CACI) No 203, entitled Parzjy Havmg Power to
Produce Better Evzdence prov1des as follows:

“You may consider the ability of each party to prov1de evrdence If a party provided
weaker evidence when it could have provided stronger evidence, you may distrust the
weaker ev1dence , _ ' ‘

Examples of Respondent’s failures to provide stronger evidence when it 'could.have
produced stronger evidence are numerons and have been recounted above.. They included, but
are not limited to, Respondent’s failure to produce employee witnesses claimed to have relevant
information; its failure to produce documents, video footage, etc. Indeed, testimony from
| Respondent’s own 'witnesses was sufficient to defeat, and should have defeated, its claims.
.Respondent called three wrtnesses Each offered significant ev1dence contradicting or
inconsistent with Respondent’s claims. Some examples are:

Respondent s asset manager testified that the s1ght1ng of the "international" couple was
not itself the cause of the rent increase. Respondent’s 24/7 on-site property manager testified that
she never saw a poss1ble a sublessee and in effect had no evidence that Respondent ever sublet
And Respondent s private investigator, who Respondent and the hearmg officer insisted was an
expert, could not find any evidence of sublettmg :
| Also, Respondent offered no explanatlon for why it never responded to the emails and

phone calls Ms, Sund made to discuss her boyfriend and their baby staying in her unit.

-10-

000179




,,,,,

Moreover Respondent never explamed Why its August 28 letter stated that it would be
"amenable" to cons1denng Ms. Sund's request when it allegedly already beheved that she was
sublettmg and was allegedly already i mnvestigating as much. Either the August 28" letter was
' d1s1ngenuous or the landlord did not believe that Petitionet was sublettmg—lf not both.
| Ms. Sund testlﬁed on the first day of the hearing that she never received an August 22™
letter warmng her about subletting. The letter was anonymously signed, "The Management."
‘And why didn’t Stewart, who said he wrote the letter, testify that he posted and mailed it? (See
Attachment Sat3.) Also, given the weight Respondent places on that letter, why didn’t its
prlvate investigator mterv1ew Mr. Stewart about the details it contained? Why wasn’t a
o declaration from Mr. Stewart presented, at least by the second day of the hearlng, five days later‘?
V. The Residential Rental Adjustment Program and Appeals Board Are '
‘ * Authorized Under Costa-Hawkms to Regulate or Monltor the Grounds for
Ev1ct10n
In' August 1995, Cahforma enacted C1v11 Code sections 1954.50 through 1954, 535 the
Costa-Hawkins Rental Housing Act (Costa-Hawkins), which established “what is known among
landlord-tenant specialists’ as ‘vacancy decontrol declanng that ‘[n]otwithstanding any other |
provision of law,’ all re81dent1al landlords may, except in specified s1tuatlons ‘establish the
initial rental rate for a dwelhng or unit,”" (DeZerega V. Meggs (2000) 83 Cal. App. 4th 28 41;
Civ.Code- § 1954.53, subd. (a).) The effect of this provision was to permlt landlords ‘to impose
whatever rent they choose at the commencement of a tenancy ? (Cobb v. San Franczsco
| Residential Rent Stabilization and Arbitration Bd, (2002) 98 Cal. App.4th 345, 351.) However,
the Leglslature was well aware that such vacancy decontrol gave landlords an incentive to evict
tenants that were paying rents below market rates, (Bullard v, San Francisco Residential Rent
Sz‘abzlzzatzon Bd (2003) 106 Cal. App. 4th 488, 492), Accordmgly, the Costa. Hawkins statute
“expressly preserved the authority of local governments “to regulate or monitor the grounds for
eviction.” (Civ.Code § 1954.53, subd. (e).)
A. The Evidence Estabhshes a Case of Constructive Eviction.
The ev1dence here establishes a constructive eviction of Ms. Sund because the rent

increase Respondent sought meant that Ms. Sund would no longer be able to reside in het unit.

11 -

000180




She testified she cannot afford a more than doublmg of her rent. The Rent Board cannot

meaningfully monitor or regulate the grounds of thlS eviction without examining the reasons for '

it. Petitioner contends that the reason was her request that her boyfriend and baby’s father, and
later their child, be able to reside in her unit. a |

Ms. Sund had a nght to have the father of her expected child and their daughter move in
with her. ‘This right accrued when she notified the landlord of as much. It was 1mproper and
offensrve for the landlord to insist that Ms. Sund had to wait to “revisit this issue down the road "
and it violated her rlghts Further, her immediate subsequent phone calls to do just that were
1gnored by the landlord, unitil the landlord served her with the Notice of Change of Terms-Rent
Increase. - ' | | o

It is illegal to discriminate in housing based on pregnancy or famﬂy status, under both
st.ate (FEHA, DFEH) and federal (FHA, HUD) law and agency regulations. The landlord cannot
impose conditions on Petitioner’s exercise of that right. That Respondent "ignored the phone calls

| Petitioner made in an effort to exercise that right was unreasonable—especially after it had stated

that it would con31der her request, i.e., that it would “revisit this 1ssue” The landlord never
responded except by way of a notice of rent increase. This was desp1te the fact that 1t'had already
independently verified that Petitioner was pregnant and who the father was. (See Attachment 5
at6.) Respondent never asked for any additional information. This evidence establishes an
atternpted iﬁegal eviction, ' L

B.  The Evidence Establishes a Case of Retaliation.

It was within days of Petitioner’s request that the Respondent served her with a notice of

rént increase. That this ocourred within days after Petitioner sought to exercise certain rights

provided to her by law. - This is undeniahle The only response or communication Petitioner ever

received after seeking to exercise these rights was the notlce of rent i increase. Th1s was

retaliation. Therefore the rent increase berng sought is 1mperm13s1ble

-12-

000181




C. ~ The City of Oakland's Prohibition Against Discrimination and Haras_smént,
as Embodied in OMC Chapter 8.22, Provided the Hearing Officer With the
Authority to Cons1der the Evident Discrimination and Harassment in This

Case.
The laws of the State of California and the Housing Element of the General Plén of the
City of Oakland prohibit arbitrary discrimination by landlords." (OMC § 8. 22.300. ) Basic
- fairness requlres that a landlord must not terminate the tenancy of a residential tenant without
- good, Just non—arb1trary, non-discriminatory reasons. (fbid.) The rising market demand for
rental housmg in Qakland creates an incentive for some landlords to engage in harassing
behavior, including: o B '

[R]epeated acts or omissions of such significance as to .
substantially interfere with or disturb the comfort, repose, peace or
quiet of any person lawfully entitled to occupancy of sich dwelling
unit and that cause, are likely to cause, or are intended to cause any -
person lawfully entitled to occupancy of-a dwelling unit to vacate
such dwelling unit or to surrender or waive any rights in relation to -
such occupancy ‘ :

(See OMC § 8.22'.610E, 8.22.640A(15).) _ .

In sum,_th:e_puxposes of Chapter 8.22 plainly include preventing discrimination and
harassment. Itis imposs'ible‘_ to fulfill thesg purposes without considering evidence of either
discriminaﬁon or of harassment when there is such evidence. Yet, the hearing officer made it
clear during the initial May 30 hearing in this matter that she would not consider evidence of
discrimination. Petitioner did not seek to have this evidence cqnsidered for the purpose of
monetary damages or other affirmative relief. It was offered as a defense to the respondent’s
attempt to increase her rent and to theteby effectively evict her. The hearing officer’s refusal to
consider this evidence was error. '

~ VIL. Petitioner’s Umt Is Not Exempt Under Costa Hawklns Since the Vacancy
~ De-Control'is Inapplicable Here.

The effect of section 1954.53, subdivision (a)’ of Costa-Hawkins is to permit landlords

*Subdivision (a) in relevant part provides that an owner of residential real property may
establish the initial rental rate for a dwelling or unit.

-13.

-000182




"to impose whatever rent they choose at the commencement of a tenancy." (See Cobb v. San
Francisco Residential Rem‘ Stabilization and Arbi'z‘ratz‘onle. (2002) 98 Cal. App. 4th 345, 351:.)
' Séctiqn 1954.53, subdivision (d)(2) further prbvidés, \ ‘ '
' If the original occupant o.r‘occupants who took possession of the dweliing or unit
pursuant to the rental agreement with the owner no longer permanently reside
there, an owner may increase the rent by any amount allowed by this section fo a
lawful sublessee or assignee [emphasis added]. '
‘That Ms. Sund is the original occupant in lawful poésession of the subject unit is in N
‘uncontested. Theré is no claim that at any time she notified the owner any intent to vacate or
terminate her tenancy.® The dispute-hefe revolves whether or not Ms. Sund has cohﬁnued to
- permanently reside in her unit, | -
_ The wdrd "permanehtly" is undefined in C_osta—Hawkins except with reference to
subletting and assigﬂment. (See ibid, see'él_so §1954.51.) Yet, implicit in the statutory language
is that a rent incréase is'unWarranted absent the creation of a new tenancy. (Sge § 1954.53 ..subd. :
@) & @) | . o
o Here, there was no n.ewA tenancy: Contrary to fhe owner's theory of this case and the
hearing officer's dccisioﬁ, there is no substantial or admissible evidence that Ms. Sund sublef or
assignéd the unit at any time since the inception of her tenancy in Juiy, 2008. For t.he'above
reasons, subdivisipﬁ (d)(2) is inapplicable. B ' |
o CONCLUSION
For the fc;regding reasons, this appeal should be granted.
Dated: January 28,2019 - Respectfully éubn;jtted; |
| LAW OFFICES OF PAUL L. KRANZ

Wﬂu& L. g—mp—

% Indeed, as she testified on May 30" and as was earlier stated, she continues to retain
personal possessions at 633 Alma Street, receive certain items of mail there, use the shower,

occasionally eat, take care of her plants, and so forth.

-14-

1000183




PROOF OF SERVICE
~ (Case Number T18-0018) |
I, the undersigned, certify and attest as follows:
I.am. over the age of eighteeﬁ years 'aﬁd am ﬁot a paﬁy to the cause within. My business
address is 639 San Gabriel Avenue, Albany, California 54706.
On January 29, 2019, T caused the w1thm

NOTICE OF ERRATA AND AMENDED SUBMISSION IN SUPPORT
OF APPEAL OF HEARING OFFICER’S DECISION

" to be served by first class mail, postage pfep,aid, on Respondeﬁt’s representatives. addressed as
follows:
c/o Russell B. Flynn
Vermnon Street Apartments, LP, aka Flynn Family Holdings, LL.C.
1717 Powell Street # 300 |
San Francisco, California 94133 _
. Gregory McConnell
The McConnell Group
300 Frank Ogawa Plaza Suite # 460
Oakland Cahforma
' Executed Albany, California on January 29 2019.

1 declare under penalty of perjury that the foregoing is true, and correct.

e ‘WZ%‘&‘%//—-
Gloria Reynolds /

000184




: Attﬁchment 1

000185







-Attachment 2

000187







-—— - -

000189




Attachm_ent 3

1000190




Pl _,xj ’&@El&* ’;}: ':: ..n.».;'.,.:,-y., o S8y o0 biaeils S
Rside mﬁﬁmmw \ ,,

000191




0001 92

S e 1 e R e SR 5 £ e, 11t e et e
I R AR O MY SR g, i R e e e

[
g
b
i3

;




@akfami &a‘saﬁem Ad pimnt ;m{ i CRATY
i st bl dendil il
: it .ﬁgm’xw P0G

-000193

Revised 240747




JE&SI{;AJMA@@I@ SiR fa (@ﬁgj ha't r?aﬁeugzang}; AR AL YANAVE : ‘.

dleiclare under *b?enaity bF @érjury uuei@r th@ iaws of the: $§a§e of Califoria that th farsgeing.
i5 tije antj, gt ‘ ) ,

i, é
) N (I
T TL— . . . : IO o, 546 0205) (231

[T QUCSERE VRV

000194




CONSOLIDATED CHRONOLOGICAL CASE REPORT

Case No.:
Case Name:
Property Address:

Parties:

OWNER APPEAL.:

Activity

Tenant Petition filed

Owner Response filed
Hearing Decision mailed

Owner Appeal filed

T19-0272 & T19-0325

Jeffers v. BD Opportunity 1 LP

_ 7123 Holly Street, Unit 1, Oakland, CA

Colleen Jeffers (Tenant)
Xavier Johnson (Tenant Representative)
Christina Micciche (Owner Representative)

Date

April 29,2019
June 24, 2019

September 9, 2019
January 23, 2020

- February 10, 2020

000195



7 e,
{

T19- 0ATA M|y S,

(\

CITY oF OAKLAND

CITY bF OAKLAND KC Ifﬂ}“&é%ﬁb\ni FROERAk

RENT ADJUSTMENT PROGRAM!MB APRZQ PH 217
P.O. Box 70243
Oakland, CA 94612-0243

510) 238-3721 \ L
(510) TENANT PETITION

Please Fill Out This Form As Completely As You Can. Failure to provide needed information may
result in your petition being rejected or delayed.

Please print legibly
Your Name Rental Address (with zip code) Telephone:
Colleen Jeffers 7123 Holly St #1 | 510-917-2839

Oakland, CA 94621 E-mail:

_ jeffers_colleen@yahoo.com
Your Representative’s Name Mailing Address (with zip code) ; Telephone:
Email:

Property Owner(s) name(s) Mailing Address (with zip code) Telephone:
BD Opportunity 1 LP 3340 Woodside Terrace

Fremont, CA 94539 Email:
Property Manager or Management Co. Mailing Address (with zip code) Telephone:

(if applicable)
Pama Management

4900 Santa Anita Ave, Suite 2C |626-575-3070

El Monte, CA 91731

Email:

Number of units on the property: 6
Type of unit you rent . Apartment, Room, or
(check one) O House 0 Condominium Live-Work
Are you current on '
X
your rent? (check one) & Yes Q2 No

If you are not current on your rent, please explain. (If you are legally withholding rent state what, if any, habitability violations exist in

your unit.)

I. GROUNDS FOR PETITION: Check all that apply. You must check at least one box. For all of the

grounds for a petition see OMC 8.22.070 and OMC 8.22.090. I(We) contest one or more rent increases on
one or more of the following grounds:

X | (a) The CPI and/or banked rent increase notice I was given was calculated incorrectly.

X | (b) The increase(s) exceed(s) the CPI Adjustment and is (are) unjustified or is (are) greater than 10%.

x| (c) Ireceived a rent increase notice before the property owner received approval from the Rent Adjustment
Program for such an increase and the rent increase exceeds the CPI Adjustment and the available banked

Rev. 2/10/17

For more information phone (510) 238-3721. 1
Petition prepared by Centro Legal de la Raza
000196




rent increase.

X (d) No written notice of Rent Program was given to me together with the notice of 1ncrease(s) Iam
contesting. (Only for increases noticed after July 26, 2000.)

x| () The property owner did not give me the required form “Notice of the Rent Adjustment Program” at least
6 months before the effective date of the rent increase(s).

x | (f) The rent increase notice(s) was (were) not given to me in compliance with State law.

(g) The increase I am contesting is the second increase in my rent in a 12-month period.

(h) There is a current health, safety, fire, or building code violation in my unit, or there are serious problems
with the conditions in the unit because the owner failed to do requested repair and maintenance. (Complete
Section III on following page)

(i) The owner is providing me with fewer housing services than I received previously or is charging me for
X | services originally paid by the owner. (OMC 8.22.070(F): A decrease in housing services is considered an
increase in rent. A tenant may petition for a rent adjustment based on a decrease in housing services.)
(Complete Section III on following page)

(i) My rent was not reduced after a prior rent increase period for a Capital Improvement had expired.

(k) The proposed rent increase would exceed an overall increase of 30% in 5 years. (The 5-year penod
begins with rent increases noticed on or after August 1, 2014).

() I wish to contest an exemption from the Rent Adjustment Ordinance because the exemption was based on
fraud or mistake (OMC 8.22, Article I)

(m) The owner did not give me a summary of the justification(s) for the increase despite my written request.

(n) The rent was raised illegally after the unit was vacated as set forth under OMC 8.22.080.

II. RENTAL HISTORY: (You must complete this section)

Date you moved into the Unit: 2/2013 Initial Rent; $ 950 . /month

When did the owner first provide you with the RAP NOTICE, a written NOTICE TO TENANTS of the
existence of the Rent Adjustment Program? Date: _Never . If never provided, enter “Never.”

Is your rent subsidized or controlled by any government agency, including HUD (Section 8)? Yes

List all rent increases that you want to challenge. Begin with the most recent and work backwards. If
you need additional space, please attach another sheet. If you never received the RAP Notice you can
contest all past increases. You must check “Yes” next to each increase that you are challenging.

Date you Date increase Monthly rent increase Are you Contesting Did You Receive a
received the goes into effect this Increase in this Rent Program
notice {mo/day/year) Petition?* Notice With the
(mo/day/year) From To ‘ Notice Of
Increase?
3/9/2019 4/1/2019 $951.39 |% 1046.00 BYes UNo OYes XENo
9/2019 10/1/2017 | % 930.00 |¥951.39| ®Yes ONo OYes MNo
$ $ OYes ONo f1Yes DONo
$ $ OYes ONo OYes DONo
$ $ OYes [ONo OYes ONo
$ $ OYes 0ONo OYes ONo
Rev. 2/10117 For more information phone (510) 238-3721. 2

000197




* You have 90 days from the date of notice of increase or from the first date you received written notice of the
existence of the Rent Adjustment program (whichever is later) to contest a rent increase. (0.M.C. 8.22.090 A 2) If
you did not receive a RAP Notice with the rent increase you are contesting but have received it in the past, you
have 120 days to file a petition. (0.M.C. 8.22.090 A 3) :

Have you ever filed a petition for this rental unit?
X Yes
0 No
List case number(s) of all Petition(s) you have ever filed for this rental unit and all other relevant Petitions:

T16-0526

III. DESCRIPTION OF DECREASED OR INADEQUATE HOUSING SERVICES:

Decreased or inadequate housing services are considered an increase in rent. If you claim an unlawful
rent increase for problems in your unit, or because the owner has taken away a housing service, you must
complete this section.

Are you being charged for services originally paid by the owner? OYes X No
Have you lost services originally provided by the owner or have the conditions changed? KYes 0ONo
Are you claiming any serious problem(s) with the condition of your rental unit? RYes 0ONo

If you answered “Yes” to any of the above, or if you checked box (h) or (i) on page 2, please attach a
separate sheet listing a description of the reduced service(s) and problem(s). Be sure to include the
following:

1) alist of the lost housing servnce(s) or problem(s);

2) the date the loss(es) or problem(s) began or the date you began paying for the service(s)

3) when you notified the owner of the problem(s); and

4) how you calculate the dollar value of lost service(s) or problem(s).
Please attach documentary evidence if available.

You have the option to have a Cify inspector come to your unit and inspect for any code violation. To make an
appointment, call the City of Oakland, Code of Compliance Unit at (510) 238-3381,,

IV. VERIFICATION: The tenant must sign:

I declare under penalty of perjury pursuant to the laws of the State of California that everything I said
in this petition is true and that all of the documents attached to the petition are true copies of the
originals.

fr\»wﬁ OfQ“M - -9 - &C’{

Tenant’s Signature Date

Rev. 2110717 For more information phone (510) 238-3721. 3

000198



V. MEDIATION AVAILABLE: Mediation is an entirely voluntary process to assist you in reaching an
agreement with the owner. If both parties agree, you have the option to mediate your complaints before a
hearing is held. If the parties do not reach an agreement in mediation, your case will go to a formal hearing
before a different Rent Adjustment Program Hearing Officer,

You may choose to have the mediation conducted by a Rent Adjustment Program Hearing Officer or select an
outside mediator. Rent Adjustment Program Hearing Officers conduct mediation sessions free of charge. If
you and the owner agree to an outside mediator, please call (510) 238-3721 to make arrangements. Any fees
charged by an outside mediator for mediation of rent disputes will be the responsibility of the parties
requesting the use of their services.

Mediation will be scheduled only if both parties agree (after both your petition and the owner’s response have
been filed with the Rent Adjustment Program). The Rent Adjustment Program will not schedule a
mediation session if the owner does not file a response to the petition. Rent Board Regulation 8.22.100.A.

If vou want to schedule your case for mediation, sign below.

I agree to have my case mediated by a Rent Adjustment Program Staff Hearing Officer (no charge).

Tenant’s Signature ' Date

VI. IMPORTANT INFORMATION:

Time to File This form must be received at the offices of the City of Oakland, Rent Adjustment Program,
Dalziel Building, 250 Frank H. Ogawa Plaza Suite 5313, Oakland, CA 94612 within the time limit for filing a
petition set out in the Rent Adjustment Ordinance, Oakland Municipal Code, Chapter 8.22. Board Staff cannot
grant an extension of time to file your petition by phone. For more information, please call: (510) 238-3721.

File Review

Your property owner(s) will be required to file a response to this petition within 35 days of notification by the
Rent Adjustment Program. You will be sent a copy of the Property Owner’s Response. The petition and .
attachments to the petition can be found by logging into the RAP Online Petitioning System and accessing
your case once this system is available. If you would like to review the attachments in person, please call the
Rent Adjustment Program office at (510) 238-3721 to make an appointment.

ViI. HOW DID YOU LEARN ABOUT THE RENT ADJUSTMENT PROGRAM?

Printed form provided by the owner

Pamphlet distributed by the Rent Adjustment Program
Legal services or community organization

Sign on bus or bus shelter

Rent Adjustment Program web site

Other (describe):

T

Rev. 2710117 For more information phone (510) 238-3721. 4

000199




¥ o7
{

PAMA MANAGEMENT, INC. | 3021-0001-1
NOTICE OF CHANGE IN TERMS OF B AN T A MONTE, CA S8
TEN ANCY - Phonef (626). 5753070
(Rent Increase) gﬁ Egig §3§I§3§Z

Resident( 5s): COLLEEN JEFFERS- and all dthers in possession of:
Premises: 7123 HOLLY ST #1
OAKLAND, CA 94621

TO RESIDENT(S):

PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that the terms of your month-to month tenancy of the above-described premises are
. changed in the following respects, as indicated by the Check mark on the line (s) before the applicable paragraph (s)

\

R'ent Increase of 10% or less-

Old Rental Amount $ 951.39
New Rental Amount § 1046

) _ ‘Effective Date: April 1. 2019
Rent Due Date:; _1st day of each calendar month , '
(Pursuant to California Civil Code 827: If this rent increase plus all rent increases during the prior 12 months does not increase
the rent by a cumulative amount over 10%, this rent increase notice will be effective in 30 days if personally served upon you or
.35 days if served by mail in accordance with Code bf Civil Procedure 1013) C

Rent Increase over ’10%-

Old Rental Amount
New Rental Amount
_ Effective Date:
Rent Due Date: st day of each calendar month.
(Pursnant to California Civil Code 827: If this rent increase plus all rent increases during the prior 12 months has been increased
by a cumulative amount over 10%, this rent increase notice will be effective in 60 days if personally served upon you or 65 days

if served by mail in accordance with Code of Civil Procedure 1013)

Except as herein provided, all other terms of your tenancy shall remain in full force and effect.

“AS REQUIRED BY LAW, YOU ARE HEREBY NOTIFIED THAT A NEGATIVE CREDIT REPORT
REFLECTING ON YOUR CREDIT RECORD MAY BE SUBMITTED TO A CREDIT REPORTING AGENCY IF
YOU FAIL TO FULFILL THE TERMS OF YOUR CREDIT OBLIGATIONS.” CC17850(2).

'Date: February 17, 2019

Landlord

000200



],. ~
i

- T19: 0%5 -LUM | oL

e

CITY oF OAKLAND

CITY OF OAKLAND

RENT ADJUSTMENT PROGRAM
' P.O. Box 70243 ’

Oakland, CA 94612-0243

(510) 238-3721

ceidT ADJUSTMENT PROGRAM

TENANF

1ON

Please Fill Out This Form As Completely As You Can. Failure to
result in your petition being rejected or delayed.

provide needed information may

Please print legibly
Your Name Rental Address (with zip code) Telephone:
Colleen Jeffers 7123 Holly St #1 510-917-2839

jeffers_colleen@yahoo.com

Your Representative’s Name

Mailing Address (with zip code)

Telephone:

Email:
Property Owner(s) name(s) Mailing Address (with zip code) Telephone:
BD Opportunity 1 LP 3340 Woodside Terrace
Fremont, CA 94539 Email
P'ropert'y Manager or Management Co. Mailing Address (with zip code) | Telephone:
(if applicable) 4900 Santa Anita Ave, Suite 2C (626-575-3070
Pama Management Bl

El Monte, CA 91731

Number of units on the property: 6

Type of unit you rent : . Apartment, Room, or
(check one) O House O Condominium Live-Work
Are you current on ' ’
: X
your rent? (check one) & Yes O No

If you are not current on ifour rent, please explain, (If you are legally withholding rent state what, if any, habitability violations exist in

your unit.)

I. GROUNDS FOR PETITION: Check all that apply. You must check at least one box: For all of the
grounds for a petition see OMC 8.22.070 and OMC 8.22.090. I (We) contest one or more rent increases on
one or more of the following grounds:

X

() The CPI and/or banked rent increase notice I was given was calculated incorrectly.

X

(b) The increase(s) exceed(s) the CPI Adjustment and is (are) unjustified or is (are) greater than 10%.

X

(c) Ireceived a rent increase notice before the property owner received approval from the Rent Adjustment
Program for such an increase and the rent increase exceeds the CPI Adjustment and the available banked

Rev. 2/10/17

For more information phone (510) 238-3721.

Petition prepared by Centro Legal de la Raza

1

000201



[ ?

rent increase.

x| (d) No written notice of Rent Program was given to me together with the notice of increase(s) I am
contesting. (Only for increases noticed after July 26, 2000.)

X| (e) The property owner did not give me the required form “Notice of the.Rent Adjustment Program” at least
6 months before the effective date of the rent increase(s).

X | () The rent increase notice(s) was (were) not given to me in compliance with State law.

(g) The increase I am contesting is the second increase in my rent in a 12-month period.

(h) There is a current health, safety, fire, or building code violation in my unit, or there are serious problems
with the conditions in the unit because the owner failed to do requested repair and maintenance. (Complete
Section IIl on following page)

(i) The owner is providing me with fewer housing services than I received previously or is charging me for
X | services originally paid by the owner. (OMC 8.22.070(F): A decrease in housing services is considered an
increase in rent. A tenant may petition for a rent adjustment based on a decrease in housing services.)
(Complete Section III on following page)

(j) My rent was not reduced after a prior rent increase period for a Capital Improvement had expired.

(k) The proposed rent increase would exceed an overall increase of 30% in 5 years. (The 5-year period
begins with rent increases noticed on or after August 1, 2014).

(1) I wish to contest an exemption from the Rent Adjustment Ordinance because the exemption was based on
fraud or mistake (OMC 8.22, Article I)

(m) The owner did not give me a summary of the justification(s) for the increase despite my written request.

(n) The rent was raised illegally after the unit was vacated as set forth under OMC 8.22.080.

IL. RENTAL HISTORY: (You must complete this section)

Date ydu moved into the Unit: 2/2013 Initial Rent: $ 950 /month

When did the owner first provide you with the RAP NOTICE, a written NOTICE TO TENANTS of the
existence of the Rent Adjustment Program? Date: Never __. If never provided, enter “Never.”

Is your rent subsidized or controlled by any goverhment agency, including HUD (Section 8)? Yes

List all rent increases that you want to challenge. Begin with the most recent and work backwards. If
you need additional space, please attach another sheet. If you never received the RAP Notice you can
contest all past increases. You must check “Yes” next to each increase that you are challenging.

Date you Date increase Mbnthly rent increase Are you Contesting | Did You Receive a

received the goes into effect ‘ this Increase in this Rent Program

notice (mo/day/year) Petition?* Notice With the
(mo/day/year) From- To Notice Of
Increase?

5/15/2019 7112019 | % 951.39 |% 1018.16] XYes ONo OYes  BNo

3/9/2019 4/1/2019 $ 951.39 |$ 1046.00 XK Yes ONo UYes XNo

9/2017 10/1/2017 | % 930.00 |% 951.39] XYes ONo OYes  XNo

$ $ OYes ONo OYes ONo

$ _ $ OYes ONo OYes ONo

$ $ OYes 0ONo OYes 0ONo

Rev. 2/10/17 ' For more information phone (510) 238-3721. 2

000202




* You have 90 days from the date of notice of increase or from the first date you received written notice of the
existence of the Rent Adjustment program (whichever is later) to contest a rent increase. (0.M.C. 8.22.090 A 2) If
you did not receive a RAP Notice with the rent increase you are contesting but have received it in the past, you
have 120 days to file a petition. (0.M.C. 8.22.090 A 3)

Have you ever filed a petition for this rental unit?
M Yes ' :
g No

List case number(s) of all Petition(s) you have ever filed for this rental unit and all other relevant Petitions:

I filed a petition on 5/29/2019, T16-0526

I1. DESCRIPTION OF DECREASED OR INADEQUATE HOUSING SERVICES:
Decreased or inadequate housing services are considered an increase in rent. If you claim an unlawful
rent increase for problems in your unit, or because the owner has taken away a housing service, you must
complete this section.

Are you being charged for services originally paid by the owner? ' OYes XNo
Have you lost services originally provided by the owner.or have the conditions changed? X Yes [ONo
Are you claiming any serious problem(s) with the condition of your rental unit? XYes 0ONo

If you answered “Yes” to any of the above, or if you checked box (h) or (i) on page 2, please attach a
separate sheet listing a description of the reduced service(s) and problem(s). Be sure to include the
following: . ' '

1) a list of the lost housing service(s) or problem(s);

2) the date the loss(es) or problem(s) began or the date you began paying for the service(s)

3) when you notified the owner of the problem(s); and '

4) how you calculate the dollar value of lost service(s) or problem(s).
Please attach documentary evidence if available.

You have the option to have a City inspector come to- your unit and inspect for any code violation. To make an
appointment, call the City of Oakland, Code of Compliance Unit at (510) 238-3381. -

IV. VERIFICATION: The tenant must sign:

I declare under penalty of perjury pursuant to the laws of the State of California that everything I said
in this petition is true and that all of the documents attached to the petition are true copies of the
originals. )

Ol Qepff _5-30 2017

Tenant’s Signatlé/ré % Date
Rev. 2/10/17 For more information phone (510) 238-3721. 3

000203



areTe,

sy

V. MEDIATION AVAILABLE: Mediation is an entirely voluntary process to assist you in reaching an
agreement with the owner. If both parties agree, you have the option to mediate your complaints before a
hearing is held. If the parties do not reach an agreement in mediation, your case will go to a formal hearing
before a different Rent Adjustment Program Hearing Officer. :

You may choose to have thé mediation conducted by a Rent Adjustment Program Hearing Officer or select an
outside mediator. Rent Adjustment Program Hearing Officers conduct mediation sessions free of charge. If
you and the owner agree to an outside mediator, please call (510) 238-3721 to make arrangements. Any fees
charged by an outside mediator for mediation of rent disputes will be the responsibility of the parties
requesting the use of their services. :

Mediation will be scheduled only if both parties agree (after both your petition and the owner’s response have

been filed with the Rent Adjustment Program). The Rent Adjustment Program will not schedule a
mediation session if the owner does not file a response to the petition. Rent Board Regulation 8.22.100.A.

If you want to schedule your case for mediation, sign below.

T agree to have my case mediated by a Rent Adjustment Program Staff Heating Officer (no charge).

Tenant’s Signature ‘ Date

VL. IMPORTANT INFORMATION:

Time to File This form must be received at the offices of the City of Oakland, Rent Adjustment Program,
Dalziel Building, 250 Frank H. Ogawa Plaza Suite 5313, Oakland, CA 94612 within the time limit for filing a
petition set out in the Rent Adjustment Ordinance, Oakland Municipal Code, Chapter 8.22. Board Staff cannot
grant an extension of time to file your petition by phone. For more information, please call: (510) 238-3721.

File Review R

Your property owner(s) will be required to file a response to this petition within 35 days of notification by the
Rent Adjustment Program. You will be sent a copy of the Property Owner’s Response. The petition and
attachments to the petition can be found by logging into the RAP Online Petitioning System and accessing
your case once this system is available. If you would like to review the attachments in person, please call the
Rent Adjustment Program office at (510) 238-3721 to make an appointment.

Vil. HOW DID YOU LEARN ABOUT THE RENT ADJUSTMENT PROGRAM?

Printed form provided by the owner .
Pamphlet distributed by the Rent Adjustment Program
Legal services or community organization

Sign on bus or bus shelter

Rent Adjustment Program web site

Other (describe):

T

Rev. 2/10/17 For more information phone (510) 238-3721. 4

000204




Tt

Tenant Petitioner
Colleen Jeffers
7123 Holly Street #1
Oakland, CA 94621

Addendum A- Decreases in Services and Bad Conditions

The bad conditions and decreases of service I am experiencing are enumerated in the tenant petition I
filed on April 29, 2019.

000205



LEIVELD

~—
H

CITY OF QAKLAMD
RENT ARBITRATION FROGRAM

2019 JUN 2L PM 1:35

Colleen Jeffers
7123 Holly Street #1
Oakland, CA 94621
City of Oakland ‘
Rent Adjustment Program
Department of Housing and Community Development
250 Frank H. Ogawa Plaza
Oakland, CA 94612
Via Hand Delivery
June 21, 2019 .

RE: Request for consolidation with petition filed 4/29/19

I filed a tenant petition on April 29, 2019. I have not yet received a notice of hearing or a
case number. I received a second rent increase that I am contesting via the attached petition.
Please consolidate this attached petition with the one I filed 4/29/19. Thank you for your
attention to this matter. : :

Colleen Jeffers

000206



Pama Management

4900 Santa Anita Ave #2C

El Monte, CA 91731

May 15, 2019

Ms Colleen Jeffers

7123 Holly St #1

Oakland, CA 94621

RE: April 1, 2019 Rent Increase Rescissioh, New Increase Enclosed

Dear Ms. Jeffers:

Enclosed with this letter is a new rent increase that becomes effective July 1, 2019. This increase is

allowable by the city of Oakland under the “Banking” justification. Because a rent increase was not
applied in 2018 for a CPI rate of 3.4%, this rent increase takes that CP} rate into account. The two CPI

rates used are 2018 - 3.4% and 2019 - 3.5%,

_If you have any questions, please call 626-575-3070 x226

Thank you

Pama Management

000207



- -

PAMA MANAGEMENT, INC, S 3021-0001-1
| NOTICE OF CHANGE IN TERMS OF 4900 SANTA AII;J{T&(‘;‘;}’;TEE; %‘i‘g%‘f
| TENANCY v Phone: (626) 575-3070
(Rent Increase) ‘ '11::2% §§§§§ $75-2084

Resident( s): COLLEEN JEFFERS- and all others in possession of:
Premises: 7123 HOLLY ST #1 :

OAKLAND, CA 94621
TO RESIDENT(S):

PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that the terms of your month-to month tenancy of the above-described premises are
changed in the following respects, as indicated by the Check mark on the line (s) before the applicable paragraph (s)

Rent Increase of 10% or less-

Old Rental Amount $ 951.39
New Rental Amount $ 1018.16

Effective Date: July 1, 2019

Rent Due Date: _Ist day of each calendar month
(Pursuant to California Civil Code 827: If this rent increase plus all rent increases during the prior 12 months does not increase
the rent by a cumulative amount over 10%, this rent increase notice will be effective in 30 days if personally served upon you or

35 days if served by mail in accordance with Code of Civil Procedure 1013)

Rent Increase over 10%-

Old Rental Amount

New Rental Amount
Effective Date:

Rent Due Date: 1st day of each calendar month.
(Pursunant to California Civil Code 827: Ifthis rent increase plus all rent increases during the prior 12 months has been increased
by a cumulative amount over 10%, this rent increase notice will be effective in 60 days if personally served upon you or 65 days

if served by mail in accordance with Code of Civil Procedure 1013)

Except as herein provided, all other terms of your tenancy shall remain in full force and effect.

“AS REQUIRED BY LAW, YOU ARE HEREBY NOTIFIED THAT A NEGATIVE CREDIT REPORT
REFLECTING ON YOUR CREDIT RECORD MAY BE SUBMITTED TO A CREDIT REPORTING AGENCY IF
YOU FAIL TO FULFILL THE TERMS OF YOUR CREDIT OBLIGATIONS.” CC1 785©(2). '

Date: May 15, 2019 | //4;Af’ gkn¢uﬂv

Landlord

000208



T 7

,
m CITY OF OAKLAND | PR
'~ RENT ADJUSTMENT PROGRAM | D
250 Frank H. Ogawa Plaza, Suite 5313 , SEP 0 9 2013
w © = Oakland, CA 94612-0243 RENT ADJUSTMENT PROGRAM
! (510) 238-3721 i !33 :
CITY OF OAKLAND . PR RT WNER
RESPONSE

Please Fill Qut This Form As Completely As You Can. Failure to provide needed information may
result in your response being rejected or delayed. ‘

CASE NUMBER TI -0

Your Name : Complete Address (with zip code) Telephone:
BN OpderTONTY 4, 1IN0 WA IFE TeRRALY . G4 576'2670
v £ekONT , CA a0 { Email:
NENW PAMAN T, (1
Your Representative’s Name (if any) Complete Address (with zip code) Telephone:
Email:
Tenant(s) Name(s) . .Complete Address (with zip code) * P Bl $oe q_“.“\\,\m';‘- '
CALLREN ee¥btd N3 R gt A Sor (tiponSe
: P18 a4
Property Address (If the property has more than one address, list all addresses) Total number of units on
property

Have you paid for your Oakland Business License? Yes o No O Lic. Number:_ 60 170UNS
The property owner must have a current Oakland Business License. If it is not current, an Owner Petition or Response may
not be considered in a Rent Adjustment proceeding. Please provide proof of payment.

Have you paid the current year’s Rent Program Service Fee ($68 per unit)? Yes ld No [0 APN:_%A110813
The property owner must be current on payment of the RAP Service Fee. If the fee is not current, an Owner Petition or
Response may not be considered in a Rent Adjustment proceeding, Please provide proof of payment.

Date on-which you acquired the building: $ /4\/\3 .
Is there more than one street address on the parcel? Yes O No lﬂ(

Type of unit (Circle One): House / Condominium/ &partmen} room, or live-work

For more information phone (510)-238-3721.
Rev. 771212019

000209




L JUSTIFICATION FOR RENT INCREASE You must check the appropriate justification(s) box for each increase
greater than the Annual CPI adjustment contested in the tenant(s) petition. For the detailed text of these

" justifications, see Oakland Municipal Code Chapter 8.22 and the Rent Board Regulations. You can get additional
information and copies of the Ordinance and Regulations from the Rent Program office in person or by phbening (510)
238-3721.

You must prove the contested rent increase js justified. For each justification checked on the following table, you
must attach organized documentary evidence demonstrating your entitlement to the increase. This documentation
may include cancelled checks, receipts, and invoices. Undocumented expenses, except certain maintenance, repair,
legal, accounting and management expenses, will not usually be allowed. :

Date of Banking Increased Capital Uninsured Debt Fair Retarn
Contested (deferred annual.  Housing Service Improvements Repair Service
Increase =~ . increases) Costs Costs

O 0. O 0

O m] 0 o

O ' o O O

If you are justifying additional contested increases, please attach a separate sheet.

1. RENT HISTORY If you contest the Rent History stated on the Tenant Petition, state the correct information in
this section. If you leave this section blank, the rent history on the tenant’s petition will be considered correct

The tenant moved into the rental unit on

The tenant’s initial rent including all services provided was: $ / month,

Have you (or a previous Owner) given the City of Oakland’s form entitled “NOTICE TO TENANTS OF RESIDENTIAL
RENT ADJUSTMENT PROGRAM” (“RAP Notice™) to all of the petitioning tenants? Yes No Idon’t
know

~ Ifyes, on what date was the Notice first given?

Is the tenant current on the rent? Yes No

Begin with the most recent rent and work backwards. If you need more space please attach another sheet.

Date Notice Date Increase Rent Increased Did you provide the “RAP
Given Effective - | NOTICE®” with the notice of
{mo./day/year) From To rent increase?
$ $ ZYes No
$ $ “Yes "No
$ 3 Z“Yes No
$ $ TYes ©No
$ $ CYes INo

For more information phone (510)-238-3721.
Rev. 7/12/201%

000210



OI. EXEMPTION

If you claim that your property is exempt from Rent Adjustment (Oakland Municipal Code Chapter-
8.22), please check one or more of the grounds:

w} The unit is a single family residence or condominium exempted by the Costa Hawkins Rental Housing
Act (California Civil Code 1954.50, et seq.). If claiming exemption nnder Costa-Hawkins, please answer the
following questions on a separate sheet:

Did the prior tenant leave after being given a notice to quit (Civil Code Section 1946)?

Did the prior tenant leave after being given a notice of rent increase (Civil Code Section 827)?

Was the prior tenant evicted for cause? :

Are there any outstanding violations of building housing, fire or safety codes in the unit or building?

Is the unit a single family dwelling or condominjum that can be sold separately?

Did the petitioning tenant have roommates when he/she moved in?

If the unit is a condominium, did you purchase it? If so: 1) from whom? 2) Did you purchase the entire building? .

N AL

0 The rent for the unit is controlled, regulated or subsidized by a governmental unit, agency or authority
other than the City of Oakland Rent Adjustment Ordinance.

o The unit'was newly constructed and a certificate of occupancy was jssued for it on or after January 1,
1983. : :

O On the day the petition was filed, the tenant petitioner was a resident of a motel, hotel, or boarding
house less than 30 days.

O The subject unit is in a building that was rehabilitated at a cost 0f 50% or more of the average basic cost

of new construction.

a The unit is an accommodation in a hospital, convent, monastery, extended care facility, convalescent
. home, non-profit home for aged, or dormitory owned and operated by an educational institution.

O The unit is located in a building with three or fewer units. The owner occupies one of the units
continuously as his or her principal residence and has done so for at least one year.

1V. DECREASED HOUSING SERVICES

If the petition filed by your tenant claims Decreased Housing Services, state your position regarding the tenant’s
claim(s) of decreased housing services. If you need more space attach a separate sheet. Submit any documents,
photographs or other tangible evidence that supports your position.

For more information phone (510)-238-3721,
Rev. 7/12/2019

000211




PR e

V. VERIFICATION

I declare under penalty of perjury pursuant to the laws of the State of California that all statements made in this
Response are true and that all of the documents attached hereto are true copies of the originals.

— lald S M | 4819
Property

Owner’s Signature Date

IMPORTANT INFORMATION:
Time to File

This form must be received by the Rent Adjustment Program (RAP), 250 Frank H. Ogawa Plaza, Suite 5313, Oakland,
CA 94612-0243, within 35 days after a copy of the tenant petition was mailed to you. Timely mailing as shown by a
postmark does not suffice. The date of mailing is shown on the Proof of Service attached to the response documents
mailed to you. If the RAP office is closed on the last day 1o file, the time to file is extended to the next day the office is
open. : .

You can date-stamp and drop your Response in the Rent Adjustment drop box at the Housing Assistance Center.. The
Housing Assistance Center is open Monday through Friday, except holidays, from 9:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m.

File Review

You should have received a copy of the petition (and claim of decreased housing services) filed by your tenant. When
the RAP Online Petitioning System is available, you will be able to view the response and attachments by logging in
and accessing your case files. If you would like to review the attachments in person, please call the Rent Adjustment
Program office at (510) 238-3721 to make an appointment,

Mediation Program

Mediation is an entirely voluntary process to assist you in reaching an agreement with your tenant. In mediation, the
parties discuss the situation with someone not involved in the dispute, discuss the relative strengths and weaknesses of
the parties’ case, and consider their needs in the situation. Your tenant may have agreed to mediate his/her complaints
by signing the mediation section in the copy of the petition mailed to you. If the tenant signed for mediation and if you
also agree to mediation, a mediation session will be scheduled before the hearing with a RAP staff member trained in
mediation. »

If the tenant did not sign for mediation, you may want to discuss that option with them. You and your tenant may agree
to have your case mediated at any time before the hiearing by submitted a written request signed by both of you. If you
and the tenant agree to a non-staff mediator, please call (510) 238-3721 to make arrangements. Any fees charged by a
non-staff mediator are the responsibility of the parties that participate. You may bring a friend, representative or
attorney to the mediation session. Mediation will be scheduled only if both parties agree and after your response has
been filed with the RAP.

If you want to schedule your case for mediation and the tenant has already agreed to mediation on their petition,
sign below.

I'agree to have my case mediated by a Rent Adjustment Program Staff member 4t no charge.

Property Owner’s Signature Date

_ For more information phone (510)-238-3721.
Rev. 7/12/2019

000212




Attachment A

The rent increase effective July 1, 2019 for Colleen Jeffers at 7123 Holly St #1, Oakland, CA 94621, has
been rescinded and the tenant was notified. The decrease in services are not services, but rather
conditions. All items listed either show as being corrected or have been corrected. Discussions have
been made with the tenant regarding current condition and maintenance items, and there are no
‘services’ that need attention. The management team is in the process of repairing minor, non- urgent,
items in the tenant’s unit.

Given all this information and the status quo, there should be no need for a hearing and this case should
be dismissed.

If there are any additional i inquiries or needed items, please contact Pama Management at 626-575-
3070 x226 or Nevun@pamamgt com

000213



a -

- CITY or OAKLAND
DALZIEL BUILDING - 250 FRANK H. OGAWA PLAZA, SUITE 5313 « OAKLAND, CALIFORNIA 946'12-2034
Housing and Community Development Department ‘ ‘ : TEL (510)238-3721
Rent Adjustment Program ’ : FAX (510)238-6181

CA Relay Service 711

HEARING DECISION

CASE NUMBER: T19-0272, Jeffers v. BD Opportunity 1, LP
' T19-0325, Jeffers v. BD Opportunity 1, LP

PROPERTY ADDRESS: 7123 Holly Street, Unit 1
o Oakland, CA -

DATE OF HEARING: quember 7,2019
DATE OF SUBMISSION:  November 21, 2019
DATE OF DECISION: Jénuary 21,2020
APPEARANCES: Colleen Jeffers, Tenant

Xavier Johnson, Tenant Representative
Christina Micciche, Owner Representative

SUMMARY OF DECISION

The Tenant’s petition is granted.

INTRODUCTION

The tenant filed the petition, T19-0325, on June 24, 2019, which contests a rent
increase effective July 1, 2019, raising the rent from $951.39 to $1,018.16, and a
rent increase effective April 1, 2019, raising the rent from $951.39 to $1,046.00 on
the following grounds:

e The CPI' was calculated incorrectly;

! Consumer Price Index

000214




* The increase exceeds the CPI Adjustment and is greater than 10%:

» The rent increase was not approved and exceeded the banked increase;

* No Notice to Tenants of the Residential Rent Adjustment Program
Notice (RAP Notice) at Inception or 6 Months Prior; and

e Rent Increase Violates State Law.

- The petition also alleges decreased housing services and indicates that she has
never received a RAP Notice.

The tenant filed the petition, T19-0272, on April 29, 2019, which contests a-rent
increase effective April 1, 2019, raising the rent from $951.39 to $1,046.00 and a
rent increase effective October 1, 2017, raising the rent from $930.00 to $951.39,
on the following grounds:

The CPI was calculated incorrectly;

The increase exceeds the CPI Adjustment and is greater than 10%:
The rent increase was not approved and exceeded the banked increase;
No RAP Notice at Inception or 6 Months Prior; and

Rent Increase Violates State Law.

The petition also alleges decreased housing services and indicates that she has
never received a RAP Notice.

The owner only filed a timely response to the tenant petition in T19-0272. The
owner did not file an Owner Response to the tenant petition in T19-0325.

ISSUE(S) PRESENTED

1. When, if ever, was the tenant given the RAP Notice?
2. What is the allowable rent? |

3. Has the tenant suffered decreased housing services?

4. If so, what, if any, restitution is owed to the tenant, and how does that impact
the rent?
/! '

000215




™ | r

- EVIDENCE

Rental History

The subject unit was rented by the tenant in February 2013, at an initial rate of
$950.00, per month. The tenant testified that she did not receive a RAP Notice at
the inception of her tenancy. She also testified that she did file a petition with the
Rent Adjustment Program, previously.? After receiving the decision in the prior
case, the tenant paid $930.00, pursuant to the decision. The tenant has not received
any rent increase notices from the owner, indicating that the conditions have been
restored.

The tenant testified she received the following Notices of Rent Increase:?
$930.00 to $951.39, effective October 1, 2017;

$951.39 to $1,046.00, effective April 1,2019;

$951.39 to $1018.16, effective July 1, 2019; and

$951.39 to $1018.16, effective October 1, 2019.

The tenant testified that she is currently paying $1,018.16 and has done that for
two months. The tenant testified that she also paid $1051.39 per month for rent as
- well. The tenant testified that while she could not remember exactly what months
she paid what amount, she did have receipts for some of her rent payments.* The
rent receipts indicate that the tenant made the following rent payments:

Date of Amount of
Receipt Receipt
02/2/17 $ 950.00
04/03/17 $ 930.00
07/02/17 $ 930.00
10/02/17 $ 930.00
$ 951.50
06/24/18 = 1$ 951.39
11/29/18 $ 951.56
12/23/18 $ 951.56
02/23/19 $ 951.56

2 T16-0526, Jeffers v. Pama Management. _

3 Exhibit A. This Exhibit, and all other Exhibits to which reference is made in this Decision, were admitted into
evidence without objection

4 Exhibit B.

000216




03/29/19 |$ 49.00
07/21/19 | $ 951.39
$1,000.00
09/28/19 | $1,000.00
09/28/19 |[$ 18.16

The tenant testified that she has some rent receipts for rental payments; however,
she indicated that she did not have every single receipt.’

Decreased Housing Services

Water [eaks

The tenant testified that there was a plumbing leak from the upstairs unit into the
bathroom in her unit, in October 2016. The tenant testified that she called the
property owner when she noticed the leak. She testified that the leak was resolved
in two days but that nothing had been done to address the mold and water seepage
issues.®

A Notice of Violation, dated March 26, 2019, was issued for the subject unit. The
subject unit was cited for a violation for water intrusion damage over the front
door.”

Gas Shutoff

The tenant testified that there was an extended gas shut off that resulted in no heat
and hot water; additionally, she was unable to use the stove or oven.® She testified
that she took a picture of the PG&E shutoff notice and sent it via text on March 10,
2019, and that the gas was off for approximately three weeks.

Kitchen cabinets and walls

The tenant testified that the cabinet and walls were damaged from the water leak in
2016. The tenant testified that the kitchen cabinets, walls, and baseboards have not

* The parties were allotted additional time to provide documentation regarding rent paid. The respondent was given
seven days to provide a rent ledger. The petitioner was given until November 14, 2019, to review and respond. The
matter was to be submitted for decision by November 21, 2019,

¢ Exhibit G. '

7 Exhibit D.

8 Exhibit C.

000217




~ o

been addressed since the leak. The tenant further testified that a couple of months
ago, the property owner sent someone out who painted the kitchen cabinets. The
tenant testified the cabinets were painted without cleaning and that as a result,
some of the cabinets are different colors. She admitted that she’s reluctant to have
guests because of the condition of the cabinets. She also testified that she is still
getting leaks as recently as a few days before the hearing. She reported a few days
before the hearing that she went to retrieve something in the cabinet, and it was
wet. She reported this instance to Rosie, the agent of the owner.

Windows

The tenant testified that the front-facing windows are not properly sealed and that

they let in car exhaust and cold air. The tenant testified that she first noticed the

- windows were letting in exhaust in early 2017. She notified the previous property

'management company. The tenant testified that the owner changed all the
windows, except for hers. As a result, she has difficulty breathing.

The Notice of Violation, dated March 26, 2019, includes a violation for the front
bedroom window, next to the parkmg lot.

Infestation

The tenant testified she noticed the roach infestation and reported the condition.
She reported that the property owner had someone coming out spraying, but that -
they only spray one unit. She has not noticed a decrease in the infestation.
Additionally, there is a rodent infestation. She was unable to recall the number of
mice she has seen in the unit. The tenant testified that she sees a mouse almost
every other day.

The subject unit was inspected by the Alameda County Health Care Services
Agency, Vector Control Services District. The Request for Services, dated
October 4, 2019, indicates that the inspection revealed signs of cockroaches as well
as mice droppings.!°

I

//

° Exhibit D.
1 Exhibit E.

000218




Rebuttal testimony

‘The owner’s representative offered rebuttal testimony. She testified that she did
not know the amount of rent the tenant was paying. She testified that she is a
supervisor at the property management company and that the subject unit is not
under her supervision, nor is the person who supervises the building. The owner
representative indicated that the property she supervises is in Stockton, CA, but
that it is not rent-controlled. Furthermore, she testified that she does not supervise
any properties subject to a rent ordinance.

The owner representative testified that she was not aware of any of the conditions
alleged by the tenant in her petition.

The owner’s representative was asked to attend the Hearing, based upon her
proximity to the Hearing location. She was initially relocated to supervise the

- Stockton properties, for three months, but has been there for six months. The
owner representative did not have the opportunity to do a site visit of the subject
unit. She testified that she had never been to the subject property.

The representative found out about the Hearing, from her boss, DJ, the day before
the Hearing. She received documents that had been scanned to her from Nevin, in
the legal department. She does not participate in the process or know what the

process is to respond to a tenant’s petition, and their corporate office handles that.

FINDINGS OF FACT AND CONCLUSION SlOF LAW

When, if ever, was the tenant given written notice of the Rent Adjustment
-Program (RAP Notice)?

The Rent Adjustment Ordinance requires an owner to serve the RAP Notice at the
start of a tenancy!! and together with any notice of rent increase or change in the
terms of a tenancy.!?

The Hearing Decision issued in the prior petition, T16-0526, was issued on
January 25, 2017, and was not appealed. The Hearing Decision is final. Official
notice is taken of T16-0526. The Hearing Decision set the base rent at $950.00,
less ongoing decreased housing services in the amount of $20.00. The decision

1 OM.C. § 8.22.060(A)
2 O M.C. § 8.22.070(H)(1)(A)

000239



also found that the tenant had not been served with the RAP Notice. F urther, the
testimony that she has not received a RAP Notice was undisputed. Accordingly,
the tenant was not given written notice of the RAP Program.

{

What is the allowable rent?

The Rent Adjustment Ordinance requires an owner to serve a RAP Notice at the
start of a tenancy'? and together with any notice of rent increase or change in any
term of the tenancy." An owner may cure the failure to give notice at the start of
the tenancy However, a notice of rent increase is not valid if the effective date of
1ncrease is less than six months after a tenant ﬁrst receives the required RAP
notice.!

Again, Official notice is taken of T16-0526. The Hearing Decision set the base
rent at $950.00, less ongoing decreased housing services in the amount of $20.00.
The tenant’s testimony that she never received a notice indicating thatthe
conditions were restored is undisputed. Moreover, the evidence supports the
tenant’s undisputed testimony that she did not receive a RAP Notice with the
Notices of Rent Increase. Accordingly, the rent increases are invalid, and the
tenant’s base rent remains $950.00, less ongomg decreased housmg services in the
amount of $20.00, or $930.00.

Has the tenant suffered decreased housing services?

Under the Oakland Rent Adjustment Ordinance, a decrease in housing services is
considered to be an increase in rent'® and may be corrected by a rent adjustment 17
However, in order to justify a decrease in rent, a decrease in housing services must
be either the elimination or reduction of a service that existed at the start of the
tenancy or a violation of the housing or building code, which seriously affects the
habitability of the tenant’s unit.

There is also a time limit for claiming decreased housing services. Ifthe decreased
service is the result of a noticed or discrete change in services provided to the
tenant, the petition must be filed within 90 days of whichever is later: (1) the date

B O.M.C. Section 8.22.060(A)

4 O.M.C. Section 8.22.070(H)(1)(A)
15 0.M.C. Section 8.22.060(C)

1 0.M.C. § 8.22.070(F)

70.M.C. § 8.22.110(E)

000220



(i | o

the tenant is noticed or first becomes aware of the decreased housing service; or (2)
the date the tenant first receives the RAP Notice.

However, where the RAP Notice has never been given, a tenant can be granted
restitution for rent overpayments due to decreased housing services for a maximum
of 3 years.!®  Since the evidence established that the tenant did not receive the
RAP notice, the tenant is entitled to restitution for up to three years.

For a tenant’s claim for decreased housing services to be granted, an owner must
have notice of a problem and a reasonable opportunity to make needed repairs.

Water Ieaks
The evidence of the water leaking in the subject unit is undisputed. Moreover, the

evidence of water intrusion damages was noted in the Notice of Violation,
indicating a violation of the housing or building code, which affects the habitability

of the tenant’s unit. Thus, the tenant is entitled to a 25% rent credit from October L

2016, until the violation is abated.
Gas Shutoff

The evidence of the gas shut off to the subject unit is uncontradicted. Thus, the
tenant is entitled to a 50% rent credit for March 2019.

Kitchen cabinets and walls

The evidence of the damage to the kitchen cabinets and walls in the subject unit is
uncontested. Moreover, the evidence of water intrusion damages was noted in the
Notice of Violation, indicating a violation of the housing or building code, which

affects the habitability of the tenant’s unit. Thus, the tenant is entitled to a 25%

rent credit from October 2016, until the violation is abated.

Windows

The evidence of the windows needing repair in the subject unit is undisputed.
Moreover, the window damage was noted in the Notice of Violation, indicating a
violation of the housing or building code, which affects the habitability of the
tenant’s unit. Thus, the tenant is entitled to a 5% rent credit from January 2017
until the violation is abated.

'8 Appeal Decision in Case No. T06-0051, Barajas/Avalos v. Chu

000224



{

Infestation

The evidence of the infestation in the subject unit is uncontradicted. Moreover, the
evidence of infestation was noted by Vector Control, 1ndlcat1ng a condition that
affects the habitability of the tenant’s unit. Thus, the tenant is entitled to a 10%
rent credit from October 2016, until the violation is abated.

What, if any, restitution is owed to the tenant, and how does that 1mpact the
rent?

As indicated above, the legal rent for the unit is $930.00 per month. The evidence
establishes that the tenant paid $951.39 from October 1, 2017, until September 30,
2019. Further, the evidence establishes that from October 1, 2019, the tenant
began paying $1018.16. Accordingly, the tenant is entitled to restitution for the
overpayments of rent in the amount of $954.31.1°

~ Service Lost From To Rent % Rent | Decrease ( No. Overpaid
iaY / 4l AL 4]
Water Leaks 7~ 1:0ct-16 ~ 28:Feb-20° $ 930.00  25%  $23250 41 | $ 9,532.50
Gas Shutoff oo 1-Mar-19 3]-Mar-19 $ 0 930.00  50%  $465.00 1 | $  465.00
Kitchen' cabmets and wa]]s - 1-0ct-16 29-Feb-20 $ 930.00 25%  $23250 41§ 9,532.50
Windows - o 1dan-l7 29-Feb-200 $ 93000 5%  $ 4650 38§ 1767.00
Infestation _ 1-0ct:16 29Feb20 $ 93000 10% $ 93.00 41 | $ 3,813.00
‘* 1f - TOTAL LOST SERVICES: § 25,110.00
OVERPAID RENT
. Max
Monthly | Monthly | Difference| No.
From To Rent paid Rent | per month [Months|  Sub-total
1:0¢t-17 - 30-Sep-19  $951.39 $930 $ 2139 24 $  513.36
1-Oct-19 - 28-Feb-20 - $1,018.19 $930 $ 8819 5 i$v_ 440.95
5 |TOTAL OVERPAID RENT §  954.31

The chart above indicates restitution for decreased housing services valued at
$25,110.00. The tenant is also entitled to restitution of overpaid rent in the amount
of $954.31.

//

/1

"% This total assumes that the tenant continued to pay $1018.16 through February 2020. If that is not the case the
numbers should be adjusted by the parties, with jurisdiction reserved.

099222



PN ft""’\

Restitution is usually awarded over 12 months, but when the tenant is owed
58971% of the monthly rent, it is proper to extend the restitution period to 96
months.?® Amortized over 96 months, the restitution amount is $271.50 per month.

Therefore, the tenant’s monthly restitution amount is subtracted from the current
legal rent of $950.00, less the previously awarded decreased housing services, for a

total of $658.50.- From March 2020 through December 2025, the rent will be
' $658.50, less the deduction for ongoing decreased housing services.

.~ ORDER

1. Petitions T19-0272 and T19-0325 are granted.

2. The base rent for the subject unit is $950.00 per month before deductions for

... decreased housing services. . e

3. The total overpayment by the tenant is $25,110.00 for past decreased
housing services and $954.31for overpaid rent, for a total overpayment of
$26,064.31.

4. Due to ongoing conditions, the tenant is entitled to an ongoing decrease in
rent in the amount of 65%, in addition to the previously awarded ongoing decrease
in housing services.

5.,  The tenant’s rent is stated below as follows:
Base rent $ 950.00
Less restitution $ 271.50
Less ongoing decreased services?! $§ 624.50
Net Rent on March 1, 2020 $ 54.00

6.  The tenant’s rent for March 2020, through February 2028, is $54.00. The
rent will revert to the current legal rent of $930.00 in March 2028.

7. Once the evidence of water intrusion damages, including the kitchen
cabinets and walls, as noted in the Notice of Violation, is repaired and after further

20 Regulations, §8.22.110(F).
2! This includes the amount previously awarded in T16-0526.

000223



™ {

City inspection noting the violation is abated and upon proper notice in accordance
with Section 827 of the California Civil Code, the rent can be increased by 50%
($465.00).

8. Once the windows, as noted in the Notice of Violation, are repaired and after
further City inspection, and upon proper notice in accordance with Section 827 of
the California Civil Code, they can increase the rent by 5% ($46.50).

9. Once the infestation is noted to be abated after further inspection by Vector
Control, and upon proper notice in accordance with Section 827 of the California
Civil Code, they can increase the rent by 10% ($93.00). ‘

10.  If the owner wishes to, they can repay the restitution owed to the tenant at
any time. If they do so, the monthly decrease for restitution ends at the time the
tenant is provided restitution.

Right to Appeal: This decision is the final decision of the Rent Adjustment
Program Staff. Either party may appeal this decision by filing a properly
completed appeal using the form provided by the Rent Adjustment Program. The
appeal must be received within twenty (20) calendar days after service of the
decision. The date of service is shown on the attached Proof of Service. If the
Rent Adjustment Office is closed on the last day to file, the appeal may be filed on

the next business day.

Dated: January 21, 2020 - Elan Cons\ella Lamb rt
' Hearing Offtegr
“Rent Adjustment Pfogram

000224



s, N

iy,
-

PROOF OF SERVICE
Case Number T19-0272; T19-0325

I am a resident of the State of California at least eighteen years of age. I am not a party to the
Residential Rent Adjustment Program case listed above. I am employed in Alameda County,
California. My business address is 250 Frank H. Ogawa Plaza, Suite 5313, 5th Floor, Oakland,
California 94612.

Today, I served the attached documents listed below by placing a true copy in a City of
Oakland mail collection receptacle for mailing on the below date at 250 Frank H. Ogawa
Plaza, Suite 5313, 5th Floor, Oakland, California, addressed to: '

Documents Included
Hearing Decision

Manager
Nevin Iwatsuru, Pama Management

o 4900-Santa-Anita-Avenue-Suite 26— e e

El Monte, CA 91731

Owner

BD Opportunity 1 LP
3340 Woodside Terrace
Fremont, CA 94539

Tenant

Colleen Jeffers

7123 Holly Street Unit 1
‘Oakland, CA 94621

I am readily familiar with the City of Oakland’s practice of collection and processing
correspondence for mailing. Under that practice an envelope placed in the mail collection
receptacle described above would be deposited in the United States mail with the U.S. Postal
Service on that same day with first class postage thereon fully prepaid in the ordinary course of
business.

I declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California that the above is true
and correct. Executed on January 23, 2020 in Oakland, CA.

Raven Smith

Oakland Rent Adjustment Program

000225




CITY OF OAKLAND - For date siamp.
RENT ADJUSTMENT PROGRAM | IFEB IO AH 8:57
250 Frank Ogawa Plaza, Suite 5313 -
Qakland, CA 94612 .

(510) 238-3721 | | APPEAL .

CITY 0 OAKLAND

Appellant’s Name
BD Opportunity 1, LP
Property Address (Include Unit Number)

& Owner [ Tenant

7123 Holly Street, Unit 1 Oakland, CA

Appellant’s Mailing Address (For receipt of notices). . - .0 | Case Number

4900 Santa Anita Ave Suite 2C | 119-0272 8‘ T119-0325
El Monte, CA 91731 Date of Decision appealed

January 21, 2020

Name of Representative (if any) o 'Representative’s Mailing Address (For notices)

"I Jesse Carrillo -:1-4900-Santa-Anita-Ave-Suite 26— e e
El Monte, CA 81731

Please select your ground(s) for appeal from the list below. As part of the appeal, an explanation must
be provided responding to each ground for which you are appealing. Each ground for appeal listed
below includes directions as to what should be included in the explanation.

1) There are math/clerical errors that réquire the Hearing Decision to be updated. (Please clearly
explain the math/clerical errors.) :

2) Appealing the decision for one of the grouqdé below (required):

a) [ The decision is inconsistent with OMC Chaptei’ 8;22, Rent Board Regulations or prior decisions
of the Board. (In your explanation, you must identify the Ordinance section, regulation or prior Board
decision(s) and describe how the description is inconsistent. ).

b) [0 The decision is inconsistent with decisions issued by other Hearing Officers. (In your explaharion,
you must identify the priov inconsistent decision and explain how the decision is inconsistent.)

¢) [ The decision raises a new policy issue that has ‘not been decided by the Board. (In your explanation,
you must provide a detailed statement of the issue and why the issue should be decided in your favor.).

d)  [J The decision violates federal, state or local law. (In your explanation, you must provide a detailed
statement as to what law is violated.) B

e) [ The decision is not supported by substantial evidence. (I your explanation, you must explain why
the decision is not supported by substantial evidence found in the case record.}

For more info_rma_tion ﬁhone (5_10) 238-3721.

Rev. 6/18/2018

000226



T‘m\ et

¢

f) 31 was denied a sufficient opportunity to present my claim or respond to the petitioner’s claim. (/n
your explanation, you must describe how you were denied the chance to defend your claims and what
evidence you would have presented. Note that a hearing is not required in every case. Staff may issue a
decision without a hearing if sufficient fucts to make the decision are not in dispute.)

@) [ The decision denies the Owner a fair return on my investment, (You may appeal on this ground only
when your underlying petition was based on a fair return claim. You must specifically state why you have been
denied a fair return and attach the calculations supporting your claim.)

h) {2 Other. (In your explanation, you must attach a detailed. explanation of your grounds for appeal.)

Submissions to the Board must nof exceed 25 pages from each party, and they must be received by the Rent
Adjustment Program with a proof of service on opposing party within 15 days of filing the appeal. Only the first
25 pages of submiissions from each party will be considered by the Board; Subject to Regulations 8.22.010(A)(5).
Please number attached pages consecutively. Number of pages altached: One,
See attached "Appeal attached page" ‘ - . -
« You must serve a copy of your appeal on the opposing parties or your appeal may be dismissed. e
I declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California that on February 7 ,2020
~Iplaced a copy of this form; and all attached pages, in the United States mail or deposited it witha commercial
carrier, using a service at least as expeditious as first class mail, with all postage or charges fully prepaid,
addresscd to each opposing party as follows: ‘

Name
_ Colleen Jeffers
7123 Holly Street, Unit1 -
Qakland, CA 94621 ‘
Name
Xavier Johnson
A S8 R
7123 Holly Street; Unit 1
City, State Zip '
Oakland, CA 94621
710 2o

DATE

For more information phone (510) 238-3721.

Rev, 6/1822018

000227




Appeal Attached Page

The ruling for T19-0272 and T19-0325 reads a restitution for decreased housing services valued
at $25,110.00. This amount is uneconomical. That is greater than the cash flow from operations
for the entire year, and would the exceed the budgeted cash flow for the next year. This would
leave the operation of the property at a loss, and it would require a decrease in services for the
other tenants at this property.

Additionally, from time to time units turn over and for an older building the units require
significant capital expenses to completely refurbish the units. No income inhibits the ability of
the property to generate any return on investment and generates no funds to pay to make
necessary repairs and maintenance. Stretching the negative consequences over time as
suggested in the decision only prolongs tha financial impact. Such a decision may force the
decision to shut down the property and cease provndmg affordable housing units to the market
to stop the negative financial losses. . ~ /

T19-0272 refers to a rent increase that does not abide by local and state laws. This increase,
which was effective April 1, 2019, was rescinded and voided. Case T19-0325 refers to a rent
increase that was effective July 1, 2019. This too was rescinded and voided.

The tenant had been provided an RAP Natice in a previous year, related to case T16-0526. In
addition, the tenant had filed a petition leading to case T1 6-0526, making the tenant aware of
their rights and opportunities to petition any changes in rent and services. This only leaves
services provided to the tenant to be in question.-

Conversations and inquiries were made with the tenant; Ms. Jeffers, after the notifications of

- petitions to the rent increase and alleged decrease in services were received. The tenant was
asked if there were any outstanding items that needed repair or maintenance, and the tenant
had clearly informed the management company that there were no items remaining. At the time,
a contractor was painting the cabinets per the ten_aht’s, request. This does not coincide with what
the tenant is claiming to be the current condition per.the aforementioned cases. The deferred
rent recovery itemizes repairs that have already been made.to the property to the satisfaction of
the tenant. Those rent reductions are punitive because there are no outstanding items
according to the tenant, and therefore no.reasgn to reduce the rental income further.

The decision is unnecessarily punitive since all the items claimed by the tenant had already

been resolved to the tenant’s satisfaction before the hearing.

Page 1

000228



	Binder1.pdf
	Board Agenda Regular Meeting 9-10-2020
	Board Special Meeting Minutes 7-30-20
	Binder1.pdf
	HRRRB 03.12.2020 Agenda & Packet - Regular
	HRRRB03.12.2020-001.pdf



	T19-0272 & T19-0325.pdf



